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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B 5 4 2

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
HZ BHE
—E-REF —E-EF
—B=+tNB Z=—A=tAhH
LHFEE EFE
RMB million RMB million Change
ARBBEERT AREBER )
Profit and Loss Highlights AERBE
Revenue W = 2941 401.4 (26.7%)
Consolidated Loss Attributable to RRrEmFEARA
Owners of the Company mAEE (100.8) (23.5)
Basic Losses per Share FREXNEE
(RMB Cents) (AR¥5) (14.28) (3.34)
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEERRE
Total Equity 1 3% 483.4 618.1 (21.8%)
Net Cash Balances ReEen 38 327.9 364.7 (10.1%)
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) BREEFEARET) 0.68 0.88 (21.8%)
Net Cash per Share (RMB) FRELFEARER) 0.46 0.52 (10.1%)
Other Key Ratios HithFEb %
Stock Turnover (Days) FERABXE(RA) 291 432
Quick Ratio (Times) RELELE(1F) 4.6 4.0
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
KR

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Wilkinson & Grist

11/F, Great Eagle Centre

23 Harbour Road, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 1106, 11th Floor

1063 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
(effective from 1 July 2024)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00738
Board Size: 2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.lesaunda.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

S HE

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B B 1TEE

2024/25 Interim Results Announcement

R/ —RFPHEEAM

28 October 2024

—E-mWE+A=+N\AR

2024/25 Annual Results Announcement

TR/ RFRFERERM

26 May 2025

—E-_RAFRHAZ=ZF/<H

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting
(both days inclusive)
FiemERND A

FERFEMULFERRAFAS)(BHEEREMA)

9-14 July 2025

—E_RFEANBE+TIA

Annual General Meeting

BREFARE

14 July 2025

—E-_RF+ A+ WA

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify

the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
ok

INVESTOR RELATIONS REERBE
For enquiries relating to investor relations, please emailto {(F{R BRI EEME 2 EH SEHE
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at: ir@lesaunda.com.hk * K B K £2 7K 2 &) B

|

Le Saunda Holdings Limited REBATFHERBRAR]
Suite 1106, 11th Floor BB AR

1063 King’s Road I 2 3E10635%

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong 111106 =E

Telephone: (852) 3678 3200 T 3% 1 (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304 {5 & : (852) 2554 9304
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KEY MILESTONES
HERFL

MAR =H/2024

The Group was continuously honored to obtain

the “15 Year Plus Caring Company Logo” and the C/A\%ﬁ""( ﬁm%m%
J pany 9 @i' PANl

certificate awarded by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service, in recognition of the Group’s active
contributions in the three major areas of “Caring for the
Community”, “Caring for Employees” and “Caring for
the Environment”.

AEBEBEREHEELERBEB SR ENNGF
PlusE RE B RIR G0 | M EIK - URBAKBEEE A B
RIFETR EAEEIIRIBAERREI =ZA#HE -

MAY #H H/ 2024

Group was consecutively appointed as the
executive director unit of the Guangdong Electronic
Commerce Association.

AEEEBEIREREETABHECERES

B -

JUL €A/ 2024

The Group has collaborated with a famous
illustrator, Mr. Jude Chan, to conduct cross-
border joint promotions, combining Chinese
natural landscape elements with fashion trends
and applying to the current season’s windows
and booths so as to strengthen customers’ visual
perception and enhance brand appeal.

AEEEFHNLBEEMREBREETER
EERE EeTEERILKITRER R -
YWAERIAARNFTHENMERS L - LI GmEHR
BREMRNIGEMBERRESN -

10 le saunda holdings Itd. %& 57 fHZE %A IR A R)



KEY MILESTONES
EE N

JAN —H /2025

The Group was awarded the “Top 100 Enterprises”
by the Guangdong Electronic Commerce Industry
Association in 2025. The award recognises sizable
enterprises with outstanding social influence, high
growth potential, and a strong sense of social
responsibility in Guangdong province.

AEBR-_ZT_AFKREHEREETAKHER
TMOOBMEEIKK - ZRAEHERTEREAR
BRX HEFENRL  BERUFERBIEK
Mt EEERMEE-

FEB = A/ 2025

The Group is committed to providing a pleasant
working environment and enhancing employees’
happiness at work. The Group had continued to be
honoured as a “Happy Company” under “Happiness
at Work Promotional Scheme 2025” for more than five
consecutive years. The Group wishes for each employee
to be happy in their work, to pursue their passions and
to be fulfilled in it!

AEBHAIEE - BERROTESRE BASTHT FAPDY Bl 1 5
Ve bR K T o 75 g2 B 72T B0 T fE 7894 % £t 812025) 2 compPA “I
BERBREEESA LY AEMBPEE {1 5years

BTHETIEPRE ERAE  URESKHE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMEN'T

£

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 28 February 2025 (the “year under
review”).

The global economy has undergone rapid changes over
the past years, with the retail market facing challenges
due to the continued uncertainty in the economic and
trade climate that caused consumers to behave with
increased cautions. Following the introduction of a series
of policies to expand domestic demand and promote
consumption in Mainland China, the overall consumer
market achieved a steady growth, with increasing demand
for service consumption and better sales growth in daily
goods and household electronic appliances. However,
based on the present the official statistics of Mainland
China, there is no sign of recovery of the demand for
garment and footwear, while the competition among the
industry operators has been intensifying. On the other
hand, consumers place more emphasis on product
value and functionality, and demand better shopping
experience. As such, for the year under review, the Group
invested more resources in product quality and design, in
order to provide higher quality, more comfortable products
as well as better sales services to customers, thereby
enhancing the brand’s resilience to external unstable
business environment, uplifting the brand’s market share,
and achieving sustainable development of its business.

BEBR:

AANERREZSG(EZS)IMARE
B AERBERAR (B AR
RADEEMBRAR(AEENDBEE_T
“HAF R+ N\B IR REFE(E R
FREDZEERS -

PREEERE—F TR SRS
SETBENERANS HBTARSE
HABER SHTETSRARERE -
B o B P9 i — R T M0 4B 0 BN B R
A EEUBTSERTEEE R
BABERTHEN B EFENRE
BREQEERBET - B2 HANTHE
ABEF G BTRYE  REEENE
SRANEBREBRGTE - FZRE
ERTANEE - B—HE  HBEERMA
EREQEER AN B ABRE
WEs - A AEEREEEE BN
FLARGEQHEERRH ABFR
HERHE BEHEMEREREEEN
WERT RN R E T EE
MEEREZON  BARBEDSE
MHE BEREBNAREEE -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VLS

BUSINESS REVIEW

This has been a challenging year with twists and turns.
Apart from external economic impact, the Group
also underwent optimisation of internal structure and
adjustment of market strategies to cope with the sluggish
external environment. During the year under review, the
Group actively allocated reasonable resources to its online
and offline sales channels and evaluated whether the
sales coverage of each channel was suitable, facilitating
the Group to reach the target customer base in a more
effective manner so as to seize the business development
opportunities. The Group also further improved its
warehousing management and streamlined its corporate
structure to accelerate the operation process, which
further enhanced its operational performance. Meanwhile,
through short-term initiatives for the clearance of slow-
moving stocks, the overstocking of off-season products
has been substantially reduced which in turn increased
the quick ratio and further strengthened the cash flow
position. Although the above strategies have adversely
impacted the results of the year under review, they lay
down a solid foundation for the enhancement of its brand
value in long term.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&EHTFHER AR A7)

e, JCIY-
RFERZMIBREFAO—F - BRTHNE
REBEZEHN REBEHWKRETANI AR
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HINERIRIE - REIBEFE NS EEERAE
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E— T TERTFERREEARREE M

RW%m&MbF SEEMABI B
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group focuses on developing fashionable together
with comfortable products, aiming to attract young
trendsetters with its product design, instead of simply
engaging in a price war with other operators within the
industry. The Group is also committed to reviewing
the quality of products supplied by manufacturers and
ensuring that they are of high standard, and to maintaining
the reputation as a premium brand and raising its brand
value. In addition, this year marks the 48th anniversary of
its brand, the Group has therefore upgraded its products,
operation logo and their colours, as well as packaging
designs since the beginning of 2025, with the aim to
strengthen its image of light luxury fashion and vibrancy.
The Group has also collaborated with a famous illustrator
in a crossover campaign and decorated its stores with
the illustrator’s artistic works, infusing a mixture of light
luxurious and artistic vibe into its stores, with a view to
embedding new Chinese fashion elements into its brand
and demonstrating its brand’s theme of everlasting and
unique craftsmanship.

To have more in-depth interactions with its customers
and understand their consumption patterns and
personalised demands, the Group has launched a brand-
new membership CRM system. This has comprehensively
enhanced its membership operation and consolidated
offline and online VIP membership information, with its
in-store salespeople providing professional opinions that
align with the customers’ personalised demands, and
its customers can experience the kind and professional
services. The Group believes that such premium shopping
experience would enhance their loyalty to its brand.
Furthermore, the Group promote its brand through
emerging social platforms, increase private traffic and
strengthen its presence on social media e-commerce
platforms, in order to secure the market shares of its
e-commerce business.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VLS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VLS

SUSTAINABLE CORPORATE STRATEGIES

In summary, the year under review was more challenging
than anticipated. The dampening economic activities and
sluggish retail industry will still pose uncertainties and
challenges to the retail environment in the coming years.
To cope with these prolonged economic challenges and
complex business environment, the Group has, therefore,
reformulated its sustainable corporate strategies by
constantly reviewing its ongoing business strategies and
repositioning its competitive advantages, with an aim of
achieving our vision and purpose as well as seeking for a
more satisfactory and sustainable financial performance
and shareholders’ return.

The Group has, with the consideration of the corporate
culture that evolves with its core values and factors
such as the Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and
development trends, formulated four main sustainable
corporate strategies, namely, green growth philosophy,
technology development, innovative operational
management and staff development.

For the details of Group’s corporate strategies, please

refer to Corporate Governance Report on pages 41 to 74
of this report.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
deepest gratitude to the management team and all
employees for their dedication and contribution in the past
year, as well as to the shareholders and business partners
for their continued support for and trust in the Group.
In spite of the prevailing complex and volatile business
environment, the Group will stay true to its original vision
and strive to create more values for the brand and greater
returns for its shareholders!

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 May 2025

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
VLS
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
I )i S o M

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development and
retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags and
fashionable accessories in Mainland China. The major
proprietary brands of the Group include LE SAUNDA, le
saunda MEN and LINEA ROSA, which aim to appeal to
diversified target customer groups with their distinctive
product lines.

For the financial year 2024/25, total revenue of the Group
decreased by 26.7% year-on-year to RMB294,100,000
(2023/24: RMB401,400,000). Consolidated gross profit
decreased by 42.9% year-on-year to RMB143,200,000
(2023/24: RMB250,800,000), and an overall gross
profit margin of 48.7% was recorded, representing a
decrease of 13.8 percentage points as compared to the
corresponding period in the previous financial year. For
the financial year 2024/25, consolidated loss attributable
to owners of the Company was RMB100,800,000
(2023/24: consolidated loss of RMB23,500,000).

Bt % [0 B
REXER
AEBETBERERSERG; HAEAR

% %ﬁﬁ?% % &@Eﬁfﬁ—rﬁuu"
BETEEZBZ MmEEELE SAUNDA - le
saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA @ LA E {1

MEm BEERANBEEPE -
BA—“—PEI/—EHMBZEV NEE R
Bl m s HttTEﬂEZG?%iAEﬁ%Z

294,100,000 (Z 2 = = /= M F: A
R %401,400,0007T) ° 48 & E F A b A&
1L42.9% = A R ¥143,200,0007T(= &
— =/ F: AR ¥250,800,0007T) -
BREREMNEREFYRFER IR 138
BEDEE487% - R_T -/~ HE
BREE  ARE#Em= ?—rﬁ/\ﬂHE”AESE
A A R #100,800,000T (2 == /=
& #%éEa%aAE%s,esoo,oooﬂ
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
o B e & o b
FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B %% B R (48)
Operating Results (Continued) ReExE(E)
2024/25 2023/24 Change
RMB (million) AR%(EEBRX) —E-m/-H —E-=/-IN 5
Revenue W &= 294.1 401.4 (26.7%)
Gross profit EH 143.2 250.8 (42.9%)
Gross profit margin eV 48.7% 62.5% (13.8 percentage
points)
(13.8HE S &)
Consolidated loss attributable BEREABGEGABE (100.8) (23.5)
to owners
Final dividend (HK cents) AEIRR B (B -
Final special dividend (HK cents) & 2345 3l B £ (L) - 5.0
Annual dividend pay-out ratio 2FEREX N/A N/A
rER TER
Profitability Analysis BRI R D
During the year under review, consumer confidence and REIEEE  BEEZEZLERRE %i JEH

demand for apparel and footwear continued to be weak.
In order to cope with the sluggish retail market and to
avoid overstocking of off-season products, on the one
hand, the Group has further optimised its offline retail
store network, and on the other hand, the Group has
offered relatively high discounts to retail customers and
wholesalers to clear up the slow-moving products. Hence,
the total revenue of the Group decreased by 26.7% year-
on-year to RMB294,100,000. Meanwhile, the Group
recorded a gross profit of RMB143,200,000 (2023/24:
RMB250,800,000), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 42.9%. The gross profit margin decreased by 13.8
percentage points to 48.7%, as compared to last year.

The selling and distribution expenses decreased by
19.7% vyear-on-year to RMB164,500,000 (2023/24:
RMB204,800,000) during the year under review. The
Group focused on optimising its store network and
reducing underperformed stores to save fixed selling
and distribution expenses. Nonetheless, the Group has
incurred one-off employee compensation expenses for
staff redundancy of frontline employees as a result of
store optimisation. Accordingly, the ratio of selling and
distribution expenses to total revenue increased by 4.9
percentage points to 55.9% (2023/24: 51.0%).

le saunda holdings Itd. %& 57 fHZE %A IR A R)
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SE2FEMERL T ®K429%E AR
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

The Group streamlined its back-office structure during the
year under review, including unification of warehousing
function and optimisation of regional office and its
headcount, to improve its operational efficiency. Although
the Group has paid one-off employee compensation
expenses for the optimisation of staff from back-office,
the overall general and administrative expenses were
reduced. The Group’s recorded general and administrative
expenses during the year under review decreased by 2.5%
to RMB81,900,000 as compared to the corresponding
period of last year (2023/24: RMB84,000,000). However,
as a result of the significant decline in total revenue this
year, the ratio of general and administrative expenses
to total revenue increased by 6.9 percentage points to
27.8%. (2023/24: 20.9%).

Other income comprised of property rental income
of RMB1,900,000 and local government subsidies of
RMB700,000. Other income increased by 14.6% year-on-
year to RMB2,600,000 (2023/24: RMB2,300,000).

During the year under review, other losses, net, were
RMB9,600,000 (2023/24: gain of RMB3,200,000).
Among which, there was an impairment loss on the
investment property of RMB9,200,000. Furthermore,
the Group recorded exchange losses of RMB300,000
(2023/24: RMB2,500,000) because Renminbi continued
to depreciate whereas the magnitude was lower than that
of last year. Last year, the Group recorded an one-off
gains on early termination of leases of RMB7,400,000 and
the compensation expenses of RMB1,800,000 for early
termination of such leases.

The consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB100,800,000 (2023/24: loss
of RMB23,500,000). Basic losses per share amounted to
RMB14.28 cents (2023/24: losses of RMB3.34 cents).

B B  w S o3

Bt 7 B B8 (18)

BRI 5D ()
REEROBEFEREERDIDIIER -
BEGFR—REGEEENRLELBERAD
EREETAH URALERER - #
AAEBBLEGAEMIF—K KR
ERFEER BREEE—METHEAX
BUARE - REBFE AEEHE—
METBRAXBREF THE25%E AR
81,900,000 (= FE == /= F : A RKE
84,000,0007T) » i + HAR A F 35 & &
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Income Tax

During the year under review, income tax expenses
amounted to approximately RMB2,500,000 (2023/24:
RMB2,900,000). The income tax expenses mainly
included the deferred tax expenses made for the reversal
of provision items. Since 2012, all business entities of
the Group in Mainland China are subject to an income
tax rate of 25% while the profit tax rate for operations in
Hong Kong remains at 16.5%. Pursuant to the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of Mainland China, a withholding income
tax of 5% to 10% shall be levied on the dividends remitted
by a Chinese subsidiary to its foreign parent company
starting from 1 January 2008.

Inventory Management

As at 28 February 2025, the Group’s inventory balance,
net of provision for impairment, was RMB76,100,000,
representing an decrease of 53.7% as compared to that
of last year.
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Details of inventory balance were as follows: FEHBMEEBMT:
As at As at
28 February 29 February Changes Changes
2025 2024 in value in %
R-ZE-HF RZT_NF
RMB (million) AR%(BER) ZAZtNE ZAZ-thH 2HHeE EPEO
Finished goods 25K fm 76.1 164.5 (88.4) (53.7%)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Inventory Management (Continued)

During the year under review, in response to the
continuing sluggish retail environment, the Group
executed a cautious approach in purchasing its current
season products and enhanced its efforts in cleaning up
its slow-moving products, which has, in turn, substantially
reduced the inventory volume. The proportion of the
inventory of footwear aged less than one year increased
by 3.8 percentage points to 48.2% as at 28 February
2025 (29 February 2024: 44.4%) and inventory turnover of
finished goods had therefore decreased by 141 days to
291 days (2024: 432 days).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 28 February 2025, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB327,900,000
(29 February 2024: RMB364,700,000), representing a
decrease of 10.1% year-on-year. Even though being in
a sluggish retail environment, the Group still maintains
sufficient cash. If necessary, the Group can maintain
sufficient working capital through banking facilities
provided by its major banks in Hong Kong and Mainland
China, including but not limited to revolving loans and
trade finance, mainly at floating interest rates. At the
end of the financial year, the quick ratio was 4.6 times
(29 February 2024: 4.0 times). During the year under
review, the Group had borrowed and repaid a bank loan
of HK$10,000,000. As at 28 February 2025, the Group
has no outstanding bank loan (29 February 2024: Nil).
Forward contracts will be used, if necessary, to hedge
related debts and bank borrowings arising from overseas
purchases. In addition, the Group did not enter into any
forward contracts to hedge its foreign exchange risks
during the year under review.

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were held in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Renminbi, respectively and all
deposits maturing within one year were placed in leading
banks. With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its
operations, coupled with its existing cash and banking
facilities, it has adequate financial resources to fund its
future needs in development.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Looking back at 2024, although inflation and interest
rates of various countries have been declining gradually,
their economies were still shrouded in gloom. Recovery
progress of their economies is very vulnerable to the
economic and trade policies implemented by other
countries and the tense economic and trade relations
among countries. In response to the volatile external
environment, the Chinese government strived to improve
its economic prowess under the principle of “making
progress while maintaining stability” with initiatives,
including the timely introduction of multiple consumption
stimulus policies and the launch of new measures that
support emerging technological industries, so as to
stimulate domestic demand and enhance domestic
productivity to support stable economic growth in
Mainland China. Based on the data released by the
National Bureau of Statistics of the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”), the annual gross domestic product
(“GDP”) increased by 5% year-on-year in 2024, which
was in line with the GDP growth target as set out in the
“Report on the Work of the Government” published by the
State Council of the PRC last year. However, at the Third
Session of the 14th National People’s Congress of the
PRC, the State Council pointed out that this was not an
easy achievement. The domestic economic environment
has been constantly facing challenges to various degrees
and issues such as deep-rooted structural problems,
weak domestic demand and expected low consumer
confidence still persisted in Mainland China.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Overview (Continued)

During the year under review, consumer confidence of
the overall retail sector in China had yet to show any
significant improvement. Consumers have become more
and more cautious with their spending. When exposed to
economic pressure or market changes, they would prefer
relatively affordable products with better value for money
and mostly purchase the products with relevant national
subsidies. Currently, demand for footwear remains weak,
resulting in continuous competition within industry. The
Group has implemented a series of optimisation measures
and reforms to strengthen its resilience against rapid
changes of the external environment and improve its
operational efficiency. Such measures include but are not
limited to streamlining corporate structure, consolidating
its logistics and supply chain, improving product quality,
constantly optimising the layout of its physical stores
and actively clearing off off-season products as well as
enhancing visual image of its brand. However, since the
retail market remained sluggish, the Group’s total retail
revenue for the year under review decreased by 26.7%
to RMB294,100,000 as compared to that of last year
(2023/24: RMB401,400,000) while same store sales year-
on-year decreased by 20.1% (2023/24: increased by
11.7%).

Retail Network

Mainland China is currently the key market of the Group’s
retail business. As at the end of the year under review,
the Group had a total of 153 physical stores in Mainland
China. The number of self-owned stores dropped by 125
while the number of franchised stores decreased by 5
during the year under review.

As at 28 February 2025, there were 109 stores under the
core brand LE SAUNDA, representing a net decrease of
93 stores as compared to the end of last financial year.
The high-end fashion brand, LINEA ROSA, had a net
reduction of 20 stores, bringing the total number of stores
to 6, as compared to the end of last financial year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)
As at 28 February 2025, the breakdown of the Group’s

%i‘k@gﬁ(nﬁ
ZERESMH(E)
R-E-_RAF_A-+N\B AEENHE

offline retail network was as follows: TEEREDMHWT
Self-owned Franchise Total
(Year-on-year (Year-on-year (Year-on-year
change) change) change)
Number of Outlets BHEEIN BE BgE @t
by Region EHER (hE28) (kE28) (RE28)
Mainland China NS
+ Northern, Northeastern & o - RIARAEL
Northwestern Regions 31 (-39) 20 (-4) 51 (-39)
* Eastern Region o B 49 (-37) 0 0) 49 (-37)
¢ Central and Southwestern Regions @ R KA 29 (22) 1 () 30 (-23)
+ Southern Region o B 23 (-31) 0 0) 23 (-31)
Total By 132 (-125) 21 (-5) 153 (130
Mainland China M B K B
Retail Business FEEXK

In 2024, the total retail sales of consumer goods in the
PRC amounted to RMBA48.8 ftrillion, representing a year-
on-year increase of 3.5%. This was mainly because
in the second half of 2024, the National Development
and Reform Commission of the PRC, with the active
cooperation of relevant departments, had stepped up
their effort in implementing policies in respect of the
large-scale equipment upgrade and consumer goods
trade-in, resulting in an accelerated growth in the sales
of home appliances, automobiles and other products,
which had played a significant role in driving the rebound
of overall consumption in Mainland China. However, the
retail sales of consumer goods in garments, footwear,
hats and knitwear category in Mainland China only had a
0.3% growth in 2024. This demonstrated that the relevant
policies in Mainland China did not benefit the consumer
market of garments and footwear nor raised consumer
confidence in this retail segment.
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MANAGEMENT’S

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

To overcome the current economic downturn, the Group
has made a decisive move in the year under review to
comprehensively optimise its offline distribution network,
including reviewing, in particular, the department stores
subject to fixed rents and only retaining those stores
that are profitable to the Group. Apart from assessing
the current sales of its physical stores in all regions,
the Group also considered whether there is still room
for future business development in the relevant regions
and to proactively close physical stores in regions with
declining retail markets. Meanwhile, the Group continued
to consolidate its sales networks in key cities, cautiously
evaluate the sales coverage of the Group and eliminate
stores with overlapping customer bases, with a view to
ensuring that appropriate distance is maintained between
stores to raise the effectiveness in reaching target
customers. The current store network of the Group is
mainly located across large shopping centers and sizeable
department stores with high customer traffic.

Moreover, in order to increase the turnover of off-season
products and strengthen cash flow position, the Group
provided discounts to customers from time to time and
sold slow-moving off-season products to wholesalers with
relatively high discounts during the year under review.
However, such stock clearance initiatives not only led
to a decrease in the average selling price of footwear
but also resulted in a significant decrease in the gross
profit margin of the Group. During the year under review,
the Group’s retail sales in Mainland China decreased by
25.4% to RMB294,100,000 (2023/24: RMB394,200,000).

S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

Price reduction sales to reducing off-season inventories
is only a short-term strategy. The Group has always
endeavored to keep abreast of the changes in consumer
demand for footwear styles and maintain appropriate
stock level with different inventory categories in various
seasons, allowing the Group to implement flexible
procurement plans to improve its brand competitiveness
and lower costs of overstocking. The Group insisted on
developing products with high quality, great style and
exquisite craftsmanship for consumers to enhance its
brand value and loyalty, thereby increasing customer
traffic and sales. The Group has once again reviewed
and evaluated its existing suppliers and mainly procured
from high-quality suppliers with good reputations and
manufacturing technology while strengthening the
monitoring of the relevant suppliers to ensure production
quality as well. As we build consumers’ confidence in
the quality of LE SAUNDA, consumers would eventually
prefer purchasing the Group’s product over low-priced
footwear products offered from other brands. This
undoubtedly helps the Group in consolidating its position
and maintaining its market share in the ladies’ footwear
market.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

The Group has consolidated its logistics chain, by
integrating and optimising the same with the logistics
provider’s systems, with an aim to centralising inventory
inbound, outbound and internal transfer, in order to
streamline the processes of operation and warehousing,
such as optimising inventory level, shortening the time
for products to hit shelves and accelerating inventory
movement. As such, the Group studied and monitored
the inventory movement of products more effectively
to reduce overstocking and understocking, which also
reduced the operating cost of warehouses. During
the year under review, the Group has streamlined its
corporate structure to optimise its store network and
back-office, and centralised its management in the
headquarters to expedite the decision-making process.
The main goal was to further enhance operational
efficiency of the Group and strengthen its responsiveness
to market changes. Furthermore, centralised functions
could reduce redundant posts and resource dispersion.
While maintaining an effective internal control, we granted
employees a wider range of responsibilities, strengthened
departments’ execution and motivated the innovation and
accountability of employees.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
Retail Business (Continued)

In terms of brand promotion, in autumn and winter of
2024, the Group collaborated with top illustrator, Mr.
Jude Chan (“Jude Chan”), to launch the cross-boundary
collaboration series “LE SAUNDA X Jude Chan”. The
partnered series “Marks of Time and Space” injected new
Chinese aesthetic elements into the brand, launching
quality autumn and winter footwear that outlined the
fashion sense of the brand. The Group also displayed
Jude Chan’s works in its stores, integrating artistic culture
and fashion to enhance brand appeal. Moreover, the
Group also emphasised on enhancing the visual image
of its brand. In early 2025, our products and operation
logo, packaging designs have been upgraded in order to
highlight the Group’s brand fashion sense and vibrancy
with its visual image.

Through dedicated self-owned stores, the Group
occasionally held live streaming to showcase and
introduce popular footwear of the season, with its offline
and online integration, which drove the business of its
traditional e-commerce platform. The Group also held
product sharing sessions in stores. Through interacting
with customers in stores, the Group offered them with
the direct access to the latest information of the Group’s
products and triggered their intention to repurchase so
as to facilitate sales conversion. The Group believed that
live streaming and product sharing sessions could more
precisely reach potential target customer bases, allowing
us to establish connections with them and attract their
interest in the brand so as to boost sales through private
traffic as well.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business

In January 2025, the National Bureau of Statistics of the
PRC announced that the overall national online retail
sales increased by 7.2% year-on-year in 2024, among
which, online retail sales of wearable goods slightly
increased by 1.5% while last year’s growth rate was
10.8%. To a certain extent, this shows that the growth of
the overall domestic footwear industry in the e-commerce
market has significantly slowed down, and the market is
becoming saturated. Consumers continue to demand low-
priced products. Such consumption downgrade has led
to intensifying competition among operators within the
industry and increasing difficulty and costs for acquiring
customers. During the year under review, with fierce
competition among online brands, an overall increase
of product return rate in the industry and other factors
affected the e-commerce business of the Group, resulting
in a year-on-year decrease of 8.8% of its overall revenue.

In spite of this, the Group believes that under the current
e-commerce competition, adopting red ocean strategy
and engaging in a price war with other operators in
the industry could not fulfill the long-term demand of
consumers. Such strategy would continuously increase
the sales cost and reduce the profit of the Group and
also damage its brand image. On the contrary, the Group
strictly adhered to the implementation of effective online
brand management to maintain its brand image. The
Group has been managing its online brand, launching
marketing activities, promoting products and constantly
improving the shopping experience of online users, in
order to establish brand reputation and strengthen its
market competitiveness. Through social media platforms,
such as Xiaohongshu, the Group increased its presence
and promoted the brand by arousing the hot discussions
on the brand, and increased private traffic through the
model of direct sales. The Group maintained close
communication with online users through live streaming.
Hosts could accurately and effectively describe the
features of our products and stimulate consumption of
online users and also attract them to visit our offline
stores, forming synergies of sales via offline and online
channels.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business (Continued)

The Group is committed to forming closer cooperation
with various traditional e-commerce platforms and
emerging social media platforms. Leveraging regular
promotion activities on e-commerce platforms, the
Group could drive online streaming traffic on the
relevant e-commerce platforms for the mutual benefit.
Furthermore, the Group has been enhancing its
brand awareness in the e-commerce market. In May
2024, Guangdong Electronic-Commerce Association
(“Association”) has once again appointed one of the
Group’s subsidiaries as its executive director unit. As
a representative of the Group, that subsidiary could
enhance the goodwill and brand power of the Group by
performing its duties. Moreover, with the assessment of
sales, market share and other comprehensive indicators,
the Association elected the Group as one of the most
competitive e-commerce enterprises of Guangdong
Province, and awarded the Group with the honour of “Top
100 Enterprise”, demonstrating that the Group does have
high visibility and influence in the e-commerce sector of
Guangdong Province and throughout China.

Furthermore, the new system of Customer Relationship
Management (“CRM”) of the Group has been launched.
On the one hand, the system could help the Group to
analyse all aspects of its sales data, including traffic
analysis, transaction analysis and consumer behaviour
analysis, allowing the Group to have a more in-
depth understanding of the consumption pattern of its
customers and enabling the relevant departments to
formulate and execute marketing plans in a more effective
manner. On the other hand, members could participate
in diverse promotional activities through the new system
of CRM, which would enrich members’ consumption
experience, enhance the brand loyalty of our customers
and thereby encourage members to repurchase.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION \\I) ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

According to the report of Global Economic Prospects
released by the World Bank, global economic growth is
expected to remain steady at 2.7% in 2025. However,
the highly uncertain trade policies and the tension over
economic and trade relations of various countries pose
significant risk of decline. As for the Mainland China,
the Chinese Government expects that the economy
development will face challenges to various degrees.
The Chinese Government will pay close attention to the
changing landscape and take a dynamic approach to
optimise its policies, in order to improve the foresight,
specificity and effectiveness of its macroeconomic
adjustment and make timely adjustment on the direction
and force of its policies, which would lay a strong
foundation for the 15th Five-Year Plan. The Group remains
cautious on the economy of Mainland China in next year,
and will closely keep track of market trends to incorporate
flexible and effective marketing strategies, improve
operational efficiency, and provide superior shopping
experience so as to create the uniqueness of its brand.

In early 2025, the products and operation logo of the
Group have been upgraded. The revitalised logo and
colour of the brand visually signifies the transformation of
the brand, which once again demonstrates Le Saunda’s
image of light luxury fashion and vibrancy to the industry.
The Group has upgraded the packagings of its products
to light grey gift box-style shoeboxes in contrast with
the light purple brand logo, which not only present the
brand’s high quality and fashion power to the customers,
but also provide customers with a brand new box-opening
experience, making the brand more relatable to them.
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\I ANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B  m M o3

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

Apart from improving the visual image of the brand, the
Group also plans to improve its brand image, enhance
product recognition among customers, and develop
emotional attachment with target audiences through
endorsement, so that more emotional resonance could
be provoked during purchases. In March 2025, the
Group entered into a contract with a famous actress that
aligns with its brand positioning, Janice Wu, who has
become its first ambassador after our brand upgrading.
With her refreshing and elegant image, she will publicise
and promote the upcoming new footwear collection.
The Group believes that the brand could attract the
attention of a wider customer base accordingly while
brand awareness could also be driven by the fan effect
associated with the endorser.

Increasing the brand’s exposure to online communities
is another key strategy of the Group. The Group plans to
collaborate with celebrities for promotion. Through short-
term collaboration with celebrities who have influence
in the fashion world, we could raise brand awareness in
social media matrix, accurately access target customer
base and enhance the brand’s youthful image and
market presence. In addition, the Group plans to focus
on promoting the characteristics and philosophy of its
new seasonal products in the second half of 2025 by
collaborating with influential KOLs. Leveraging on the
fan base and appeal of such KOLs could raise brand
awareness and increase sales.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION \\I) ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

On top of that, the Group will continue to optimise its
offline sales channels. Based on the development of the
footwear market in each region, the Group will consolidate
its self-owned store network to reach the target customer
base in the most accurate and effective manner. In line
with the upgraded marketing strategy of the brand, the
Group will launch its first countrywide flagship store in
MixC Mall, Shunde. Not only will the flagship store contain
the most comprehensive range of product categories and
the fastest stocking, but its staff will also introduce the
characteristics of our products. Through the experiential
marketing in the flagship store, the Group could have
in-depth communication with its customers and better
understand their actual needs, allowing the Group to
provide fashion solutions to them and to design products
that better suit their unique demands for high quality and
comfortable footwear in the future, which will eventually
enhance brand loyalty among customers. Meanwhile,
the Group will showcase the brand and shop image and
product style in the flagship store, and identify capable
companies to join the Group as the potential franchisees.

Since its establishment, the Group has insisted on the
brand philosophy: building brand with heart, developing
products with integrity and approaching users with
honesty, for improving both craftsmanship and comfort
level of its products, maintaining its relentless pursuit of
quality while keeping up with market trends. The Group
will continue to develop and launch new quality and stylish
footwear products for its customers, presenting wonderful
and pleasant wearing experience to customers and gain
its place amidst the competitive operating environment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 28 February 2025, the Group had no pledge of
assets (29 February 2024: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR i BB

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
of the Company on letters of credit and bank loans
to the extent of RMB111,500,000 (29 February 2024:
RMB101,400,000), of which no credit amount was utilised
as at 28 February 2025 (29 February 2024: RMB100,000
was utilised).

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended to declare a final
dividend for the year ended 28 February 2025 (29
February 2024 a final special dividend of HK5.0 cents per
ordinary share).

No interim dividend was paid for the six months ended
31 August 2024 (six months ended 31 August 2023:
an interim special dividend of HK5.0 cents per ordinary
share).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 28 February 2025, the Group had a full-time staff
force of 595 people (29 February 2024: 927 people),
of which 12 and 583 were based in Hong Kong and
Mainland China respectively. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
28 February 2025, including Directors’ emoluments and
net pension contributions, amounted to RMB124,700,000
(2023/24: RMB121,700,000). The Group has all along
organised structured and diversified training programmes
for staff at different levels. External consultants will
be invited to broaden the contents of the training
programmes.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 66, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He is responsible for the
development and quality control of the Group’s products.
He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li has over 19 years of experience in
product management. He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company and
brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai, aged 62, joined the Group in March
2011. He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
the Chairman of the board of the Company (the
“Board”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO”). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 08483), the shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HEHEGLARBERAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 76, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, a privatised company, the shares of which
were previously listed on the Stock Exchange. He was
previously an independent non-executive director of
Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. (formerly known as
Lifestyle Properties Development Limited), the shares of
which were previously listed on the Stock Exchange.

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 67, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 76, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980
and has been a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since
19883. Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of
a law firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership
in 2007 and has remained as a consultant of the said law
firm. Ms. Chan Kit Yin, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, is also a partner of that law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483),
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Chan Kit Yin, aged 52, joined the Group in August
2023. She is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.
Ms. Chan has been a solicitor practising in Hong Kong for
over 26 years and is a partner of a law firm in Hong Kong,
of which Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, had been a partner before he
retired from the partnership in 2007 and currently remains
as a consultant. Ms. Chan graduated from The University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1994
and obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from The
University of Hong Kong in 1996. Ms. Chan is a member
of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

HEHEGLARBERAR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Tsz Lok, aged 49, joined the Group in August
2009. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury, tax,
legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan holds
a Master degree of Science in Financial Management
from Heriot Watt University, UK and is a fellow member
of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. He has over 27 years of experience in
internal control, financial management and accounting.
Prior to joining the Group, he has held senior positions
in a multinational corporation and manufacturing groups
listed on Stock Exchange.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 50, joined the Group in March
2004. She is the General Manager (Southwestern China)
of the Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail
business operations in Southwestern and Northern region
of Mainland China. Ms. Xiao has over 29 years of retail
experience in Mainland China.

Huang Li Han, aged 53, joined the Group in July
2000. She is the General Manager (Eastern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in Eastern region of Mainland China. Ms.
Huang has over 25 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate practices are in line with the
principles of good corporate governance and the code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Company confirms that for
the year ended 28 February 2025, it has fully complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code save for the
deviation described below. Since October 2019, the
position of Chief Executive Officer of the Company has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the same
individual, while Mr. James Ngai, a non-executive director,
is the chairman, the responsibilities of the Chief Executive
Officer for the conduct of the business of the Company
have been taken up by the executive Director(s) of the
Company, who has/have extensive knowledge of the
Group’s operations and business issues, particularly on
corporate strategy matters, that they/he can exercise the
appropriate judgement and make proposal to the Board.

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
IS

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

In order to achieve long-term goals and carry out a
sustainable business model, the Group cultivates four
main corporate cultures, namely teamwork culture,
respective culture, ethical culture and innovation culture,
through its three core values, namely Supreme Quality,
Innovative Thinking and Mutual Respect. With the Group’s
purpose and corporate culture, the Board leads all levels
of the Group to act in a legal, ethical and responsible
manner to protect the relevant rights and interests of
customers, partners, investors, suppliers, employees and
other stakeholders.

The management is responsible for formulating the
Group’s corporate culture to ensure that its core values
and purpose are reflected. By taking into account factors
such as the Board’s view, stakeholders’ analysis and
development trends, the management has formulated
four main sustainable corporate strategies, namely green
growth philosophy, technology development, innovative
operational management and staff development, which
are then subsequently reviewed and approved by the
Board.

Green growth philosophy

To support the national carbon peak policy and achieve
carbon neutrality by 2050, the Group began its plan
to set energy saving, emission reduction and waste
reduction targets, and took environmental protection
as its responsibility. The Group has established an
evaluation process for new suppliers, making sustainable
development an important evaluation criterion for
selecting suppliers with compatible green philosophies.
In addition, the Group has further optimised its criteria of
product procurement and started to gradually purchase
products containing environmentally friendly materials. It
aims at improving resource utilisation, adopting practical
and measurable measures to manage and further reduce
its carbon footprint, encouraging employees to save
energy, reducing pollutant emissions and regulating waste
disposal, so as to contribute to a greener society.
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CORPORATE

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
(CONTINUED)

Technology development

The Group, as a fashion retailer, needs to keep
exploring new technology to improve the efficiency of
its operations and to increase its sales performance
especially in the ever-changing retail market and ever-
evolving e-commence business environment. The Group
has been allocating resources on the integration of its
offline and online business so as to enhance the shopping
experience of, and interactions with, existing customers as
well as to attract potential new customers. The Group will
not only focus on developing the marketing through omni-
channels but will also explore other technological project
or system that would improve the efficiency of the Group’s
operation. The Group will continue to leverage technology
to enhance and strengthen every existing aspect, such
as product design, marketing campaign, day-to-day
management, network data, etc. The Group believes that
digital development ensures its sustainable growth and
successful development in the future.

Innovative operational management

The Group believes that innovation is the driving force
behind the development of a business, encouraging
innovation is a key part of the Group’s corporate culture,
and that providing employees and teams with the room
and platform to innovate is also a responsibility of the
Group. Although many problems may inevitably arise in
the process of innovation, the Group believes that the
process of having these problems clarified and developing
and implementing solutions will lead to the growth of
the Company and its employees. As a well-known brand
operator with its leading position in the female footwear
market, the Group strives to pursue innovation so as to
fulfill the ever-changing design needs of customers as well
as to strengthen the brand influence.
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CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY
(CONTINUED)

Staff development

“Human-oriented Philosophy and Mutual Respect” is one
of the core values of the Group. We regard our employees
as the most valuable asset of the Company. The Group
respects each and every employee, believes in the
integrity of employees, and actively cultivates a culture
of encouragement and support to create a good working
environment for employees. The Group has established
a framework of occupational health management that
includes systems, trainings and measures to protect the
physical and mental health of employees. The Group
has set up a comprehensive promotion system and
designed customised training programs with the view to
providing adequate career development for employees.
The Group has been reviewing its recruitment plan,
offering competitive remuneration package and promoting
corporate culture to attract innovative talents. The Group
values employee welfare, pays attention to the needs of
employees and interacts with them in a positive manner
for mutual growth. Cultivating employees to become
professional and diverse team members is also one of the
Group’s ways to retain talents. Additional incentives and
rewards are offered to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Board strongly believes that as long as Le Saunda
adheres to its vision and mission coupled with the
implementation of the above sustainable corporate
strategies, constantly strengthening of the effectiveness
of marketing management and optimisation of operation
efficiency, it will surely be able to cope with the
challenging external environment and achieve a stable
and positive development.

Various circumstances such as staff engagement,
employee retention and training, whistleblowing, data
privacy and anti-corruption policies, and compliance
with laws, rules and regulations have comprehensively
reflected our corporate culture. Accordingly, the Board
believes that the Group’s purpose, values and strategies
are aligned with the Group’s culture.
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CORPORATE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises one Executive Director,
one Non-Executive Director and four Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Board has established three
board committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. The composition of the Board and the board
committees are set out below and their respective
responsibilities and work performed during the year are
discussed elsewhere in this report.

During the year ended 28 February 2025 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
(resigned with effect from 7 October 2024)
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(resigned with effect from 13 September 2024)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan

Ms. Chan Kit Yin
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@)

Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling Shareholder, the father of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter and father-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan;

Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James Ngai
are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings Limited
(“Stable Gain”), a controlling Shareholder. The entire
issued share capital of Stable Gain was registered
in the name of Stable Profit Holdings Limited
(“Stable Profit”), a company wholly-owned by HSBC
International Trustee Limited (“HSBC Trustee”) which
acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun Family Trust (the
“LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary trust, of which Mr.
Lee Tze Bun, Marces was the founder and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was
also the sole director of Stable Profit;

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces and brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan,
is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable Foundation
(“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces is the founder;

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee
Tze Bun, Marces and the sister-in-law of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter;

Ms. Chan Kit Yin is a partner of a law firm in Hong
Kong, of which Mr. Hui Chi Kwan had been a partner
before he retired from the partnership in 2007 and
currently remains as a consultant; and

Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483).
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 37 to 40 of this report.

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances
for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. During the year, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors have brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the fact that each of Mr. Lam Siu Lun,
Simon, Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
has served as an independent non-executive Director for
more than 9 years, the Board is satisfied that they are still
independent in discharging their duties as required. Their
active participation in the Board and committee meetings
in the past have demonstrated their abilities to exercise
independent judgement and to provide an objective and
balanced view in relation to the affairs of the Company.
Their individual expertise and extensive experience in their
respective fields have continued to provide diverse and
valuable advice to the Board from different perspectives.
In addition, all of them possess the required character,
integrity and familiarity with the Group’s business and
culture to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of
this report, the Company has four Independent Non-
Executive Directors representing not less than one-
third of the Board. Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon, one of the
Independent Non-Executive Directors, has the appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors
a written confirmation of his/her independence and has
satisfied itself of such independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are directors of both the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense
of the Company. During the year ended 28 February
2025, the Board held 6 physical meetings and 6 written
resolutions were signed and passed by all Directors.
The attendance records of each Director at the Board
meetings are set out on page 63 of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximising
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company. The management team of the Company
is accountable to the Board for the daily management and
operation of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ Training (Continued)

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices, environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) issues and other regulatory
regime to the Directors with written materials, as well as
organises seminars on the professional knowledge and
latest development of regulatory requirements related to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

During the year under review and up to the date of this
report, all Directors pursued continuous professional
development and the relevant details are set out below:
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BEARHEMEEFNE & ESNER
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Types of training

Name of Directors EEnA 3% 31 & 5l

Executive Directors: HITES:

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (Note 1) REFF L (B aE1) B

Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter Pk R E B

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan (Note 2) BIrTHZ+ (fi72) B

Non-Executive Director: FHMITES:

Mr. James Ngai {57 7 & 5 & A, B

Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIFHTEE:

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MK B SR A A, B

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELESE A, B

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan AFRBEE A B

Ms. Chan Kit Yin PR R He 2+ B

Remarks: A -

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums A— HEMSE % HiE

B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials B-MEHT SHEN XB /&%

Notes: Hiat -

1. Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky resigned as an Executive Director with 1. BRI rtE - E-_NE+A+HEBRITHTE
effect from 7 October 2024. = o

2. Ms. Liu Tsz Yan resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13 2. BEERZTEZT-_MFNLA+=ABEFTHT

September 2024.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the
Directors and officers of the Company against costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising
out of the corporate activities.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and caliber to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election. Moreover, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third), shall retire from office by rotation, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years. The rotating Directors who are subject
to retirement and re-election at the forthcoming AGM are
set out on page 127 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman
of the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function
of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company and ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and receive adequate information, which must
be complete and reliable, in a timely manner. On the
other hand, the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the implementation of the Company’s overall strategies
and coordination of overall business operation. Since
October 2019, the position of Chief Executive Officer has
been vacant. To ensure the roles of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer not to be performed by the
same individual, while Mr. James Ngai, a Non-Executive
Director, is the Chairman, the responsibilities of the Chief
Executive Officer for the conduct of the business of the
Company have been taken up by the Executive Director(s)
of the Company, who has/have extensive knowledge of
the Group’s operations and business issues, particularly
on corporate strategy matters, that they/he can exercise
the appropriate judgement and make proposal to the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All
board committees have clear and specific written terms
of reference, report their work to the Board after each
meeting and are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their respective duties. Copies of minutes of
all meetings and written resolutions passed at the board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary.
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CORPORATE

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 28
February 2025 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises four Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui
Chi Kwan and Ms. Chan Kit Yin. Mr. Lam has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Company’s external auditor, oversee
the integrity of financial information of the Company
and its disclosure, provide independent review of the
effectiveness of the financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, and review
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are posted on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 5 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Financial Officer were invited to attend
the meetings. In addition, 2 written resolutions for
separate matters signed by all members were passed.
The attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee are set out on page 63 of this report. A
summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year was as follows:

(i) review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;

(iii)  review of the management letters and reports issued
by the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 28 February 2025 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises four Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung
Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui Chi Kwan and Ms. Chan Kit Yin,
and one Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, determine the terms
of specific remuneration package of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review and
approve the performance-based remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held
1 physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out on
page 63 of this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee (i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company; (i)
assessed the performance of the Executive Directors, (iii)
approved performance-based remuneration with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board and/or the senior management from time to time;
and (iv) ensured that no Director or senior management
or any of his/her associates was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Details of the emoluments for
Directors, chief executive and five highest paid individuals,
and senior management remuneration by band during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012, As
at 28 February 2025 and up to the date of this report, the
Nomination Committee comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan (chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon,
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and Ms. Chan Kit Yin, and one
Non-Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out on
page 63 of this report. In the meeting, the Nomination
Committee (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board; (i) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) made recommendations
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy
Purpose

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (as
amended) with the aim of achieving diversity on the
Board since August 2013. The Company recognises the
benefits of having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of
perspectives at the Board level as essential in achieving a
sustainable and balanced development.

Summary of Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, industry
experience and expertise. All Board appointments are
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against a variety of criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews this policy, on an annual basis, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
(including the need to identify potential successors to the
Board to achieve gender diversity), and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for examination and approval.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Summary of Policy (Continued)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. Further, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute to
ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders are taken
into account by the Board and that relevant issues are
subject to objective and dispassionate consideration by
the Board. The biographical details of the Directors are
set out on pages 37 to 39 of this report. In implementing
the board diversity policy, the Board aims to have a
balanced composition in each of the relevant areas, but
recognising at the same time that all Board appointments
must be based on meritocracy having regard to the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Measurable Objectives

Targets have been set to maintain the Board with at
least 50% of members being made up of Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors,
together with an appropriate level of female member,
which shall be at least one female member.

The Board has achieved the aforementioned targets
during the year ended 28 February 2025. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprises six directors, four of
which are independent non-executive directors and one
of which is non-executive director and has one female
members.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from
time to time and at least once per year to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)
Gender Diversity of Workforce

During the year ended 28 February 2025, the gender
diversity in workforce levels was generally in line with
the diversity philosophy of the Group. As at 28 February
2025, 91% of our total workforce were female (including
senior management). We consider this gender ratio is
an appropriate level for a fashion brand operator with
principally offering ladies’ footwear products and we will
continue to review it and make appropriate adjustment in
staff recruitment, if necessary.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
when considering candidates to be appointed or
re-appointed as the Directors.

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the
candidate;

(b) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;

(¢ commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organisations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;

(d) scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate: (Continued)

(e) in case of a proposed appointment of
an Independent Non-executive Director,
independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

(f)  potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected;

(9) in the case of a proposed re-appointment of
an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
number of years he/she has already served;

(hy conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

()  other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(2) Process of appointment of a new Director:

(@)

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board will
also assess and consider whether the candidate
can satisfy the independence requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules;

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

For any person that is nominated by
Shareholders for election as a Director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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(3) Re-election of Director at General Meeting:

(@)

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board;

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is subject to the re-
election, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will also assess and consider whether
the Independent Non-Executive Director
will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules; and

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation
to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
re-election of Director at the general meeting.

@B PBREREEEEEFZRIE:

@ RBZEER HKEFTTER
MRAEESTHAAREE SR
LR UWEBREEEHZ
HEE KRR

b) REBEZESER HEZCNE
BT REERRTIEEESDHEE
A LMER o (8B IENTT
EEEEER RETEER
FEEENBIEREEB L
EHITEEROBHHETAL
MRBFTHOBLMERTE &

© REZEGERAEFZER
BERARELARREZEZSHE
BEE -

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-

MEZEXNBRRASLREZHENEE

elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the (BEEZ AAEZEEZ FE ANHEBEE R
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the circular to Shareholders and/or explanatory statement
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in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable

laws and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

The following graph provides an analysis on the
composition of the Board as at the date of this report:

Number of Directors
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Attendance Records

The individual attendance records of each Director at
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and
the 2024 annual general meeting of the Company (“2024
AGM”) during the year ended 28 February 2025 are set
out below:
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Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

it/ RERHART2ERHE

Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination

Note Board ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee 2024 AGM
113
i E32 ERZET HMZEe REZEe REAFEAe
Executive Directors: HTES:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky BRENLZL 1 1/4 N/A N/A N/A l
FEm TR TEm
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBEE 5/6 N/A N/A N/A 1A
TER TEH T A
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BIEEXT 2 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 1
TiEA TEH TR
Non-Executive Director: FYTES:
Mr. James Ngai RS xE 3 5/6 4/4 11 11 1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTEE:
Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon KB L E 6/6 5/5 11 11 Al
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PRELHE 6/6 5/5 1 1 11
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRBAE 6/6 5/5 11 1A 1/1
Ms. Chan Kit Yin BZELT 5/6 4/5 11 11 11
Notes: /?/]‘5?{ .
1. Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky resigned as an Executive Director with 1. GEREZLTE T -_NF+ALHERTIHNTE
effect from 7 October 2024. = o
2. Ms. Liu Tsz Yan resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13 2. BEERZTEAZT-_MFNLA+=ZARBEFETHT
September 2024. 30
3. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee. 3. RHEEEUTEEGHEESZETEESE -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference (as amended) on 19 March 2012:

()  to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide and disclosure in the corporate
governance report and ESG report.

The details of the corporate governance functions

reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2025, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
140 to 147 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 28 February 2025, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of professional services and tax advisory
services only) provided to the Group by the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately HK$1,550,000 (2023/24:
HK$1,550,000) and HK$38,377 (2023/24: HK$42,234)
respectively. The Audit Committee was of the view that
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
of the Company did not impair its independence and
objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Tsz Lok (“Mr. Chan”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company on 1 September
2021. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. In
his capacity as the Company Secretary, Mr. Chan reports
to the Board and is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters. In compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan took not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 QOctober 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a Director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 28 February 2025 and up to
the date of this report.
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CORPORATE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control,
risk assessment and management systems (including
environmental, social and governance risks) and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It reviews and
evaluates the effectiveness of the said systems at least
annually (and has done so during the year under review)
to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit, financial reporting
functions as well as those relating to the Group’s ESG
performance and reporting.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A
risk matrix is adopted by the Company to determine risk
rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of attention
of the management and the effort of risk treatment
required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of
operations, the Group set up an internal audit
department (the “Internal Auditor”) in August 2017 with
an aim to continuously improve the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control of the Group. The
Internal Auditor is required to prepare a risk oriented
annual audit plan, and on the basis of risk assessment
results, determine the work focus of internal audit that is in
line with the organisation objective. The annual audit plan
should be subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent
consulting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
thorough review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 March 2024 to 28 February 2025 in accordance
with the requirements under Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long-term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the
following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

e the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

° other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.

le saunda holdings Itd. %&& 57 fHZE %A IR A R

IR B BUR
AABHBEBIERE DK RRE RSN
HECMERAMEELZEESERN
MERKBEEEE HIREFE SR
REZEREBE - EF2AERERR
ZE-NN\—FRADE(EER])  Ar7AHA
A A2 M0 N A A A BRI R A B AR
MAIRERFAEOERMRS - AKRERE
& Ko R 3 B B o

EZeXRMREBEBRIREBE]DIAR
TEERBERRENEEERE SR

B EFgRAER(EPEFB)UATHEE:

s AKEEMNERAFNKRR:

s ARARAKEBZWEBEBRARNER
Y ot B A 0 K e 4

e AKEMBHZEESTR EAN
Pl S @ K S R R B ST AT &1

s AKEEMRBETNN:

s EEKEMRI AKRBEXHBHEE
B KAl gEH N AR R - M5 RAE
RFBRABREENRNELINE
S-S

e EZXeRA/BEAMBNEMAEM
S

EXFeB THRAREBRE  ArATAEH
RRABLVENEMER 2EBE
BHEBAR/HERREBEK AR
a8 R 38 A AR 15 0 B T ST AR 4
E2RBRE - BREBRRITEHENX R
R B AR I8 AR (£ R R R A5 A E ]
BHEBBERNEMBRER S TEER
REABEBREMERITRE KRR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders (the “Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may request the Board to call a SGM
by a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the written requisition. The requisition must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited with the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
and principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry
Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM of the
Company, the requisition will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
within 21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists
themselves may convene such physical meeting in
the same manner in accordance with Section 74 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by
the Requisitionist(s) with contact information must
be deposited at the Company’s head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite
1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary).
The notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of
the proposed resolution desired to be put forward
at the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board
The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Suite 1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s Road,

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognises that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. The
Company has in place a shareholders’ communication
policy (“Shareholders’ Communication Policy”) to ensure
that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. To foster effective communication with the
Shareholders and potential investors of the Company,
the Company endeavors to provide accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group
through the publication of the interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars, press interviews and press
releases on the website of the Company.

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of
the Board and the Chairman of each board committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by the
Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining an on-
going dialogue with the Shareholders, the Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the AGM or other general
meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is sent to
the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the AGM and posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialised
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons, press
conferences and road shows to keep them informed of
the Group’s business performance and developments.

S W

REEBR
BERREREEZBE

EFEERANMEARARKEENTEEE R
AR REYABREEEL LRSI
BREEZBSE AR ARNERZKHA -
RERARARERTRABRANTH - NAF
E il 7 BB A BCR (B R B BR ) -
NERKRENEBELRBIZFESINEE
HERIE - RN ERREARFR ZBERR
BEZRBRAER AR NEBNE
B mAKENTREERS
B BREFRIER  RMERE B
M 2ERERZEHR o

N

EREFAESMREHEETERHR
ERANERTE EFSXIFENBEFZ
EgITRHOgHERRAFAS 1 E
EERRAEERE 2EEMEL 2EMA -
ARPIINEZBE T EHFERRAEAFK
EUAGPHEETDERREMAHARER -
AEREFTERRFERTYEHFE B
AERREEARRRRAFAGHEAM
BERAXE BREAFAGBENZER
FAEXeBETEHNEL T EEXAH
SRR IR - A Bl BB A P R AN 2 R A8 U
BE -

BERREFASIN EFSREREA
THAEINE EeKLE BRRRER
R EB8FEH-—H-—gF FTEE
BREMENBESRHEBR ERF
MEARBZEHBRRNER -

annual report 2025 ik 2025

73



74

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e SEIsE

INVESTOR RELATIONS (CONTINUED)

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors (Continued)

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness and
implementation of Shareholders’ Communication Policy
during the year and was of the view that, through
the above-mentioned measures, the Shareholders’
Communication Policy remained effective and was
implemented effectively, to ensure that the Company
maintains long-term effective and good communication
with its shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in Memorandum of Association and
the Bye-Laws of the Company during the year ended 28
February 2025.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report discloses Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(“Le Saunda” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) in the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance for the year ended
28 February 2025.

Reporting Period

From 1 March 2024 to 28 February 2025 (the “reporting
year”)

Scope of This Report

Based on the principles of revenue contribution to the
Group and significant interactions with the environment
during the reporting year, the scope of this report
disclosed the operations of the Group in Mainland
China that involved design, development and retailing of
products including ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags,
and accessories. Meanwhile, this report covered the
environmental and social responsibility performance of the
Hong Kong office and operating sites in Mainland China
pertinent to products including footwear, handbags, and
accessories.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Comply or Explain” provisions and Mandatory Disclosure
Requirements of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” (the “ESG Guide”) as set out in Appendix
C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Reporting Principles
Materiality

The Group regularly makes reference to the industry
sustainability standards at the local and international
level and strives to integrate with them. At the same
time, regular communication with various stakeholders
is used to identify the most concerned and important
sustainability topics for the Group. Those sustainability
topics will also be incorporated into the Group’s
development policies under the overall strategy of the
Group’s operations. The Group has conducted survey
to gather the opinions of key stakeholders on the
Group’s ESG management performance, to identify their
expectations on the Group and developed appropriate
strategies to respond to their views and needs.

BREL - Abd LA R

B R | E

AR ERBRBHIERER 2B ([HE
AR RR DR EM B AR (FEIA
SEDRBE_T_AF_A-_+NBI

FEMNRE #HahEhR(ESGH KRR -
REHE
—TE_NWNE=ZA-HBE-T-_RF_H
“tNRTHREFAD

R EEE

BEERESFNERMAER XN L E
WAKRBRREEEZ@AENRAT K
HENREEEBEEAEEETBEAM
’i’é%** CTHEBEUALHESKEERE -
FRMNEMHEEMNEE - A K
#& @fﬁ/%#ﬂ#“*&qjlmiﬁiﬁiﬁi@
FREEHEERLDEEBHENIRE
kitgBEERRE -

BERE

ARERBEELHARIIMER AR (TH
Rl & %%J:m%ﬁﬁu((im%ﬁﬁu)ﬁﬁﬁ

CoRfEl 2CRE - g REBEIAREES)
(TESG#E 3| ) P 89 [ 4~ 38 <7 31 A% 1 | 15 3 K2
[RBIRERTE INEKARE -

BE % JR A
Z1t
REETH2ZR M MERAERITED

ANEEREE BAOREEY - BF
TR B E IR RTTFH ) EERE - AER
BAEEMERXBEINEENAFE
LREE - ZAURNEBEERZBETEER
SEEXEMNZERBE N MARNEER
RS AEBEETHERKRETRH

1%%%%%&@%1@%%9731% = Bl
P AR EBAEIE - I HIE A B R A
[0 & b {9 H 25 25 2 ok o

annual report 2025 ik 2025

75



76

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BAHE A A IR

ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Quantitative

The Group is committed to quantifying and disclosing key
performance indicators and data within the environmental
and social categories, and whenever feasible, explaining
the methods of data collection and calculation to enhance
transparency of the data.

Balance

In order to maintain the balance of reporting content, fair
disclosure of sustainability performance and challenges
related to the Group and stakeholders is provided with
impartial information to the public.

Consistency

The Group adheres to the ESG Guide of the Listing Rules
for disclosure, which allows the Group to make meaningful
annual comparisons of past performance under the same
framework, and to disclose updated calculation methods
of relevant data when necessary.

BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP

Le Saunda is a local renowned brand for fashionable
footwear, that is engaged in the design and development,
as well as sales of footwear of ladies and men, handbags
and other accessories in Mainland China. The key brands
of the Group include:
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Since its establishment, Le Saunda has developed rapidly in China.
HREABETFBEISZUAK - R BB AR o

The Group set up production lines at Shunde district in Foshan, China. Since then, the factory
in Shunde has gone through a series of expansion to increase its production capacity.

AEBEFEGILTIEERRLAEER - U EZREEMEIARTTESR

Le Saunda was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
HBTAHEEEME XS ER LT -

The Group expanded its retail network by setting up self-owned stores and franchise stores.
Le Saunda entered into retail market in China as early as 1990s when it opened its first retail
store in Shanghai to develop the huge market in China and unveil a brand new chapter for its
business.
AEEFBRARELSEMGTEEETHERTZEHER - EN0FREETRTETS
R EBRRE-—RTEE  BREANTETS  SEBBR2H—H -

It launched a high-end brand “LINEA ROSA” featuring trendsetting designs and premium
quality. It has attracted overwhelming attention and has been well received by the market. In
addition, le saunda MEN has been repositioned as the light luxury brand for fashionable men.
HEAZMEARESRENRHDE [LINEA ROSA] - TSR ERERRIFORE -
AN - le saunda MENEE E iz A0 15 SR B E S mbE o

The Group has ceased its production line at Shunde district in Foshan, China, and has
switched to a brand retailing operating model with products entirely procured from external
subcontractors.

AREEKIERPEFLTIEERNEES  XAZHAIMBERNRETELERR -

“le saunda 'Y Collection” with a designed concept of “Be yourself” was launched through online
channels, targeting the young customer group.
S FEER - N [ERHMEC] AFEETIESH [lesaunda Y Collection] R EFEHEL -

The Group has enhanced the brand's visual effects, upgraded the operating logo and
changed its colour to reshape the brand's light luxury fashion and vibrant image.
AEBRIAMBREBUR > ARLERFREREZAG - DAkl o8& m R EE S
JER o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Group recognises the importance of good environmental
management and sustainable development, so the Group
has all along been in strict compliance of the relevant
environmental protection laws and standards enacted in the
places of its operations, including the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented multiple environmental
protection measures in various business processes and
work premises, including retail stores, warehouses, and
offices. The measures included:

Green supply chain management

During the stages of product design and operation
planning, the Group prioritises the adoption of products
and packing materials made of environmentally-friendly
materials, and focuses on partnership with those
suppliers possessing environmental technology. Moreover,
the Group is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain.

Facilities
In the configuration of the facilities at the retail stores, the

Group has implemented LED lighting fixtures as one of
the energy saving measures.

Daily operations

For minimisation of paper use, the Group advocates the
“paperless” office, actively promotes electronic information
management system and set up communication devices
to facilitate phone and video conference for reduction in
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse gases (“GHG”)
arisen from transportation.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS

There were full of uncertainties in the global economy and
trade relations, the current economy of Mainland China
has yet to show significant and enduring good momentum
in its recovery. The Group still adheres to a positive
attitude in formulating and adjusting its operating policies
for sustainable development. The board of directors (the
“Board”) of the Group oversees the ESG matters in the
context of current business strategy and ensures that
business operations in continued compliance with local
laws and regulations of the regions where the business is
operating, thereby safeguarding the interests of the Group
and stakeholders as well as enhancing the corporate
brand image.

Through different functional departments and working
groups, the Group regularly collects environmental, social
and governance information and then consolidates,
analyses, and discloses performance in the ESG report.
At the annual Board meeting, the Board members review
the performance disclosed in the ESG report to assure
it is aligned with the Group’s business strategy and is
complying to the laws and regulations, and to identify
sustainability topics that are important to the Group
and stakeholders for making appropriate decisions and
adjusting the relevant strategies as needed. During the
reporting year, the Board has identified the ESG risks
amongst the operations, mainly in the aspects of supply
chain management and product responsibility, in which
involving the collaboration of various business partners
along the upstream and downstream value chain, as well
as product quality management and intellectual property
right protection.

One of the Group’s long-term brand management
initiatives is the green growth ideology. The Group
implements a new supplier assessment system to choose
suppliers who align with the Group’s green attitude and
set goals for waste reduction, energy conservation, and
emission reduction in order to foster a green society. To
further cut carbon emissions, environmentally-friendly
materials were employed, such as the newest shoe box
packaging.
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BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
(CONTINUED)

Social and governance matters include but not limited to
product responsibility, complaint handling, the general
disclosure regarding company’s policies on product
labelling, advertising, consumer privacy and any remedies
if needed.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that effective communication as
well as accurate and timely information disclosure will
strengthen the confidence of various stakeholders.
The management establishes regular communication
with the various stakeholders for timely exchange of
views and solicitation of feedbacks from each other.
Where appropriate, it will also share the latest business
information and seek to understand the demand
for corporate social responsibility from respective
stakeholders, which helps the Group in achieving different
goals of corporate sustainable development.

The Group believes that employees are important assets.
Therefore, the Group has maintained good relationship
with the employees and strived to keep a low employee
turnover rate for improving the operational capability and
efficiency of the employees as well as promoting team
spirit among them. Upholding the quality of the products
and services is the way to meet the consumers’ needs
and to enhance the business performance. As a result,
maintaining long-term good partnership with suppliers is
also one of the main goals of the Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS HBiFHhBEBRE)

(CONTINUED)

Key stakeholders and the associated channels for FE#EHFEHNERBEENEREDS:

communication with them:

Stakeholders
560E

Main channels of communication

TEBBRE

Customers
X

Social Media
R

Member Newsletters
& 8B

Customer Surveys (Questionnaires, Phone Calls, E-mails)
EFEE(ME 5 8H)

Official Website
B 7 48 uh

Market Research
RS

Employees

(=3=]

Electronic Communication Platform
ETBBTA

Internal E-mails and Memos
NEEB N EE

Communication Sessions with Employees
BIAERE &

Training
3

Suppliers
HIER

Procurement Contracts
KEASR

Site Inspection
1518 5

Code of Conduct for Suppliers

HEREITASTE

Supplier Evaluations

e AT 4
Community/Charity Groups Partnership Programmes
HEEEEE CRGEE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Step 1: Identify topics on environmental, social
and governance

In accordance with the Stock Exchange’s the ESG Guide
as the framework for materiality assessment, and taking
into account of factors such as corporate development
strategies, industry development trends, regulatory and
market requirements, the stakeholder questionnaire was
developed to proceed survey on 23 sustainability topics
in four categories: environmental protection, employment
and labour management, operating practices and
community investment.

Step 2: Identify stakeholders and set up
questionnaires

The stakeholders identified as utmost importance to
the Group were customers, suppliers and employees
respectively. According to their respective perceptions
and expectations, specific content of the topics was
formulated in their respective questionnaires. The
questionnaires were then distributed to the sampled
stakeholders, whose feedback was collected within the
specified time frame.

Step 3: Evaluate and identify material topics

Through statistical analysis of survey feedback from
external stakeholders, and review of the Group’s corporate
strategies and the priorities of internal stakeholders, data
of both external and internal demands was consolidated
for plotting the “ESG Materiality Matrix Diagram”. From the
aforesaid 23 sustainability topics, the ESG material topics
of the Group were identified (in text in the table below, as
well within the brown square in the upper right corner of
the matrix diagram).
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

ESG MATERIALITY MATRIX DIAGRAM

Significance of External Stakeholders’ Concern
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED) EEMFFL(E)
Legend ESG topics Legend ESG topics
] ESG#& & ] ESGE &
Ela Control for emission of air pollutants/ | Sba Supply Chain Management
greenhouse gas e IR
ERSRY, R E L BT
E1b Wastewater treatment Sbb Green procurement
& 7K Bz 12 RERE
Elc Solid waste handling S6a Product/service quality
& 58 BE E W0 I8 Ewm/ R 5E
E2a Energy conservation S6b Customers’ health and safety
8 49 82 R EFNREEREZ S
E2b Water conservation S6c¢ Customer service and complaint
87 49 A K handling mechanism
B PR N 1 5 BRI
E3 Operations minimising environmental | S6d Intellectual property right protection
impacts MBEENEE
BAOEIRBEZEN L E
E4 Strategy against climate change S6e Customer data privacy protection
R B b FE B R S BEFERLEAIRE
Sla Employment and staff benefits S7a Corporate governance
[E 1% &% B TiE A SEER
S1b Equal, anti-discrimination, and S7b Prevention of corruption/bribery and
diversified working environment money laundering
TE REBEMEITIERE ik &5 BEEE & st R 8
S2 Occupational safety and health S7c Anti-competitive practices
BEZ2REE REEFITR
S3 Employee development and training S8 Community contribution
EEEIEER 1t 1= F B
S4 Prevention of child and forced labour
EHET Kk®BET
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)
The Group’s top five ESG topics were as follows:

RUSE ~ A BT

EEMFTMELE)
REEEAEESGEBENT

FY 2024/2025

ESG Topics
—E-MHEE
ESG:& &

FY 2024/2025

Corresponding Report Section
“E-N/HEE
HENREED

FY 2023/2024

ESG Topics
“EZ=Z/NEE
ESG:& &

Customers’ health and
safety (S6b)
XEFMRERREZ 2

Social Aspect #t & & &
6) Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product/service quality
(S6a)
Em/ R 5E

Prevention of corruption/
bribery and money
laundering (S7b)

BrilE &5 RERE Rk B

Social Aspect t+ & & &
7)  Anti-Corruption
R&S

Customer data privacy
protection (S6e)

BEFERILEBHNRE

Product/service quality
(S6a)
Em/ R oE

Social Aspect #t & & &
6) Product Responsibility
EmEE

Customers’ health and
safety (S6b)
EPMERERZ 2

Customer data privacy
protection (S6e)
BEFPEMLERRE

Social Aspect #t & #i I
6) Product Responsibility
EmEE

Prevention of corruption/
bribery and money
laundering (S7b)

BiiE &5, FRRE ok B 8

Intellectual property right
protection (S6d)
MBEENMEE

Social Aspect +t & & &
6) Product Responsibility
EmAaE

Occupational safety and
health (S2)
BEZ2MER
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

To enhance the granularity of the materiality assessment
results, the number of topics covered in the stakeholder
questionnaire were increased to 23. During the materiality
assessment in the reporting year, four out of the top five
material ESG topics were identified similar to those in
stakeholder survey conducted in the previous year. In
addition, regarding the above-mentioned ESG topics, the
Group has also in place a description of relevant policies
in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

In accordance with the requirements of “Comply or
Explain” disclosures for all aspects in the ESG Guide,
the Group has undertaken the disclosure obligation
of pertaining to the compliance of the relevant laws
and regulations of significant impacts, as well as the
“Mandatory Disclosure Requirements” stipulated in the
ESG Guide.

For the year ended 28 February 2025, the Group identified
that there was no significant non-compliance with the laws
and regulations pertinent to the ESG aspects covered by
this report.

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS

Environmental aspect
1) Environmental Management Policies

Being a responsible company, the Group advocates
5R principles for reducing environmental pollution
and raising resource utilisation, namely Refuse,
Reduce, Reuse, Repair and Recycle.

Refuse

For product design, it is dedicated to the use
of non-hazardous and environmentally-friendly
materials. It is also the Group’s policy to pursue
“green procurement”, which requires the suppliers
to maximise the supply of raw materials possessing
degradable characteristics (e.g. shoe boxes) in order
to reduce environmental hazards.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

7)

Environmental Management Policies (Continued)
Refuse (Continued)

Also, production subcontractors are required to
optimise the production processes and industrial
engineering and to persist in the use of more
environmentally-friendly materials in the manufacture
of packaging materials for finished goods of shoes,
with the aim to minimising environmental pollution.

Reduce

Production subcontractors are required to upgrade
equipment and technology to reduce waste and
resources consumption. Administrative measures are
adopted within the Group for reducing environmental
impacts, such as arrangement of video conference in
replacement of remote physical meeting for reduction
of GHG emission incurred from taking transportation
like aircraft.

Reuse

For the recyclable wastes (example: packaging
cartons, plastic bags), methodologies for their
classification and reuse have been established. Also,
for internal office operation, it involves the reuse of
single-printed papers and the practice of double-
sided printing.

Repair

“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) is the basis of the Group’s after-sales service.
To encourage saving of resources, repairing service
is offered to customers under specified conditions.

Recycle

To support recycling, the Group has appointed
vendors to handle recyclable resources, such as
paper waste.

)
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

2)

Environmental Targets

The Group adopts business model of brand owner
and retailer, focusing on product design and brand
management, without involvement in the operation
of self-owned production facilities. As a result,
there was no significant emission of exhaust gases
or sewage, nor generation of hazardous wastes.
Under the operation of the reporting year, the
usage of water in office and retail operation was
minimal, the target on water use efficiency was not
material and hence not required to be established.
Nevertheless, the Group is striving to set the
following environmental targets for contribution
towards environmental protection:

RERTESHEENERE ()

REEHE (&)

2) REAE

AEEXRAEMEEEERNER
B BrIEMRLABEERE R
BEYEBREEBENZE  BiMm
AR IR B K 8 RE SR S RE K B HE
W UBAEELEEERY - NW®

SFAMNZET  AEENORAE

TELERRKERD  ABKkERA
ARYFEZREEERAM AR

3 BEAREBDARIL FIIRRER -
BHARBRERMEE D

GHG” emission.
BAPEREELEIEE
BERBIBEHRNREBETLT

o
~

B

\|

Environmental Directional

targets statements Measures taken during the year
RREERE T3 ) 1 Ay BR it N FEFTREU ik

Emission Reduce the use of 1. For retail materials and gift products,
reduction transportation means minimised the number of shipping
WA E which could incur “direct frequencies by consolidating the

scattered orders of procurement

from different locations, that reduced
emission incurred by additional

fuel consumption in the course of
transportation.

HZEEYHRNER [ERSRBUR
DEZMTHETEMERBEINOLEE R
o ERRL BN B EAME
AV HERR ©

Reduced the number of business trip
meeting through the use of video,
teleconferencing or other electronic
online communication tool in order to
reduce GHG emission incurred from use
of transportation.

FRAGCHAGE BEFEERAIHMEIR
FRAITAR  BAEEgE B
RERAZBTAMERNRERIEIMN
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued)

2) Environmental Targets (Continued)

B - A E AR Ol

RERMEERNES (A

REHE(E)
2) REHEGE)

operation
WO EERBEPELEN
MEERED

Environmental Directional

targets statements Measures taken during the year
RIRER F5 o)t B B it AN FE TR ALY 18 i

Waste reduction Reduce paper waste 1. Reused paper cartons received by

WAL REEY generated from the retailing operations. During the reporting

year, it is estimated that there was a
reduction of approximately 31 tonnes of
paper wastes resulting from this practice.
BREASERIEMBEWRNAE - BB
Ui - NFEMGER DI A E
REEY) -

Use of non-laminated technology for
paper-based packaging, e.g., shoe boxes,
gift packaging boxes. This enables and
facilitates recycling of paper wastes.
RABGBRISNAEEE M- E2 -
EmBEas EREFEANEKES
EMESMERE -

Strengthened electronic operations

and file management to reduce paper
use and consumption in offices. This
included scanning and saving documents
whenever possible as an alternative

to printing and utilising double-sided
printing.

MEEFEHEEREREE - B
RENBRAE  EEFERERER
BHERTF - EEAIENSF o
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BAHE A A IR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)
2) Environmental Targets (Continued)

RERMEERNES (A

REHE(E)
2) REHEGE)

vehicles are used, in
order to reduce fuel
consumption.
RABRFE MR
RIE WA AR =
BUR A mAEN B -

Environmental Directional

targets statements Measures taken during the year

RERRE T3 6] 1 B BR A B AR ER BU AN $5 e

Energy use Adopt alternative means 1. Changed the sourcing way with material
efficiency to reduce the number of suppliers: it was changed to direct

BEIR(E AR s times that the company’s delivery to the subcontracted warehouses

of third-party logistics company at
different regions in closer proximity,
which aim to reduce additional truck
transportation distance and associated
fuel consumption caused by secondary
transportation.
EROHHERNRE TN A REEE
FIZEERAMCNE=FWRAEH
SNELRE R A A R E T A B EE AN
WERERERLMHEE -

Adopted video conferencing applications
for internal meeting arrangement, thereby
reducing the number of business trips for
intra-group meetings and hence reducing
the use of vehicles.

KARAEREE  RIEARARIAE
g% MRS AEERERENSZE
ERR EFRLOERERORR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

3)

Emissions

As a brand and retail operator, the Group does not
have owned manufacturing facilities and hence does
not have sewage and exhaust emissions arisen from
production activities. Nevertheless, the Group’s retail
stores and offices, despites no significant sewage
and exhaust emissions from these premises, also
contributed certain amount of emission of GHG
through electricity consumption and transportation
involved in their related operations.

During the reporting year, the total GHG emissions
of this year were lower as compared to the
corresponding period of last year. In terms of the
Group’s revenues in the reporting year, the emission
intensity was 4.45 tonnes carbon dioxide (CO,)
equivalent to revenues per million in RMB.

The retailing operation of the Group did not involve
the generation of hazardous wastes. Therefore, no
hazardous waste was recorded in the reporting year.

B - A E AR Ol

RERTESHEENERE ()

REEE (&)

3)

Y

AEBER—RmBEMTEZERD -
YREBRXRNEERE BMA%
BOR B 4 E AR A5 K & BE SR A B
Mo R YRAEENZE)EH
EMAEEE BEELSMRE
BEMSKRERFER EMEH
EBA N EBRE R MER BN

LEEA-—EMNENEERE -

RBEEFRN AFREREBEIEN
ENBREFRBAL - HBAEE
REEFANEERTE B8
AR & U A BE 44518 — |1k

BEE -

AEBNTERETRALLEE
BEVONELS AERBEFAL
ACBEEERMNEE -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERtSHBNRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued) BISEE(8F)
3) Emissions (Continued) 3) HHY(E)
The following table set forth the amount of emission THEBEZETHRREERNBERE
and the intensities from GHG and non-hazardous = B2 M A igﬁ % 3 ft% mEER=ENRE
wastes in the reporting year: RE
A1: Emissions Unit Year ended Year ended
Al BER YD By 28 February 2025 29 February 2024
BE-ZT_1F BE-Z-_DF
ZAZtNBLEEE ZAZThBLEFE
GHG
BERE
Direct QHQ emissions %Scope 1) tonnes CO, equivalent 8.85 9.09
ERFHAZREE (HE) —EltikEE
Energy indirect GHG emissions tonnes CO, equivalent 1,299.92 1,700.27
t&m@2ﬁ\ M-St REE
EREEERAE RE 2 (HE2):?
Total GHG emissions3 tonnes GO, equivalent 1,308.77 1,709.36
RERBINEE M-_fftiREE
Total GHG emissions intensity tonnes CO, equivalent 4.45 4.26
BRERBHENATE revenue (million in RMB)
A Ve
BREARBEREA
Wastes
BEY
Non-hazardous wastes* tonne 6.42 6.25
mEEZEY ]
Non-hazardous wastes emission kg/revenue (million in RMB) 21.82 15.57
intensit NT/BEEARE
EEEEVMHERER EEBA

Direct GHG emission was mainly originated from fuel combustion during gasoline consumption by vehicles, diesel consumption
by electnmty generator in Guangzhou office, and natural gas consumption by dormitory in Guangzhou. Method of calculation was
based on “2006 Inter overnmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.
ERREREE B EMNRATRERE  BNEEAARSIESFRR AP - 518 5% 2 £ 12006 2 H iR #9 (B
Jﬁﬁtﬁtt%“1K§F'EJ§§,E\@(IPCC)I%/MI* m/ﬁita&w

Energy indirect GHG emission was originated from consumption of electricity purchased from external source. Regional grid
emission factors used in the calculation were referenced to the values |ssued by HK Electric’s Sustainability Report and National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) in People’s Republic of Chin N
Hb/ﬁf’ﬁ?&/ﬂn:# BRENBE OB EENR - GHEBRMRANRE Eait%%/‘i%?t#ﬁﬁllvzﬁtJQ%Wék’*JTﬁ-i BR{BERF
=N R RN B B 5 5 JR M B & & & (NDRC) | P 35 6 1Y BUU(E ©

Global Warming Potential (GWP) adopted in this GHG calculation were based on the values disclosed in the Sixth Assessment
Report (AR6) of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPC 2 N
BEREGERARANEREREEECGCWP)REEN(BNEREZ (L EFIZ B (IPCC)E /NIRRT 4 ¥R 45 (AR6)) T 2 &) #11E -
Since the warehousing has been subcontracted by the Group to the third-party logistics company, therefore, courier plastic bags
the disposed cartons and paper boxes generated from the courier of product returns were destroyed by the third-party logistics
company, which consolidated such wastes from other merchants and hence could not provide the figures on the weight of such
wastes generated by the Group in the reporting year. Consequently, the aforesaid figures were simply estimated based on the
previous experience, Starting from November 2024, goods returns from e-commerce perform and retail store have been centrally
handled by the Group. During the reporting year, the rate of unconditional returns from customers increased, resulting in an actual
amount of non-hazardous waste was slightly higher as compared to the corresponding period of last year. At the same time, the
Group’s sales in the reporting year have fallen significantly, so non-hazardous wastes emission intensity was higher comparing to

the last year.

EAAEEEED LG /‘it%ﬁ’&ﬂ Wti%l%ﬁth%imlkﬁi@% %,&ﬁ&%#&fﬁ\i&iimaﬁf%iﬁiqﬂ%
1%%5’95&%5@%—% Eﬁ&ﬁi FIAE LS B AEBELEEYNEE THSBRRERATNEELRMERNME
FRAE E’\Mﬁ?"ﬂE?E:g:@%i*ﬂﬁﬁﬁé__l?ﬁﬁ’é@%?é‘&%%EZﬁfEHﬂ$%%}E*@E°E¢$&%¢W =P R R
E%%EFE%J;?%%%%%&%%ZEB’%%&%W&%E&%@EH}%oiﬁi LRI RMEFA  AEBEZHERBERA - FIAESE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

RERMSERN®RE (&)

BIEEE (&)

3) #HY(E)
ABREREERBIATOESEI -
FTEFBERNLHERENTERE
202443 A1H £202542 A28H Hi
FTEREANBEE=Z AR ENH
W e Z B B 20235128 58 5K 1 &

E-ERETEUARMNENEZ T
éfﬂﬂﬁ‘fﬁﬁl& LAT%%W@%TEE
MEB=BEREINGHEELER

3) Emissions (Continued)

This report only disclosed on identifying the Scope
3 GHG emissions coming from Le Saunda’s Hong
Kong head office, all offices and retail shops in China
within the period of 1st of March 2024 to 28th of
February 2025. Considering the Scope 3 screening
exercise completed in December 2023, together with
the availability of the necessary operational activity
data, the estimation results of the significant Scope

3 emission categories were summarised in the table

below:
GHG Emissions GHG Emissions
(tonne CO,e)/ (tonne CO,e)/
Ratio (%) Ratio (%)
Year ended Year ended
28 February 2025| 29 February 2024
Scope 3 GHG BERBER BERBER
Emission Category (B-EHREER)/ | B-ELtHER)/
No. & Name Emission Source BBl (B E) HAl (R
EE-RZERE Details Activity Data Type BE-2-1F BE-2C-RF
BHENGRRER | FRRFARE EHRBEL ZAZtNBLEE| ZAZThBLFE
1. Purchased Goods Extraction, — Quantity of different shoe types 2,081.97 3,600.52
and Services production and purchased from suppliers (81.25%) (86.06%)
RBENANRE transportation of TEEEEENTAERHE
shoes, handbag
and other service — Spending of different services
purchased purchased from external
R EENEHMH service providers
BEMET  FEM N PRBRETBENTR
Bt MR REH XL
3. Fuel- and Energy- Extraction, — Quantity of diesel purchased 452.47 548.75
related Activities production and from suppliers (17.66%) (13.11%)
(Not included transportation of fuel THEEREENEHEE
those in Scope 1 (diesel and Liquefied
or Scope 2) Natural Gas ("LNG")) — Quantity of LNG purchased
SRR 3 R A and electricity from suppliers
EH(ABEPL | purchased e EEBEENINGHE
ERSE-—R=- BRI EEMERA
HE %) ﬁ% S B IRRE (Sm A — Quantity of electricity
Bl X ARLNG)) purchased from power
%D EW)) company
HENRARENENHUE
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued)

3) Emissions (Continued)

REHE(E)

3) HHY(E)

RERMEERNES (A

worksites
BIRGAMIfEnE
LANRBESR

ETRIMIRAZEN A

Travelling distance between
working site and employee’s
home
BEITENEMLE AN
SEE

Number of working days for
each employee in FY2024/25
ShIBTH2024/25FEMTIE
R

GHG Emissions GHG Emissions
(tonne CO,e)/ (tonne CO,e)/
Ratio (%) Ratio (%)
Year ended Year ended
28 February 2025| 29 February 2024
Scope 3 GHG BERBER BERBHER
Emission Category (B-EHRER)/ | B-E{tHRER)/
No. & Name Emission Source Bl (B EL) Bl (Bt
EE-RERE Details Activity Data Type BZ-2-1F HE-E-MmE
FRERGERER | FRRFARR EHRBEL ZRZtNBLEE| ZB=tNBLFE
4. Upstream Transportation —  Weight of incoming goods 218 2.78
Transportation and distribution of (shoes and handbags) from (0.08%) (0.07%)
and Distribution products purchased suppliers
ThERNS % (shoes and handbags) fefEmEENEN(ETFN
between tier 1 FRIMES
suppliers and Le
Saunda’s warehouse — Means of transportation
HEINFRSERE involved in delivering goods
— Rt EENRRS from supplier to Le Saunda
ANEEZHNER HHEEBRIRBIANENR
M5 # BLIIE L YR
— Delivery distance for each
delivery trip from supplier to Le
Saunda
HHERIRBIABRRE
TENRRERE
7. Employee Transportation of — Means of transportation 24.76 30.36
Commuting employeses between involving in employee (0.97%) (0.73%)
ETIEY their homes and their commuting
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL - AhE KRS

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued)

3) Emissions (Continued)

RFEE (K)
3) HHY(E)

RERMEERNES (A

GHG Emissions GHG Emissions
(tonne CO,e)/ (tonne CO,e)/
Ratio (%) Ratio (%)
Year ended Year ended
28 February 2025| 29 February 2024
Scope 3 GHG BERBER BERBHER
Emission Category (B-EHRER)/ | B-E{tHRER)/
No. & Name Emission Source Bl (B kL) BBl ()
EE-RERE Details Activity Data Type BHZ-2C1F HE-2-MmE
FRERGRRER | FRRFARR EHRBEL ZRZtNBLFE| ZB=thBLFE
8. Downstream Transportation — Weight of outgoing goods 0.99 1.25
Transportation and distribution (shoes and handbags) from Le (0.04%) (0.03%)
and Distribution of products sold Saunda
THERNH % between Le Saunda’s ERBESLENEN(ET
warehouse to the end NFER)MES
consumer
RBHANRELSR | — Means of transportation
REBEZFNER involved in delivering goods
EHANDH from Le Saunda to downstream
customers
HERBHAINTHREPRNE
WS REER A
— Delivery distance for each
delivery trip from Le Saunda
downstream customers
HRBHAINTHREPEAR
BETENRNER
Total £ : 2,562.37 4,183.61
(100%) (100%)
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

3)

4)

Emissions (Continued)

The quantification methodologies used in this
disclosure were calculations based on GHG activity
data multiplied by GHG emission or carbon removal
factors. The activity data involved in this GHG Scope
3 emissions. The emission and removal factors used
in the calculations were referring to:

e China Products Carbon Footprint Factors
Database (2022)

o UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting (2021 and 2023)

° US Environmental Protection Agency USEEIO
v2.0.1-411 data

° MTR Sustainable Finance Report (2022)

Use of Resource

Each operating region of the Group has adopted the
appropriate equipment and administrative measures
to enhance the effectiveness in use of resources.
Part of the measures included:

e Through re-routing the delivery service, the
usage of vehicle is reduced and hence the
consumption of gasoline and diesel oils is also
reduced;

e  Through reusing the cartons and paper boxes
from parcel deliveries amongst offices and retail
departments, the usage of paper resources is
reduced;

le saunda holdings Itd. @ &7 FHER G R A A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)
4) Use of Resource (Continued)

° In regional offices, seats are better planned
so that no need to switch on the lights when
some area have no one there. LED lighting is
preferred. Employees are encouraged to switch
off the computers and equipment when they are
not in use, while lighting is switched off during
lunch break and after office hours. A framework
for energy use supervision has been reinforced
on practices regarding light-off when not in use,
and setting temperature and fan control of air-
conditioners;

e The Group advocates “paperless” office and
has been promoting electronic information
management system. With the use of electronic
files, it reduces unnecessary use of papers.

The data for consumption of electricity and water
in Mainland China has covered for all offices and
retail stores located in other regions, including
those located in shopping malls/areas managed by
property management companies.

B - A E AR Ol

RERTESHEENERE ()

REEHE (&)

4) BIREH (&)

e RIWEM W QB EAMGD
ENESG REBEAMETHR
B RBAKAEREHLEDEE
FEBMAETTHIER Bk
EEIRTFEANERERA
ERHEOERBE - RNTIRE
BEBELTHEABRBERE -8
BNERAETHOREERE
EHE PEERABREEK
THAEERRBRNDZEEENE
/8

e AEBREEMEMRLIBRAE
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BBEERETFE BOIALBE
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resource (Continued)

The table below set forth the consumption and the
associated intensities for the main resources of the
Group during the reporting year. Apart from the
calculation for consumption intensities of packaging
materials (papers and plastics) was based on
annual goods received quantities, the consumption
intensities of other resources were calculated in
terms of revenues per million in RMB.

During the reporting year, due to the Group’s
optimization of physical stores, the total annual
consumption of various resources decreased.
However, the sales decline this year was relatively
large, except for packaging materials (paper
materials), the consumption density of remaining
various resources was accordingly higher as
compared to the corresponding period of last year.

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERMSERN®RE (&)

REEHE (&)

4)

BREH (&)
TEBMINARNEERBEEFANETE
EREMERATZE BRTEKDH
(BT MBMNEREERNLEF
KmARBRERMAEEZEZI  H

fib 1) & R = FW&WhEEAE%
BUWORETE

REEFA ARAKERHER
EERE FIAREERN 2 F4
FERD - A AEZHEKIE
VA RTEEDHGEEM ZIN - &R
TEEERNERZER L BEE

FRBRG -

A2: Use of Resources Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
A2: &R B BE-ZE_-_I1F BE-T-_IF
—A=tNB =A=thAH
LtFE LHFE
Annual Consumption by resource type
BREHERNEZFREE
Electricity KWh 2,412,336 2,920,307
EH TR B
Gasoline litre 3,700 3,670
U D
Diesel oil® litre 100 200
5 e DF
Natural gas cubic metre 84 104
RAR K
Water cubic metre 3,816 4,772
7K VAP
Packaging materials — tonne 85.74 329.94
Papers 73
KR () e
Packaging materials — tonne 1.02 1.62
Plastics® 0
LWEH(BA)e
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BENHESHEENRSE (B)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental aspect (Continued) RIBEE (&)
4) Use of Resource (Continued) 4) EBFREH(E)
A2: Use of Resources Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
A2: ERE A B BE-Z-1F BE=-ZT-NF
—A=tNB =A=t1A
LtFEE LHFE
Consumption intensity by resource type
BHERNERAEE
Electricity kWh/revenue (million in RMB) 8,202.55 7,274.80
W) TERK /"SEEAREERK
Gasoline Iitre/revenueimillion in RMB) 12.58 9.14
i A/ EEEARBER
Diesel oil® litre/revenue (million in RMB) 0.71 0.50
e h e NA/EEBEBARBER
Natural gas cubic metre/revenue 0.34 0.26
KRR (million in RMB)
NAK/BEEARKEK
Water cubic metre/revenue 12.98 11.89
7K (million in RMB)
AR/ BEEARKEK
Packaging materials — kg/annual goods received 0.23 0.44
Paper® quantity (unit)
BEYE (Ao DT/ EZFERMAREE
(1)
Packaging materials — kg/annual goods received <0.01 <0.01
Plastics® quantity (unit)
BEME(BM)e DT/ ZFERMAREE
(B17)
5 Diesel oil consumption was disclosed in the reporting year and was originated from the rental use of diesel generator set in

response to the blackout at the building where the Guangzhou office was situated.
BRERBESFANEARERANBENPBAEMENAERAFEMAB AL MEBHHEEE -

6 The figure was based on the amount of packaging materials consumed by external suppliers.
BRI DHREFERODEYRHERE -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental aspect (Continued)

5)

ESG Environmental Performance — Climate
Change

In response to extreme weather incurred by the
climate change in recent years, the Group has
identified the possible emergency situations such
as the flooding risk caused by rainstorm weather.
For addressing the risks associated with the
relevant natural disasters, emergency plan has been
established to prevent the occurrence of dangers
and damages and the measures include but not
limited to:

e  Securing of the outdoor equipment before the
hoisting of super typhoon signal;

o Instruction to employees to ensure all windows
closed and regular window inspection prior to
typhoon;

° Regarding the material transportation risk
caused by extreme weather, evaluation of the
impacts to the procurement of raw materials
(such as price and quantity) will be conducted;

o For tackling resource strain caused by climate
change, contingency plan for changing the
product compositions will be established.

Moreover, with regards to the climate change
mainly attributed to GHG, the Group has adopted
measures mentioned in the previous sections of this
report regarding energy conservation and emission
reduction, with the aim to reduce emission of GHG
and ultimately to mitigate the tendency of climate
change.

le saunda holdings Itd. @ &7 FHER G R A A

REHE(A)

ESGREAM — AIZEZ LAY

ﬂ@%@
i#f””bﬂﬁmﬁﬂm%ﬂ $

5)

A “Wl%@%ﬁL&mma

o T MABEEALEMEKKE

% HITESTEE  LATEFHEE D

R hkWEELE  BEEBEETRE

N

e HiHmERELA  BEZEI
VER A

e RA BREIMRMEERL
b WEHimEHE

o  FAiRum KR EREME A E & &
% A Y REME R B (ER
ME$E)MTE:

o HUREBEENLAEKXNERE
o SlENREMEASRETE -

B THRIAEREEEHARE

b ERE > NEE B BT RS

“m%% ﬁw?m ﬁﬂﬂ/m

m@ﬁ°
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect
1) Employment
Recruitment and Promotion Policies

The Group only considers the capabilities of job
applicants as the primary assessment criteria, and
reviews the job performance, experience, business
performance and competence of employee as the
conditions for promotion. The Group has developed
practices of “employment management for persons
with disabilities” to actively consider the job
applications by persons with different disabilities. In
the past, ethnic minorities have been employed to
create a diversified working environment. The Group
would not reject the job application nor review the
promotion based on the attributes of applicants such
as gender, disability, race, family status, etc.

As at 28 February 2025, the total number of full-
time employees in the Group was 595 of which 12
persons were employees in Hong Kong. On the other
hand, there was a total of 29 part-time employees
in Mainland China, while 1 part-time employee was
engaged in Hong Kong.

In the reporting year, the overall average monthly
employee turnover rate was 4.44% (2023/24: 2.62%).
In particular, the Group continued to optimise the
coverage of retail stores in Mainland China, resulting
in a higher average monthly employee turnover rate
compared to last year. On the other hand, due to the
closure of the cosmetic business in Hong Kong last
year, the average monthly employee turnover rate in
last year was higher as compared to this year.

Remunerations and Employee Benefits

The Group not only meets the minimum wage
requirements in each operating location, but also
offers remunerations which are competitive on the
market to attain a higher staff retention rate.

RUSE ~ A BT

RERTESHEENERE ()

HEEHRE
1) 1ERg
BELREFTRETH

AEBEREBEREENENIERE
EERZNEE - RAMBRENTIERR -
R RENMBENERB TR
AEBEHERRABREE]RZ
Fr K8 15 2 B A R 5= Rk A & 1 JB 2R
R BECREEBERIBERKR
BIEZ TN ITHERE - AEET
SRAMEMN BRK BEREKXEHS
fIEREMEREEENRFRIE
REFTHNEEERE -

RZZE-_RF-_A=-+NB K&EHE
2B T AZEBE5A EF12
ABEAEBIL: B/ HEAFZEE
THZHELE - PEIARMERIET20%
REBABETIAREBET -

RBEEFRN BEBONBATEHES
MR RBLIAA% (ZE =/ NF:
2.62%)c Hep  REBFEELPE
N ZTEENEBEEHE ERFAF
HEERAEREFRAS - 5—AH
MREFEBEMEBBE - FTA
EF2EBRTFHEEBREAELSFER

&l

FOSBENEIRN @

AEETENAREENHKRET
EMER UREAEMSEHRFNN
FMAE Az -EARSNET

annual report 2025 ik 2025 101



I’\\ IRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL

- E AR R

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Employment (Continued)
Remunerations and Employee Benefits (Continued)

In terms of employee benefits, we have always
been complying with social security and other
legal benefits in PRC, including social insurance
contributions for all employees. In addition, long
service awards will be granted to permanent
employees after they have completed every five
consecutive years of service with the Group, as kind
of encouragement and enhancement of employees’
sense of belonging. Different operating regions
will provide other forms of employees’ benefits in
accordance with different job positions.

Working Hours

To achieve work-life balance, the Group neither
advocates nor forces employees to work overtime.
However, due to the needs of different positions,
certain employees may still need to work overtime
provided that all overtime work must be done on a
voluntary basis and in compliance with the relevant
regulations of the operating region. Furthermore,
the Group is honoured to be awarded by different
organisations over the years, demonstrating
its continued commitment to maintain a good
employment relationship:

(1)  Awarded the “Caring Company Logo” for 19
consecutive years (2006-2025) from The Hong
Kong Council of Social Service;

(2) Participated in the “Happiness-a-Work
Promotional Scheme” and was awarded as
a “Happy Company” for 8 consecutive years
(2017-2025); and

(8) Passed the “Employees Retraining Board
(ERB) Manpower Developer Award Scheme”
assessment and was renewed as a “Manpower
Developer”.

102 e saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERMSERN®RE (&)

HEHEHE(E)

)

1E1E (&)
FEBLETREM A E(E)
EREIRAMITE  BKM—EETH
BEEBEteREREIMEFRERT
MEMNFBEER BERAMEE
BIREMER B AEAEEE
BRGmEBSFZIENES  #r &
SREBRBEE u%ﬁ@&%ﬁﬁ
BENEBR SEERNTERTA
ukﬁﬁ@ﬁimélﬁﬂo

TeERE A M
AEBEFHIHELR  RMLT
TREKBEREREMMIIE BEME
TRAIHELUNETE: BHEES
AR EREIE  MABMHBEEL
EBMBEREBRRAT WYERFE
EIEMCH BB NI TIENEE -

FA[#EIT o BN REBZFREE

TREENET - %@$EIEE

FEEEE ENFERRE

(1) 3 B194F (2006-2025) # 5(&F
/%ﬁ”ﬁm&%5>ﬁ%T%”
ﬁa ‘&J*‘r o

2 2H[ELIEMIHEREE -
EHES ¢(2017—2025)ﬁ%%;¢7,%fﬁﬁ
D1 |

B) MIERBAA X ZAFE PR
BAEREFMETCEATLE]
HYEAR o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BERHESHENRS (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social aspect (Continued) e (E)
1) Employment (Continued) 1) EMEE)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics R B B M b B
B1: Employment Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
B1: E & By BE-Z-_0F BE-ZT-NF
—R=+AB Z—A=thH
LtFEE LFE
a) Total Number of employees? person 625 1,068
AETH#EAH A
Full-time employees person 595 927
THET A
Part-time employees person 30 141
HREET A

Full time employees by gender
THBET — RHR

Male person 52 61
B A
Female person 543 866
g A

Full time employees by age group
2HET — EFHRMAER

18-30 years old person 58 85
18-307% A
31-45 years old person 405 671
31-4573% A
46-60 years old person 131 169
46-605% A
>60 years old person 1 2
>607% A

Full time employees by working location
2HBET — RIEESE

Hong Kong person 12 17
& A
Mainland China person 583 910
A B A 3 A

7 The statistics by gender and age group in Mainland China and Hong Kong was based on the total number of full-time employees

only.
RUEFIRFERDERANEARETBEAMRUEZBE INESIERT -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BENHEEENRE (B)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social aspect (Continued) HEHEHE(E)
1) Employment (Continued) 1) EFE)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics MERERBIHIBEOLLE(E)
(Continued)
B1: Employment Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
B1: & & B BE—_Z_1F BZ-ZT_-_NF
—A=+NH —HA=+h8
LLFE LEFE
b) Overall Average Monthly Employee % 4.44 2.62
Turnover Rate®
b)8 A ¥ EE K Kk =xs

Full time employees by gender
2HBET — R

Male % 3.28 1.69
LY ’

Female % 4.56 4.02
1%

Full time employees by age group
THBET — BFERAR

18-30 years old % 5.64 10.5
18-307%

31-45 years old % 414 3.16
81-455%,

46-60 years old % 5.39 1.87
46-607%

>60 years old % 6.54 0.00
>6075%

Full time employees by working location
2BET — BRItEE

Hong Kong % 2.68 10.41
58
Mainland China % 4.48 2.47
BB A

8 For overall weighted average calculation of the “employee turnover rate” within the retailing business, it only took account of the

full-time employees’ mobility, given that part-time employees were engaged on irregular needs of the business and hence the
aforesaid calculation did not include the number of part-time employees.

REEXEBHIEERAXIBBINETHFES  RAA2BRAEORY AEARBEIREKETEHNFTE - utE Lt
FTEFRIWREBERB AR -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

2)

Health and Safety

For ensuring the safety of working environment and
enhancing employees’ awareness on occupational
health and safety, the Group has formulated
procedures and operating rules related to the
occupational health management system for
reference and compliance by the employees, with the
aim to reduce the occurrence of accidents.

The Group’s office operation was also concerned on
the occupational safety. Fire drills and inspections
of all fire equipment have been conducted on a
regular basis to avoid occurrence of accidents. In
the reporting year, the human resources department
of the Guangzhou office arranged employees to
participate in the first aid course by labour union for
acquiring the skills on the use of the first aid.

Despite there was no hazardous job nature identified
in the operation, in the reporting year the Group
allocated a fixed cash allowance to subsidise health
examination, for maximising the occupational health
and safety protection to employees.

During the reporting year, the Group did not identify
any significant non-compliance of the occupational
health and safety regulations and provisions in
operating regions. Also, in the past 3 consecutive
years (including the reporting year), the Group did not
identify any incident of employee’s fatality incurred
from work.

On the other hand, there was a total of 509 working
days lost due to work-related injuries (2023/24: 276
days), which all were attributed to injury incidents in
Mainland China.

RUSE ~ A BT

RERTESHEENERE ()

HEEE(E)

2)

1 = 2
RERTIFERRLENIERETH
BEREEZEZNER  A5EC
REBXHLEEERERBENREF
LRZ#ETHREEZEZL E T #
SO D EINE A o

AEENRAETEFETEIBRER
2 MBEERBTHEEERKE
BHEREEFEERLE  #REI
HE-RBEFAR - BMANER
HBLHFEI2NMITEHZHRRE &
1828 ST -

BEGELEDLARRN TR -
BAKERBREFARBEETH
RiERERENRBRES RN W
NETEIBREEZEZKORE -

RBEFA AFEABEERER
FEEEHHBENBREERERLEX
BIRARTE  tboh - B EEE=F (B
RBEFAN) AEEYLEZRRE
RIEEEMETHESE -

S—FHHE - BERIEMEBIELRN
TEBHBIES09K(ZE == /=
F:216KR) : 2 RAEHEAME A
BB EW -

annual report 2025 ik 2025

105



ENVIRONMENTAL,

BAHE A A IR

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

3)

Development and Training

For raising the professional knowledge and skKills
of employees, the Group has designated functional
departments for provision of respective trainings to
different ranks of employees, on regular basis or
upon the launch of new product or technology, in
order to equip employees with product knowledge
in a professional manner. Whenever appropriate,
contests or other forms of activities will be organised
to enhance learning motivation of employees.

Despites the aforesaid classroom trainings were
reduced, alternatively the Group adopted online
communication channel and utilised company’s
internal workgroup apps for sending articles to
employees regarding the awareness topics relevant
to environmental habits, which included low-carbon
lightings, water conservation in public areas, reduced
use of paper-based commodities, etc.

During the reporting year, the monthly average
proportion of employees under training increased by
18.73 percentage points to 47.47% (2023/24: 28.74%).
It is because the Group has increased the proportion
of training for mid-level management and junior staff.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BIERAESHENRE (B)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social aspect (Continued) HtEEHE (&)
3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) HEREZI(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics?® A AF 3 B N 55 I B A B e
B3: Development and Training Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
B3: & & K& B BE-Z_-_1F BE-T-_OF
—A=tNB =ZA=tAH
LHEE L+EE
a) Total counts of training no. of attendees 4,716 6,333
A ZTHEENAEANR AR
By gender
= 1E Rl
Male no. of attendees 71 102
S NN
Female no. of attendees 4,645 6,231
iy N
By employee category
ZIEE &R
Senior Management no. of attendees 8 31
mREEE AR
Middle Management no. of attendees 278 382
FREIEE ANIR
Junior Staff no. of attendees 4,430 5,920
A&k BT ANIR
b) Total training hours hour 11,532 20,418
b) & & 1% 3| 2 i & N
By gender
2 1 3
Male hour 190 326
S NS
Female hour 11,342 20,092
g N
By employee category
ZEE &R
Senior Management hour 126 294
mAREERE /N
Middle Management hour 696 1,832
FREREE /N
Junior Staff hour 10,710 18,292
MFREL /N
9 The training data in the table included the participants (Directors and new staff) attending the topics related to anti-corruption.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)
3) Development and Training (Continued)

Two-year comparison of employment statistics®

RERMEERNES (A

e e (E)
3) RREREF(E)

MEBRIFIBEROLEC (8)

(Continued)
B3: Development and Training Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
B3: B & K 1% By BE_Z_hF BE_T-_MF
—A=+tN\H ZA=+AAH
LtFE LLFE
c) Monthly average proportion of % 47.47 28.74
employees trained
d&%ﬁamﬁﬁ¥ﬂ&%
By gender
=1L Rl
Male % 11.72 7.67
S
Female % 50.62 30.35
pegis
By employee category
2 1B 5 4 5]
§_eniokrk Management % 3.96 7.26
= AR E R
MiddLg Management % 18.27 12.01
PRERE
Junior Staff % 5417 32.79
MRETL
d) Monthly average number of hour 1.19 0.88
training hours per employee N
dEEEENS AT Y
By gender
%= 1% 7
Male hour 0.32 0.24
Y I8
Female hour 1.24 0.93
g /N
By employee category
% 1E B &7
Senior Management hour 0.72 0.68
SREEE N5
Middle Management hour 0.46 0.55
RFRERE AN
Junior Staff hour 1.33 0.95
MF/RETL /)N B
9 The training data in the table included the participants (Directors and new staff) attending the topics related to anti-corruption.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

4)

Labour Standards

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding the rights
and interests of employees by building a fair working
environment for employees. Also, the Group has
been strictly complying with regulations to ensure
that no form of forced labour is imposed and no child
labour is recruited.

During the reporting year, the Group did not have
any employment of child labour or any violation of
regulations related to forced labour.

Preventive measures against child labour

Applicant is required to fill in his/her personal
information in the employment application form, to
show his/her personal identification documentation
for the Group’s human resources department
for verification of his/her age and other personal
information.

Applicant below the legal minimum working age is
not allowed to attend the job interview. The human
resources department of the Group would verify
the age of the applicant and the authenticity of the
personal identification documentation. The Group
would only recruit those applicants at or above the
legal minimum working age.

Retail department in-charge and human resources
department would conduct shop inspection to
confirm that all employees currently working at shops
have passed through the normal recruitment channel.

In event of identification of any child labour in the
daily management, the Group would terminate
the employment relationship and proceed the
subsequent steps in accordance with the legal
requirements.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

4)

5)

Labour Standards (Continued)
Preventive measures against forced labour

Upon onboarding, the Group would request new
employee to submit the personal identification
documentation for human resources department’s
verification, but anyway will not withhold the
identification documentation nor request for any
deposit.

In accordance with the job descriptions and the
appropriate conditions for task arrangement, the
Group would not adopt threatening or violent
practices for coercing employees to take on
incapable or unreasonable jobs.

The Group would not force employees to work
overtime. In case of any overtime need, prior
consensus from employee and advance approval is
required. Overtime application would be submitted
by the employee himself/herself and not requested
by supervisor.

If there was the occurrence of any forced labour
condition, the Group would immediately commence
the investigation and eliminate the condition in
accordance with the legal requirements.

Supply Chain Management
Geographical distribution of Suppliers

As at 28 February 2025, the Group engaged a total
of 20 active suppliers, all of which were located
in Mainland China, for provision of production
subcontracting services, warehousing services,
packaging bags and boxes to the Group.

110 e saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

RERTESHEENERE ()

HEHEHE(E)

4)

5)

Z TR (F)

B3 1k 58 1 5 T 19 5 bt

ABR AEERFRHETEIS
MERAXHFBLANE R ZE - I
TEHRESOHEAXHRAE W
B e

HRETVRULFTARRESERS
SUIE R TR & B - AN B A A B
RN FERBREE TMAE AN
Hitb A aIB ey ITIE -

REBRBBET MM I B
EERIENRE  ASEIRE - RB
IRATER B S B4 T AT AN TE - A0
MEBEFEA ERE T AAEL - WIEF

e e
EEX-

MRBRESHNER AEEE
WA B R B HE R AKOEE R B Bk
%O

e 1 B B
HEE DM
RZE-_RF-_A=-+NB K~£H
FiTBE FA B0 )E B2 fit JE 7 H20K - 23
HOERPRAN - BAREEREE
ENBEBR® BERERBE BEER

M-



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RUSE ~ A BT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Assessment of Suppliers

The Group has established supplier assessment
process that requires evaluation prior to formal
procurement. During the reporting year, the Group
engaged a total of 2 new suppliers, who all were
supplying footwear products. The scope of evaluation
included the evidence of legal entity, product
categories, production equipment, production
environment, workforce resource allocation and
monthly production capacity, etc., for assuring
the compliance with the requirements imposed by
customers, regulators and the Group’s policy.

Existing suppliers were also evaluated at different
magnitude for continual monitoring in response to
various risks. During the reporting year, supply chain
department would assign personnel to conduct
regular site inspection and all existing suppliers had
passed the evaluation during the reporting year.
Based on the magnitude of impacts associated with
different supplies to the Group’s finished goods,
different methods of evaluation would be applied
accordingly, including on-site inspection, product
testing, sample approval, random inspection of mass
production, verification of qualification documents,
self-assessment questionnaire, etc. When conducting
on-site inspections, the scope of evaluation includes
verifying conformance with environmental protection
permits and production configuration involving
production environment, production equipment, and
allocation in number of employees.

New supply of materials could only be formally
purchased upon passing of the supplier evaluation.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Control of Environmental and Social Risks

For materials and supplies containing potentially
hazardous substances, including those supplies
of exterior leather, interior leather, metal buckles,
sole materials, heels, and finished shoes, the Group
requires suppliers to provide materials in compliance
with relevant regulations and standards and passing
the relevant environmental tests, for example:

° Leather — scope of testing: content of formaldehyde,
and decomposable harmful aromatic amine dye;

e  Metallic buckles in footwear — scope of testing:
content of nickel release, and content of heavy
metals such as lead (Pb), cadmium (Cd),
mercury (Hg), hexavalent chromium (Cr (VI)), etc.

The procurement contracts between the Group and
suppliers will require the suppliers to submit the
materials for third-party testing and to refrain from
using materials which would damage the environment
or contain any hazardous substances harmful to
human. Whenever appropriate, the attachments
to the procurement contract will specify those
hazardous substances that could not be contained,
such as formaldehyde, decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye, heavy metals, etc.

Formal procurement could only be made after
evaluation of the environmental testing results of
those materials containing potentially hazardous
substances, for controlling their respective emission,
pollution or other adverse effects on the environment.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Control of Environmental and Social Risks
(Continued)

For those suppliers whose operation impose
significant impact to the environment, the scope
of the Group’s evaluation would even cover
their preventive measures against environmental
pollution. It requires the suppliers to provide the
evidence, e.g. discharge permit, in meeting the
targets of discharging effluent in accordance with
environmental requirement of the local government
and compliance with the relevant environmental
regulations and standards.

Therefore, in addition to material testing, production
subcontractors were also evaluated on their valid
discharge permits, including the installation of
environmental protection equipment, transfer and
handling of hazardous wastes, environmental test
reports related to exhaust gases and noise, etc. In
selection of suppliers, priority would then be given
to those not imposing significant environmental
hazards.

Moreover, the Group also evaluated the operational
compliance of other business partners in the
supply chain and assessed the involved risks
related to social responsibility, such as employment
compliance, occupational safety, product compliance
and risk of commercial bribery. For assuring
compliance with labor laws when managing suppliers
in Mainland China, the Group has included in the
procurement contracts with labour protection clauses
and requires all suppliers to sign them as one of the
risk management tools.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Green Procurement

Whenever complying with operating requirements,
the Group will give priority to equipment and
materials that are environmentally-friendly in nature.
For shoe boxes currently purchased by the Group,
they are all made of non-laminated white kraft paper,
which is recyclable and environmentally-friendly.
During evaluation prior to procurement, the paper
supplier provided the “China Environment Labeling
Product Certification Certificate,” evidencing its
compliance with the environmental characteristics of
GB/T24021/1SO 14021.

In addition to shoes boxes, the Group is striving to
work with suppliers on exploration and application of
environmentally-friendly materials as the components
of the Group’s finished goods, such as for producing
the outer layer of shoes.

Upon selection of energy-consuming equipment,
priority is also given to products that are certified or
labelled as energy efficient.

In addition, the Group has established local
procurement policy as one of the measures for green
procurement. Under similar cost and product quality
conditions, priority is given to local (Mainland China
and Hong Kong) suppliers of products and services
for minimising emission of GHG from transportation
during the procurement processes.

In the reporting year, most suppliers were situated
at Mainland China whereas direct overseas
procurement was minimal.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)
6) Product Responsibility

For assuring product compliance and meeting
customers’ expectations, the Group provides
customers with accurate and true information on
the quality and safety of its products. All products
must pass through testing on quality and safety
requirements, including those tests on materials like
leather, metallic accessories, etc., for assuring quality
and safety of the products delivered.

For management of product compliance, the Group
would agree with the suppliers regarding the terms of
requirements on technological standard and quality
assurance, with the aim to safeguard the brand
reputation of the Group.

Prior to the delivery of finished goods, the Group
would assign quality control personnel to conduct
sampling and inspection at the factory site. Finished
goods are allowed to release only upon fulfilment of
the quality standards.

According to the categories of shoes and handbags,
“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) applies to the sold products under specific
conditions: First, items guaranteed for return;
second, items guaranteed for repair; third, handling
of product replacement. According to “Three-R”
provision, the following table set forth the accepted
number of requests for product return and repair
during the reporting year.

AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BREL A G LR

RERMSERN®RE (&)

EEHE(E)
6) EmMEF

REBEARBRERMERETERER
HE grREFEHEEBRRLREESR
F’ﬁ?uuﬂ’]ﬁi&ﬁiZﬂg"ﬁﬁﬁ
EmiEARBEERZE2RA B
REARE 2BREHSDHOR
Bl HAREZEREEEERER
EHRE ©

RTEBEMAR Zﬁﬁliﬁiﬁﬁﬁf
EE%FNBHEAR L ﬂ:ﬁY
BRIBRENRERE m;(j:
REAEBENREORE -

R G A R E R R R R
ABHBETRBIE FRUE
1A & HAT -

EREMSRENTREN &
ERENBRTHITIZEIAE :
— BRBER F- BEEE:
= BERE -BRI=ZEIFE T
RMAEAREERNREFALERD
REREEFFKOHEE -

4 ¥ W 2

annual report 2025 F ik 2025 115



|<‘\\ IRONMENTAL,
AL R ARG

SOCIAL

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

6) Product Responsibility (Continued) 6)
In the same period, apart from the aforesaid
customer requests for returns and repairs, the Group
identified that there was no significant incident of
product non-compliance or any case of customer
complaint, nor identify any recall incident owing to

product’s health and safety issues.
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Number of Returns Accepted Number of Repairs Accepted
EANEERY BERANEETRE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

28 February 29 February 28 February 29 February

2025 2024 2025 2024

BE-ZT_1Ff BZE-ZT_NF BE-T_-_I1f BE-ZT-_HN#F

Product type —A=+NH —R=t+h8 —A=+NH —BA=+hH

EmE5 LtFE LtFE LEFE LtFE

Shoes 264 303 306 632

&

Handbags 1 0 19 46

F&

The Group has designated the particular department
to be responsible for handling of customer
complaints and the initiation of product recall
procedure whenever necessary.

In case of need for product recall, the Group would
work with the responsible supplier for quality
investigation and with the relevant departments to
analyse the product issues for formulation of the
corrective actions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The employees of the Group also adhere to the
established rules for protection of intellectual

property.

The Group has applied patents from “China National
Intellectual Property Administration” regarding the
appearance design of metal buckles and have
successfully for assuring intellectual property rights
of the buckle accessories being used in the Group’s
products.

Information and documentation related to the
intellectual property, such as product drawings,
technical specifications, would be secured and
stored by the designated department. Without
prior approval, employees are not allowed to make
photocopy or to take away from the company
premises.

The Group is bound by confidentiality agreement
with customers not to disclose customer information
to external parties.

Also, the Group has signed with confidentiality
agreements with business partners, for committing
no external disclosure of any product information.

Regarding application of commercial software in the
office application, the Group is committed to not
procuring or using software in any form of pirated
version and only purchasing from the authorised
dealers.

For security of customer data, based on different
infraction risk levels, the Group will use hardware
firewall to protect the stored data from attacks by
hackers, enables behaviour management equipment,
activates login account in enhanced password format
as well as mandatory changes of passwords every
three months, and requires access to internal file
servers under permission.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption

The Group is convinced that fairness, honesty and
integrity are its important commercial assets, and
therefore requires all employees (including directors)
at different levels to strictly adhere to business ethics,
which ensures that the Group’s reputation will not be
compromised by misconducts such as dishonesty,
disloyalty, bribery or corruption. The Group have
incorporated the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations, including “Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China” related to various corruption
and bribery offences and “Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, in the “Employee Code of
Practice”, which provides concise and clear guidance
for all existing and new employees in the aspects of
prevention of corruption and bribery, solicitation of
benefits, acceptance of benefits, conflict of interest,
confidential information, etc. This reduces the risks of
involvement in acts of corruption and bribery.

At the same time, the Group requires all employees
at all ranks to declare and state any possible conflict
of interests with the Group that may arise during
the daily operations. In addition, we encourage
employees to report misconduct, fraudulent activities
and illegal behaviours related to the Group under
the confidential whistleblowing mechanism. Current
means of reporting is generally in the form of emails
sent to the designated mailbox for this whistleblowing
purpose. No incident of whistleblowing was found in
the reporting year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)
7) Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group has included the integrity trading terms
in the procurement contracts. For those suppliers in
long-term partnership, both parties have signed the
designated integrity contracts. During the reporting
year, the Group identified that there was no incident
of behaviour non-compliant with the code, nor
violation of regulations related to corruption. Also, no
incident of relevant whistleblowing was received in
the same period.

During the procurement process, the Group seeks
quotations from more than one supplier to ensure
fair and reasonable offers. In addition, managerial
personnel of different rankings have been designated
to review and approve orders of different monetary
thresholds to reduce the risks of corruption and
bribery. During the reporting year, there was no
declaration for conflict of interests in any relevant
procurement.

Anti-corruption trainings of the Group covered the
topics like integrity, employee’s code of conduct,
business ethics, compliance behaviour, etc. The
mode of training was not limited to classroom training
or seminar, and other mode could be sending the
anti-corruption reminder notice or email to directors
and all employees.

Upon new employee’s on boarding, the scope
of training covered topics on integrity and anti-
corruption awareness. Human resources department
will provide each new employee with elaborations
of the employee handbook, “Employee Code of
Practice” and procedure for conflict of interest
declaration, all of which contain content related to
anti-corruption and integrity.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

For job positions which have liaisons with external
parties and higher demand of integrity requirements,
such as administration department, supply chain
department, marketing department, the Group
would arrange appropriate training topics for their
participation, some of the topics like integrity
agreement signed with suppliers, and precautions
during contract review and approval, etc.

In addition, the Group has regularly provided
trainings to directors and staffs on the topics related
to anti-corruption, corporate governance and
compliance with listing rules. The Group continues to
strengthen its corporate culture of fairness, honesty
and integrity. During the reporting year, the Group
arranged for our staff to attend online lectures on
anti-corruption and integrity training organised by
the Independent Commission Against Corruption to
enable them to acquire a deeper understanding of
anti-corruption laws and the importance of integrity.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social aspect (Continued)

8) Community Investment
Over years, the Group has been supporting the
community and the industry in various aspects like
charity, environmental protection, health, with the
aim to assist the people in need. The following table

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - A E AR Ol

HEHEHE(E)
8 HERE

set forth the examples on the types of community
activities contributed by the Group in the reporting

year:

RERTESHEENERE ()

ZERNEEH N BT E KRR %
EEZ RRER BEFZITEED
BERENAL - TRINBNRBEFA
AEBEXENHEBBENEG

Type of Event
& B 5

Organiser/Name of Event

ERKETEME

Sponsorship Employee

gy

Participation

ETIZ2H

Assistance for
the Vulnerable
Groups

SESEEE Lot

(1)

“Environmental workshop for Christmas
Tree Workshop” by St. James’
settlement

ERSEHSIRRERY TEY]

Donation to St. James’ settlement for
the ‘Rehabilitation Services’ provided

to intellectually disabled individuals and
mental health recovery patients
BRTERSERHEEAEEALTRER
REERHENE R RS

“Meal Subsidy Program” by St. James’
settlement
FHREEHeIERAAF 2]

Donation to St. James’ settlement

to support beneficiaries of their food
assistance service
BRTERESEHS XEBEHERVED
Rz X BhE
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

£ AR

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 28 February
2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in trading and sale of
footwear and accessories.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 28 February 2025 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the vyear,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 13 to 18 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 19 to
36 of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on pages 3 to 4 of this report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

U]

(1)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognises the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
the Group (the “ESG Report”) is set out on pages
75 to 121 of this report. The ESG Report has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix C2 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The report details the
environmental policy of the Group and their actual
effectiveness, and further discuss the relationships
between the Group and its key stakeholders as
well as the compliance with significant laws and
regulations.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group has
conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong
that have significant impact on the operations of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2025.
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B

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(Ill) Key Relationships

(@)

(b)

()

Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organises regular staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and enhance
the recognition of the Group’s corporate culture
and values amongst the staff.

Consumers

The Group provides direct service to consumers
in its retail shops and online shops. To ensure
continuous improvement of the quality of
products and services, the Group regularly
conducts internal and external market surveys
to interact with consumers and to gain more
market insights and feedback.

Suppliers

The Group has established long business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. As the Group
is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain, the Group
will prioritise the adoption of products made of
environmentally-friendly materials and focus on
partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. The Group has
established anti-bribery and anti-corruption
policies which are required to be observed by all
parties with business dealings with the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(1) Key Relationships (Continued)
(d) Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes that effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 71 to 74 of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2025 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 148 of this report.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 28
February 2025 (2023/24: interim special dividend of HK5.0
cents per ordinary share).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2023/24: final special dividend of HK5.0 cents
per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 28
February 2025.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
page 259 of this report. The summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of

the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group

and the Company during the year are set out in notes 27
and 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 28 February 2025, the Company’s retained
earnings and contributed surplus of approximately
RMB303,659,000 (2023/24: RMB434,606,000) were
available for distribution to the Shareholders.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during
the year (2023/24: NIL).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal investment properties held by the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year ended 28 February 2025 and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
(resigned with effect from 7 October 2024)
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(resigned with effect from 13 September 2024)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan

Ms. Chan Kit Yin

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 37 to 40 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
James Ngai and Mr. Leung Wa Ki, George shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM”). All the above mentioned Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of their
respective independence. The Company considers
that all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation). The service contract
of Mr. James Ngai, acted as Non-Executive Director, was
renewed for a fixed term of 2 years with the Company
with effect from 25 March 2025.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HEREFHRE

EE2RG ZHFERENESR

RE RS ERE AR - I & E Fokim
EERUEZFEARARRAZRS ~ ©H
FENTHEEERIER ZE AN A -

EREBERRZENESR

REAR  RAFHEEMKERFTEARR
AIERBRSEWNB AR ZM I #|FT L
EMEZAH  IHARAZBEBERX
H P B~ B[R AN~ ) Sk B AT (A B B 2 B 4
HRBOEZAL -

EEREFERES

REA BESEF2HETAHARTER
BRARKAIEBRHEFZER AN &
XA E R EEE -

annual report 2025 £ 2025 129



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRS

CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the
information of the Directors of the Company, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 29 February
2024 are set out below:

ESUBRESERNCHMEH

BIE EHRAIE1BSIBN)GK 2 HE AT
BREBARABE_ZT_NF_A=1+Ah
BIEFEZFRNENRRARFZERH
BREFEHZHEMESEINNT

Name of Directors Details of change

Esps BEHE

Executive Directors:

HITES:

Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky . Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 7 October 2024
REHRL B-Z-ME+ALBRBHERTES

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan . Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 13 September 2024
BitELT B-T-MENAT=BRHETRTES

Non-Executive Director:

FHTES:

Mr. James Ngai o Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2 years commencing on
FHELEE 25 March 2025 and ending on 24 March 2027

ERARAEIREAHN AT AF-A-THAARE_T_tF=A_tEAL"

BMERETEH
Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

130 e saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

BEXFIEEEN BEEMERER
% MR A FE135IBOIEZ R EM T AR

==
B °©



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 28 February 2025, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares)
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) RozHFr(BEEERS)

Number of Shares
Bt L
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Personal Spouse Corporate Other capital of
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total  the Company
HERRFE
ESft? fAAER RREER ARER HiEs Bt BORARSL
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (‘Mr. L") 5,909,200 11,000 - 56,000,000 60,920,200 8.63%
TkEEE Note 1)
(Wit1)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (“Ms. Chui") 5,779,000 - - - 5,779,000 0.81%
(resjgned with effect from 7 October 2024)
REIRL(BRL))
(E=E-RETALAEESR)
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (‘Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
REERE(R%E] (Note 2)
(Hit2)

annual report 2025 ik 2025 131



132

REPORT OF
HREHRS

THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(I) Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation, (the “Charitable Foundation”)
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

2. Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School
Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2025, none
of the Directors or chief executive (including their spouse
and children under 18 years of age) of the Company
had any interests and/or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions
which are taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above, during
the year ended 28 February 2025, (a) at no time was the
Company or a specified undertaking (as defined in the
Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D
of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2025, according to the register of
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

() Interests and short positions of substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares

Long positions in Shares

FTERRREMALTRARG RARRK
DZEBERKAE

RZZE-_RAF_AZ+/\B BEZEAHK
B G| E336IE R EMTFE 2R HiER
MxRBEZEZMAEE T AT EE
(RRRIEBXZETHRABBRIN ARG
SHEBERDTPHEREERIAE M AERIE
BAELRHEEFEXVEFE2N F3D SE
o 8

) ZERERREOREERO 2ES
KRR

KRGz E

Number of Shares and nature of interests

I 0 B R 5 5 5

Interests of

Approximate
percentage
of the issued

Beneficial controlled Other Share capital of
Name of Shareholders owner  corporation interests Total  the Company
HEXEDT
EBRTRAE
RRE® BEBEEA BRAFER Hitt At BAk
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Notes 1 & 2)  (Notes 3 & 4)
FrwEE(ERE]) (WaFike)  (B53R4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 — — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Note 5)
(H13t5)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited — 225,500,000 — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Note 5)
(H13t5)
HSBC International Trustee Limited - — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
("HSBC Trustee”) (Note 5)
(W 7t5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

() Interests and short positions of substantial ()]
Shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continued) Rz ifE (&)
Notes: B et -

FTERRREMALRARG RARRK
MzEER KA (A

FERRRRORMEERG 2 ERE

kxR (&)

Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun
Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Lee was the founder (as defined in section 308 of
the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was
also the sole director of Stable Profit. Therefore, Mr. Lee was
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the LTB
Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.

1. Succex Limited (Z A Rl F % £ 425 &
2 & A) 5 4633,000,0000% K5 o Bt -
FTREERABRBZSEROHZER -

2. SEFEHREFERESERQARATEE]D
(FhREBSEZEMARERANES
3,600,000/ f& 17 B It © TR EWR A
HEBEZERMDZER -

3. Stable Gain # 5225,500,000% & 7 + 48
ERARQ R B #ITR A 431.94% © Stable
Gain & #f 2 # 17 I8 & AHSBC Trustee &
&8 2 A7 Stable Profit & £ &+ &
HSBC Trustee &Lee Tze Bun Family Trust
([LTB Family Trusth(m®151E5E) 2 X5
A M2 %% ABLTB Family Trust 2 Al A
(EERBHFRAEKOIEI08K) REE
& ¥z A U8 A Stable Profit Z M — & % o
Fit - FEERERAEEZERMD 2 ER -

4, BEEGC(TRAERZEESESZANA)
(EERFFHFRPEKOFE308K)HFE
55,000,000 B 17 - B E R ARAFRE 1T
RALT779% « AL THEWRBES
ZERGDZER -

5. Stable Gain # 225,500,000/ i 1 » {5
ARABEITIRA431.94% - Stable Gain
2 B2 %17 KR A HHSBC Trustee & &
A 2 A7) Stable Profit$ #& & i * %2 HSBC
Trustee & LTB Family Trust (/&8 1515 5%)
2 ZFAN MELERLTB Family Trust .2
Bl ARG BEWRX 2= A+ 71 A Stable Profit
ZME—EFE o HItk 0 HSBC Trustee N E A&
SHEAEHBEHZTABRINERBHES
ZER A 2B K Stable Profit 7R3 H {E
BN F) R Stable GainFiEA 2w
MERAEEZSRMD Z#EE - Stable
Gain, Stable Profit 2 HSBC Trustee & B8 2
HERMEMES -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other persons

in th

e Shares and underlying Shares

Long positions in Shares

FTERRREMALTRARG RARRK
MzEER KA (A

(1)

)58

HA A £ 5B D % A0 B R 19 2 4 3

B

KRGz E

Number of Shares and nature of interests

ROBERERER
Approximate
percentage of
the issued Share
Personal Spouse Other capital of
Name of Shareholders Note interests Interests interests Total the Company
HIEALT
RREH it BARR ERER AttEE & DEARAEIM
Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie (‘Ms. Lee”) 1 6,985,000 - 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
FHERL(%x1))
Ms. Cheung Man Ching Teresa (‘Ms. Cheung’) 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
KXERL(RRL))
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%
Charitable Foundation
PNt FABAERRALIEREEEE KT
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy Vermogensbeheer N.V. (‘OVMK") 4 35,454,000 - - 35,454,000 5.02%
Notes: B it

Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Shares held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

OVMK holds 35,454,000 Shares, representing approximately
5.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2025, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation who had interests directly
or indirectly and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules). The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 28 February 2025.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.1% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.6% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 65.3% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 17.6%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 41 to
74 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The ESG Report of the Group is set out on pages 75 to
121 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2025 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 May 2025

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

¥ S A% B o

_E
pwec

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), which are set out on pages 148 to 258,
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 28 February
2025;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
comprising material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 28 February 2025, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is provision for
impairment of inventories.
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INDEPENDENT
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AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

B8 FTEEHA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMMNEBESTNNEERRENSE

Provision for impairment of inventories

FERERE

Refer to Notes 2.2.5, 4(d) and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BLHEAEMBHRERMT2.25 ~ 4(d) ~ k20 °

At 28 February 2025, the Group had gross
inventories and provision for impairment of inventories
amounted to approximately RMB117,837,000 and
approximately RMB41,704,000, respectively.
RZZEZRFZAZ+N\B EBESEFELBELRTF
SRE R BB K A RK117,837,0007TC M4 A
R #41,704,0007T °

As described in the accounting policies in Note 2.2.5
to the consolidated financial statements, inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
HRGEAVBRRNF 22560 ETHERTE FE
BERABERATER FEME 2REEYER

The Group is engaged in the trading and sales
of footwear and accessories, and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends.
Management’s judgement is required for assessing
the appropriate level of inventory provision in current
challenging retail environment.

axlﬁ$%E&%%ZT%&%%'Iﬁﬁﬁ%

%ﬁ'ﬁ*&ﬁﬁﬁéﬁmTlﬁﬁE 53’*‘0%5’\551 E/Riﬁb}%
BEFE EEEEFLAHEATHGEERGENEE
K e
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We have obtained an understanding of
the management’s internal control and
assessment processes, assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors, such as
subjectivity of assumptions and susceptibility
to management bias or fraud.
BPTHEEENAMES RFHREF

B E R AL ET T E M R H AL E A R I%
WREEWRIZINZTEMELEEENRRE SR
E)FEIJ—J—ABT_&L) n$1$ij(§ ukﬁ%Lm.ﬁﬂ fa o

We have evaluated the reasonableness of
provision made by management by challenging
management’s projections and demands for
the remaining inventories, with respect to slow-
moving inventories.

HMFEEEEHERDUEFGEET
MBRMELN SRR BIREE & -

TR T8 B

We have tested, on a sample basis, the stock
movement data during the year to ensure
the determination of cost of inventories is in
accordance with group policy.
BMPHEFANTFEZH BB E TR -
NEEFERANBEREREBE -

We have compared, on a sample basis, the net
realisable value of inventories sold subsequent
to the year end, to the cost of inventories.
BMPHFRZENHEFTEN A EH FER
FERARETHERLR -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
Key Audit Matter

BEETER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

T 7 A% B H e

B8 EFTEEHGA)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
EMMNEBESTNNEERRENSE

Provision for impairment of inventories (Continued)

FERERE(E)

Management determines the provision for obsolete or
slow-moving inventories based on a detailed ageing
analysis of inventories and the Group’s estimates of
projected sales of aged inventories in consideration
of various factors, such as the marketability of aged
products and the market conditions.
ERBERNTFENFARKRITL E£EHRE
FEEAHENMEAMBRIOFHT EE T E®
ERERZEREZ  NMREEMERERTR -

We focused on this area due to the significant
carrying value of inventories and the critical estimates
adopted by management on the provision for
obsolete or slow-moving inventories.
BPEIHBREDHRNEARASCEEAUAREEE
HMNREFIBERBUEFENRERBILRAEK
B I T S (5t o

We have evaluated the estimated future sales
through of aged inventories with reference to
historical sales performance of similar products
through different sales channels, management
assessment of the relevant external market
information, committed sales order placed
through checking to relevant supporting
documents, and the Group’s business
strategies identified through enquiries with
management.
BHAFAEREFTENMEFTRREE Fh2
ZRUERBEBTRAHEHERBENBEHERR -
EREHMEANTTSEHNTMG  EiBR
EHRBXFHDAGENIEER EN XU LK
BAERERTHREHOEEEBERE -

We have tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of provision
for impairment of inventories.
HPAAEEEFRFTERERBBAEZE
WM o

Based on the above audit procedures
performed, we found that management’s
assessments were supported by the evidence
that we obtained.

BRIEFAEFEF BAEREEEMEH
WA ET R HET T B B R S FF -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M S A% B e

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose.

We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Au Chi Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 May 2025
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C()N SOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FHEER

w/T

For the year ended 28 February 2025
BHE-T-_RF-_A-+TNBILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
BZE HE
—E-RE —ZET-NMF
—A=+NB Z—A=+ANH
LtFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B % AR®STR AR®T
Revenue W & 5 294,096 401,428
Cost of sales B & A AR 7 (150,888) (150,629)
Gross profit £ 143,208 250,799
Other income H g A 6 2,618 2,285
Other (losses)/gains, net Hh(B518), W= F8 6 (9,553) 3,218
(Impairment losses)/write-back of g 5 E W RIE
impairment on trade (RfEEE),
receivables, net BB E - FEE 7 (266) 385
Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HMXZ 7 (164,519) (204,830)
General and administrative — R RITHFA X
expenses 7 (81,887) (83,982)
Operating loss KL B8 (110,399) (32,125)
Finance income, net AU A - FEE 8 9,612 10,666
Loss before income tax bR P15 B AT 18 (100,787) (21,459)
Income tax expense Fri8 B2 i 12 (2,505) (2,867)
Loss for the year FAEE (103,292) (24,326)
Loss for the year attributable to: R FERNEIE:
—owners of the Company — ARRERBFEA (100,776) (23,542)
—non-controlling interest — JEERER (2,516) (784)
(103,292) (24,326)
Losses per share attributable to RAREZFRB AR
the owners of the Company EREBEEARED)
(express in RMB cents)
— Basic — B 13 (14.28) (3.34)
— Diluted — B 13 (14.28) (3.34)

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR A AT

For the year ended 28 February 2025
HE-Z-_hAF_-_A-+TN\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
BZE H=
—EZhE —E-UF
—B=+NA ZA=+ANH
ILFE FFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARTR ARBFT
Loss for the year FABE (103,292) (24,326)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FRNBF % 2 Hib 2@
for the year, net of tax WA (E18)
ltem that will not be reclassifiedto EHEEB T2 EHHDEALE
consolidated income statement Bmk2EE
— Actuarial gains/(losses) on — RREBAHEEZRBE
retirement benefit obligation A () 26 63 (227)
ltem that will be reclassified to HigEnEmoE AR
consolidated income statement BmkHEE
— Currency translation — B =%
differences 3,198 13,776
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEERE
for the year (100,031) (10,777)
Total comprehensive loss for ERFAZHEEIBRRE:
the year, attributable to:
— owners of the Company — ARAEREFAEA (97,515) (9,993)
—non-controlling interest — FEFEARRE R (2,516) (784)
(100,031) (10,777)

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
moEERREE

As at 28 February 2025

RZZE-ZRF-_A=+)\AH

As at As at
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
i IS
—EB-RHE —E_UF
—A=+NB —A=-+ANH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TR ARBFT
Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment properties "EME 15 67,946 76,038
Property, plant and equipment Y MR REE 16 7,434 10,338
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 16,857 28,678
Long-term deposits and REIEE RFENFKIE
prepayments 21 699 981
Deferred income tax assets BILEFTSHIBEEE 19 22,407 29,490
___ 115343 ___ 145,925
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20 76,133 164,511
Trade and other receivables g5 EWERE R
H b JE W AR 18 21 23,348 36,275
Deposits and prepayments Be RIBNRIEA 21 31,510 33,116
Cash and bank balances He MIRITHE R 22 327,911 364,655
___.458902  __ 598,557
Total assets wEE 574,245 744,082
Equity &=
Capital and reserves attributable RARAERFAA
to the owners of the Company FE(E IR A K
Share capital % 7% 25 59,979 59,979
Reserves ]
Proposed dividend BERE 27 - 32,1783
Others HAb 27 423,428 521,632
483,407 613,784
Non-controlling interest FERER - 4,327
Total equity REn 483,407 618,111

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AR EE AR

As at 28 February 2025
RZFE-RF-A=+)N\AH

As at As at
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
»® IS
“E-HRF _—T_MF
—A=+NB ZA=+AhH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B E ARBTRT AREBTT
Liabilities =L
Non-current liabilities FRBAR
Deferred income tax liabilities EIEFESHRIEAE 19 12,819 18,016
Lease liabilities HEaRF 17 968 6,908
Lo S8 24924
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables, other payables 22 ENEEE -
and contract liabilities H b pEHBEIE
ka#tafE 24 68,764 85,820
Lease liabilities HEARE 17 6,780 13,551
Current income tax liabilities EHIFEHAaE 1,507 1,676
oo 001 101,047
Total liabilities wmeE 90,838 125,971
Total equity and liabilities EErnasaE 574,245 744,082

The consolidated financial statements on pages 148 to
258 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 May

2025 and were signed on its behalf.

James Ngai
7% &
Chairman

1

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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Li Wing Yeung, Peter

k5
Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A REIR S H 3R

For the year ended 28 February 2025
BHE-T-_RF-_A-+TNBILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAERRAAEE
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves  Sub-total interest Total equity
Rx ftfa ay FERER aRn

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARRTRT ARWTRT ARERTxR

Balance at 1 March 2023 W-E-=5=f—-H
bA: __ %9979 505546 655525 8111 663,636
Comprehensive loss 2AFE
Loss for the year ERER -~ (23,542) (23,542) (784) (24,326)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  EftZ2ERA /(B E)
Currency translation differences EHES - 13,776 13,776 - 13,776
Actuarial losses on retirement BREHEEZ
benefit obligation REER — (227) (227) - (227)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZEBELE - 9993 (@93 (184 (10,777)
Transaction with owners BEGHRAEALRS
Dividend ke R N o - B
Capital reduction by non-controlling ~ FE R % 2 A &
interest - - - __ (30000 (3,000)
Balance at 29 February 2024 RZE-WE-A=FNA
24 509079 553805 613784 4307 618111
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year EXNEE - (100,776) (100,776) (2,516) (103,292)
Other comprehensive income A 2EMA
Currency translation differences A - 3,198 3,198 - 3,198
Actuarial gains on retirement RABMERZ
benefit obligation BERM - 63 63 - 63
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZEEELE - (07,515 (97515 (2,516)  (100,031)
Transaction with owners RERBEAIRS
Dividend e - _(32 1_73_) _ _(32,1_73_) _____ - _(32 1_73)
Transaction with non-controlling REARER LIRS
interest (Note 18(o) (et - 689) (689)  (1811) (2500
Balance at 28 February 2025 RZE-ZREZAZTN\A
LS 59,979 423,428 483,407 - 433,407

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of Z154Z 2588 2 [ i+ & AN B 3k & ]
these consolidated financial statements. n &z &
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FILOW STATEMEN'T
mEBlaiiER

For the year ended 28 February 2025

BHE_Z_AF_A-_t+/N\BILFE

Year ended Year ended

28 February 29 February

2025 2024

BZ BE

—E_ARE —E-NE
—A=t+NR —AZTNR

LEE HFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ff & ARBTR ARETT

Operating activities ReEBREH
Net cash generated from operations R S e et 23(a) 4,689 43,769
Taxation paid EFIA (947) (420)
Interest paid 27 B8 (832) (1,090)
Net cash generated from operating activities — 4@ & % & T8z 4 7 3 £ B8 2,910 42,259
Investing activities REED
Interest income on bank deposits ROEZZMER A 10,444 11,756
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB 4% - # 2 5 16 (4,328) (9,494)
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits with BE-RABYEHER

initial term over three months )/ Fib (450 34,038
Net cash generated from investing activites 13 8 EZ&EE 2B 4 %5 5,666 36,300
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from short-term bank loan EAEHRTER 23(c) (9,244) —
Repayment of short-term bank loan BHIRTEZER 23(c) 9,244 _
Principal element of lease payments BENZZAES TS 23(c) (15,122) (24,455)
Capital reduction by non-controlling interest  JEiZ i i 25 7 H & = (3,000)
Dividend paid BERRE 23(c) (32,163) (31,796)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETHERAZE S ZE (47,285) (59,251)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HehZERBESER

equivalents CRD) /s (38,709) 19,308
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net B X & &L F5 1,515 7,779
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FNZ7BE s RERR4EER

year 335,655 308,568
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FR7IBERERIE4SER 29 298,461 335,655

The notes on pages 154 to 258 are an integral part of Z154Z 2588 2 [ i+ & AN B i 3k & ]
these consolidated financial statements. DEZE D o
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in trading and sales of footwear and
accessories. The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

This note provides a list of the accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong).
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

154 ¢ saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group

The group has applied the following
standards, amendments and interpretation
for the first time for its annual reporting
period commencing 1 March 2024

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

EEGIEREIR (BT AX)
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BB Bl E LR E1658 (1B
HK(IFRIC)-Int 5 (Revised)

HEY,

7

EAEBRYBERERBEZESY) -
REESHE(KEEIE)

HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

%5 SHERETHR BBV IERE LR

BT (BFTA)

The amendments and interpretation listed
above did not have any material impact on
the amounts recognised in prior periods
and are not expected to significantly affect
the current or future periods.

Aok B 285 S

2 EBIFERRENBEGE
21 REEEGE)

R EEF B RE LR

AV BHRRAERETH

REsthst EEETARE

AAEEZ G BERFIELH

- P REESEEHERES

wWHzEE ISR BEEM
BHREAMEBEAN 2BRMME
AR N AT RE -

A& E RN = FE
2 BRI R 2 FE
AREBER-_ZT_-_NF=
A—BRGBZzZFEREH
B &R e AT 5l £ B &
CEIPA- D &3

(a) B R 1%

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

H%E1%?’73‘?57%//@)&3!50@1&511’%%@ RS
RHFERBEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERHELNNHEERE

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

Z2HMBHRET — BERAHWNFRERER
RN ERERN DR

Supplier Finance Arrangements

HEERE B

EXFS 25 2 R &

ZEITESNBTHEAD
RSB EXNEMNERX
FE BHEHITEYHEH
ARRHABEKNERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standards,
amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation have been published that
are not mandatory for 28 February 2025
reporting periods and have not been early
adopted by the group:

2

S BRRERNBE(E)

241

i E & (R)
(b) EHARFRBZFER -~ AEET

ZERR 2 FE
AEEWRBERFRME
BHER_T_AF_HA
“tHtNABHmEHER KR
wAERzETHER &
IR e kg

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Fiask 18

Mz gt EIAE

HKAS 21 (Amendments)

Lack of Exchangeability

1 March 2025

ER G ERE2R(BIIR) Rz AR —E_hF=A—H
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Classification and Measurement of 1 March 2026
(Amendments) Financial Instruments
ERMBRELENEORRERNYE eRIAZHERHE ZE-RE=A—H
HERAETHR(BETAX)

HKFRS 18 (New standard) Presentation and Disclosure in Financial 1 March 2027
Statements

ERMBHELEANEBRGTER) HBERRENNEKE —T_t+¥=H—H

HKFRS 19 (New standard) Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 1 March 2027
Disclosures

ERUBRELNFIOFGIER) FOAXTEEWMBRR - RE —T_t+¥=H—-H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of 1 March 2027

(Amendments) Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand

Clause
ERRBESR(BIR) ERRBESTE2NABRE — BRXA T+ E5=H—-H
HNHRELETRRNTEHEZRN
]
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined
(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
) HERAIHGEREZEN BB B AR ORTE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and
interpretation not yet adopted
(Continueqd)

These new accounting standards,
amendments to accounting standards and
interpretation are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions when they
become effective, except for HKFRS 18
which will impact the presentation of profit
and loss. The Group is still in the process
of evaluating the impact of adoption of
HKFRS 18.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
2.2.1 Subsidiaries
2.21.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including
structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

foi A B 5 R M

2 EFBRRERSEE

21 mBEE(E)

(b)

[ RERA 2 FTERY ~ 55T
ZERR 2 FE ()

EREHER BRI E
Al 2 BENE - BHA
THASEEEHARK
BEHHE RABERK
RpEXRBERTZE MK
&8 M E E R F185
REEBERONEIIN - K
SENEMBRAT LY
BHRELERNFIBRNTE -

22 EXREFBRME
221 B8 2 7

2211 (7 & R B
MEBAREASEY
HEBEH #EHEE
(BREBEEE)-
EAEEBERAZ2HEZ
F B M A ¥E AT & O] 3R
B R fg sk = B 7] # g
WHWEZR WHEESD
FERHEHZTREORE
N5 B E B
B B8~ &) E 1 i 8
BEAEEZARES
AR -WBRRE
PRI 2 BRE
LEEBFARR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued) 201 WIEBRE(4#E)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued) 211 A BER (8)

Hl'i&ﬁiéﬂmg(:ﬁ

22 EXEBEBEE)

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity
and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A A B i R P
2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EHBFEERBMEE)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

22 EXEBEBEE)

221 BB 1 &l (4&)

2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of
accounting is used to account
for all business combinations,
regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred,

° liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the
acquired business;

e equity interests issued by
the Group;

e fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a
contingent consideration
arrangement; and

e fair value of any pre-
existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

2211426 BREB (&)

@@ EKAE O
EreBEEDR
BENEMEE -
B R B U BB R A5
FTE¥EBE A
BR - WEEBT B A
BIFTEEM Y E
BFE

e BDHEZEEE
~NYEE:

e WHEBEHR
NS
ERE:

e AEHEHETT
NN -

fm

e HABAHEZR
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MEESLEB
BRRFE:
M

© RHEAT
fE 7 55 41 IR
L
FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foi A B 5 R W

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations
(Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business
combination are with limited
exceptions measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair
value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share
of the acquired entity’s net
identifiable assets. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The excess of the:

o consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-
controlling interests in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest
in the acquired entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foi A B 5 R M

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations
(Continued)

over the fair value of the net
identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets
of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain
purchase.

Where settlement of any part of
cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future
are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange.
The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent
financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent
consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial
liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with
changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

S BRRERNBE(E)

22 EXEBEBEE)

221 BB 1 &l (4&)

2211554

(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.11

Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Changes in ownership interests
in subsidiaries without change of
control

The Group treats transactions
with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of
control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between
the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of
the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foi A B 5 R M

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.21.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(©

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to the profit or loss or
transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

S BRRERNBE(E)

22 EXEBEBEE)

221 BB 1 &l (4&)

2211554

©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2.1 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.21.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments
in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.2.2 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally
comprising leasehold land and buildings,
are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are
not occupied by the Group.

Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an
investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.

164 s saunda holdings Itd. Z&E T FHERR BR A 7]

2

S BRRERNBE(E)

22 EXEBEBEE)

221 BB 2 E] (#E)
2212 W S R &R

RHBRARIZIEETY
AR AR R E S BR -
KABREREREZE
HEHRABARRAZ
XEBEREKKRERE
W B AEEBRAR
AIARR ©

EWRME AR Z®
ENBRER - WEE
LB AR EEIK
e B 2 2 EKA
R REBILMK
BERZREREEB
HRRETFEE(R
EEE)ERA MR
RZEEER B
AHEBEREETH
(R

222 RENF
REMER TEHHEEL
WMEFEK BHAERE
SERAHSKEXRIERE
7N 4% {8 2 M E R B R S
FERAEEGA -

NEEMEREN LT
MHEREMENERTE
E BEREWETER-H
HEBRT HENES
HEBRMESREMREM
FORR ©



2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.2 Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined
at each financial year end by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. If the
information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of
a valuation gain or loss in “other (losses)/
gains, net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “other (losses)/gains, net”
in the consolidated income statement.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ok 7 S 5 R A R i

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 SHBREERHMEE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

22 EXREHEBME(R)

an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with note
2.2.3 up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at the date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation
and recognised in asset revaluation reserve
within equity until the retirement or disposal
of the property (when it is released directly
to retained profits). Any resulting decrease
in the carrying amount of the property
is recognised in profit or loss. However,
to the extent that an amount is included
in revaluation surplus for that property,
the decrease is recognised in other
comprehensive income and reduces the
revaluation surplus within equity.

2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised when
replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)
2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment

foi A B 5 R M

2 BHERRERSEG
2.2 EXEFHBERE(HE)

223 Y3 - HER K ()

(Continueqd)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, at
the following annual rates:

Buildings 2-4%
g5 2-4%
Leasehold improvements
MHMERETE

Furniture and fixtures

HI K E

Motor vehicles 20%
T E 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.2.4).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amounts and are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

20%-33.3%
20%-33.3%

W% BERRBIIFE
BLE B0 AT R R 48
B ET A FRAIE D&
WA

5-20% or over the lease period, whichever is shorter

5-20% 3k 3% FH Hl (A 8 j2 & & 28)

BENSKREBELUEBF
RN EREH R A AE
HEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EBIiHRFEFEHRSEGE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EABFHRME(E)
(Continued)
2.24 Impairment of non-financial assets 204 FEBIEEERE
Assets that are subject to amortisation AE B EEENEAEEMN
are reviewed for impairment whenever BN EEREEET
events or changes in circumstances Bt fm ok g O] B HE ST R E A8
indicate that the carrying amount may Mo REEBEBRBEEEZE
not be recoverable. An impairment loss EEBEHHEATKES%E
is recognised for the amount by which ZRER - FHEBERER
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its BEAFEMNBR KA
recoverable amount. The recoverable RERE_&ETPHNREE -
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair R EHEER  BEEY
value less costs of disposal to sell and ARlE R ReEREGEREE
value in use. For the purposes of assessing FBEMz&EEBXRAES -
impairment, assets are grouped at the JEBF A E IR R ER
lowest levels for which there are separately BREREHRRT BE
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating BB 2 AT REME o

units). Non-financial assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

2.2.5 Inventories 225 7

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost FERKAs A &IEEE
and net realisable value. Cost is determined MEPHEKE R - 5K
using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. KAFLAFLEEZEE - &
The cost of finished goods excludes B Sh 2 BT B IE R B R
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is RNem#BEFEBRAE
the estimated selling price in the ordinary ¥BHPMEGTEERER
course of business, less applicable variable A EEHER S -

selling expenses.

2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax 226 EHREHLFFZH

The income tax expense for the FARBEXLERERK
year comprises current and deferred BEMRIE - RBIIRES
tax. Income tax is recognised in the BaXRER HEEETHEAMm
consolidated income statement, except FEHBANEETERE
to the extent that it relates to items RNIBEEBEBAERIW - &
recognised in other comprehensive income HER T HEIRD BB
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax Eme2mW Ak BEEERE
is also recognised in other comprehensive mER o

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 5 R A B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax

EBREERBEE)
22 EXREHEBME(R)

226 BEHRIREL i3 # (&)

(Continueqd)

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
investment properties that are measured
at fair value are determined assuming
the properties will be recovered entirely
through sale.

EHABH B ARRE
EME AR RAEEEE
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HRRNEERDRMHHE
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BHEE AR BRGA
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HEE - RS KR T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EBIiHRFEFEHRSEGE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EAEHHEME(E)
(Continued)
2.2.6 Current and deferred income tax 226 BRI AP35 % (&)
(Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised BIEFFSMEETIERSE
only to the extent that it is probable that Al BE 3R K AR B &R B m A
future taxable profit will be available against AT E R =R T AR
which the temporary differences can be R o
utilised.
Deferred income tax is provided on BEFFESHILNMEB AT
temporary differences a rising on NS EESENEREBE
investments in subsidiaries, except for HBE EHELTCHER
deferred income tax liability where the BEmMS MALET-L A
timing of the reversal of the temporary 7o | S i = KB B O Y B RS
difference is controlled by the Group and MER=5EAEATEREK
it is probable that the temporary difference REARETZ B AR -

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities EAFEEARNTELES
are offset when there is a legally R EEEREEHHIES
enforceable right to offset current tax EEE BBECEMBHE
assets against current tax liabilities and ENBESEBERB B
when the deferred income tax assets and WEAHERNERESX TR
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by ERVEREBBTEREMR
the same taxation authority on either the WEBEEELEEEHE

taxable entity or different taxable entities Bl A #5% IR & BT 15 fR & E
where there is an intention to settle the BEEHRENY -

balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales
within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a
point in time when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer; the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods
including retail and concessionaire
sales is recognised when control of
the products has transferred, which
generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on
the internet is recognised at the point
that the control of the inventory have
passed to the customer, which is the
point of dispatch. Transactions are
settled by credit or payment card.
Provisions are made for internet credit
notes based on the expected level of
returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a customer loyalty
programme, where certain customers
accumulate points for purchases
made which entitle them to purchase
goods at a discounted price. The
customer loyalty programme gives rise
to a separate performance obligation
because it provides a material right to
the customer and allocates a portion
of the transaction price to the loyalty
credits awarded to customers based
on the relative stand-alone selling
price. All awarded points will expire on
31 December each year and there was
no material award points outstanding
as at the year end.

When either party to a contract has
performed, the Group presents the
contract in the consolidated balance
sheet as a contract asset or a contract
liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and
the customer’s payment.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.7 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c)

Customer loyalty programme
(Continued)

If a customer pays consideration or
the Group has a right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers the
promised goods to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a
contract liability when the payment is
received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract
liability is the Group’s obligation to
transfer the promised goods to a
customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the
Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. A right to consideration
is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

(Continued)
2.2.8 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a
lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the
net present value of the following lease

payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are
based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable
by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising that option.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies
(Continued)

2.2.8 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost comprising the amount of the
initial measurement of lease liability, any
lease payments made at or before the
commencement date and restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s
useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 BEBRXERME(E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.2 Summary of material accounting policies 22 EAEHHEME(E)
(Continued)
2.2.8 Leases (Continued) 228 #HE (&)
Payments associated with short-term HIEEMENEEBEREER
leases of store premises and all leases FFEREBEBEEMHENRS
of low-value assets are recognised on a N RUABEBEZRERT
straight-line basis as an expense in profit R AERAL BEMEEE
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a HEBA+—_@EAxKUATH
lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value HE - EEEEEREHE
assets comprise point of sale machines. E IR -
Lease income from operating leases where AEEEADHEAKE R
the Group is a lessor is recognised on a KEHERAEHEESRR
straight-line basis over the lease term. The HEHBEER - HBEHEE
respective leased assets are included in the EERBEMEREZEEE
consolidated balance sheet based on their EBEXRNRNYE -
nature.
2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HMBEEREFBRERE
accounting policies
2.3.1 Segment reporting 231 B BHKE
Operating segments are reported in KL HERNEHRH N EM
a manner consistent with the internal FTERLERREREBEAI
reporting provided to the chief operating BEHMAFA—H-BER
decision-maker. The chief operating BEERBRLFTBEE D E
decision-maker, who is responsible B ETELEREE LT
for allocating resources and assessing EREMERAROPNITES -

performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive
directors that makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency
and the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(0)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities
carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences
on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through the profit or loss are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position
of all the group entities that have a
functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as
follows:

() assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.2 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations
are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

2.3.3 Financial assets

(@)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial
assets in the category of those to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on
the Group’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments
when and only when its business model
for managing those assets changes.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.3 Financial assets (Continued)

(0)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales
of financial assets are recognised
on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group classified its
debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.3 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net”
together with foreign exchange gains
and losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit
loss (“ECL”) associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material

accounting policies (Continued)
2.3.3 Financial assets (Continued)

(d) Impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.
If a significant increase in credit risk
of a receivable has occurred since
initial recognition, then impairment is
measured as lifetime ECL.

2.3.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount reported in the
consolidated balance sheet when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts, and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Group of the counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HBEEARSFTHERBE
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

235 BEGBWNRER A fEW

S BRRERNBE(E)

2.3.5 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment. See Note 2.3.3 for further
information about the Group’s accounting
for trade and other receivables for a

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

2.3.7 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to
the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR A BA B R AR M
2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2 EHEEENBE(E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HttBEEREABEHRE

accounting policies (Continued) (#&)
2.3.8 Trade and other payables 238 B ZETEREAR EMEN
3]

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired
in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade and other payables are
classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.3.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY 2
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material 23 HBEEARSFTHERBE
accounting policies (Continued) (&)

239 BE (&)

S BRRERNBE(E)

2.3.9 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present
value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditures required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used
to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.3.10 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at
amortised cost calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance
income where it is earned from financial
assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

2.3.11 Employee benefits

(a) Employee benefit entitlements

Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and
the cost of other benefits to the Group
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
the employees of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(0)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is
a defined contribution retirement
scheme and available to all Hong
Kong employees. Both the Company
and the staff are required to contribute
5% of the employees’ relevant income
with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month
to the MPF scheme. Staff may elect to
contribute more than the minimum as
a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory
provident fund scheme are expensed
as incurred.

The Group also contributes to pension
schemes established by municipal
governments in respect of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are
charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The liability or asset recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet in respect
of defined benefit pension plans is the
present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit
credit method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.11 Employee benefits (Continued)

(0)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Remeasurement gains and losses
arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions
are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are
included in retained earnings in the
consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in the consolidated balance
sheet.

2.3.12 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, and no longer
at the discretion of the Company, where
appropriate.

2.3.13 Earnings per share

(@)

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2.3 Summary of other potentially material
accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.13 Earnings per share (Continued)
(b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the
figures used in the determination of
basic earnings per share to take into
account:

° the after-income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares; and

° the weighted average number of
additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.3.14 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated income statement over
the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 UXERER
3.1 Financial risk factors 31 BIREAKBEE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

(a) Market risk
()  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), United States
dollars (“US$”) and RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising mainly from the exposure of
HK$ and US$ against RMB as the
majority of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities including deposits in
banks, trade receivables and trade
payables are denominated in HK$ and
USS$.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 28 February 2025, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB87,000 (2024: RMB13,000) higher/
lower mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation
of RMB denominated deposits in
banks.

At 28 February 2025, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB23,000 (2024:RMB23,000) lower/
higher mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation
of US$ denominated deposits in
banks.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be
minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from bank balance which
exposes the Group to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks.

As at 28 February 2025, if the interest
rates on bank balance had been 25
basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, loss for the
year would have been approximately
RMB651,000 (2024: RMB723,000)
lower/higher mainly as a result of
higher/lower net interest income on

bank balance.

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables including deposits (Note
21) and cash and bank balances (Note 22)
included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial

assets.
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3

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Sales to retail customers are made in
cash or via major credit cards. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution and management does
not expect any losses arising from non-
performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXERKREREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BHEBREZE(EH)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based
on the ageing and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 28 February 2025 and
29 February 2024, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok B 285 S

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 H¥EEEREE
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEABEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEREE)
As at 28 February 2025, the Group RZE-_RARF-_HA=+N
had identified that certain debtors had H AEBEERES TE
insolvency issues. In this respect, the BAGFTEETHKERE -
Group made provision of loss allowance for Ut E R RNEEBED
full for RMB189,000 (2024: RMB402,000). RE2BEEBEBEBBARE
Regarding the remaining balances, the 189,000 (ZE =M 4 : A
Group determined the loss allowance on K #402,0007T) ° ¥ 5 F
a collective basis as at 28 February 2025 s N-_E-_RF_H
and 29 February 2024 as follows for trade —t+tNBRERZ-ZZE-_NE_HA
receivables: ZThB  AEEHEFE
WERBEZEATHAREES
B -
Over
1-30days 31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
Current  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue Total
k] il Gk ik
04 1230k 31Z60XK  61290%k  90KML it
e o 3 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
As at 28 February 2025 ZA=TIA AE®TFR ARMTR AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%T:n
Expected loss rate BRERX 2.8% 5.2% 9.0% 31.3% 54.8%
Carrying amount REfE
(net of specific provision) (RETERER)
— frade receivables -BAENER 17,308 2,851 255 249 3 20,694
Loss allowance BERE 492 147 2 78 17 757
QOver
1-30days  31-60days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
k] ki ks ks
A% 1E0K  3EOK  61ENX QRN Ch
RZBZNE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 29 February 2024 “AZthA ARETR ARETn AREfr ARETn ARETT ARETR
Expected loss rate EHERL 1.6% 27% 4.6% 18.2% 37.0%
Carrying amount KA
(net of specific provision) (RET&ER)
— trade receivables -BHRNEE 21,754 8,546 109 88 127 30,624
Loss allowance BEER 35 232 5 16 47 655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(CONTINUED)

3 UHEREEGE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

31 MBEREZEE)

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparties’ historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.
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(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) FEEE(4E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEREE)
The loss allowances for trade receivables R-ZE-_RAF_-_A=+NH
as at 28 February 2025 and 29 February “E-NFE-_A=-+AH
2024 reconcile to the opening loss 2 5 FE W BE TE B 18 B g R
allowances as follows: FYEBEBREHEREROT:
2025 2024
—E-RE Z—ZT-OF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AR%®TTT
At beginning of year F ] 1,057 5,674
Write-off as uncollectable  #fi $5 T 7] Y [2 & %8 (377) (4,232)
Write-back on recovery of U [a] 32 BR # 3]
bad debts 7 (168) (344)
Increase/(decrease) in loss FRELEBEBHRK
allowance recognised in HE R E 1B
the consolidated income BEEmS
statement during the OB )
year 7 434 (41)
At end of year FIR 946 1,057

MEERANEMSRE
EME BEBEEZ2ERYH
HFNELENXRRER
FBRI - BT HERIE
RARHEEERBRIY KRERE
ZEM - BEEETRE
REAEREEBEEETE
ZEREEBEBRLIEKX -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foi A B 5 R M

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEBEEREEGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BIEABEE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) mEBEZEE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes EENRHELEREIE
maintaining sufficient cash, which is PRéEFAREE2 (X EH

mainly generated from the operating cash
flow, and the availability of funding from
adequate amounts of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Group’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period
at the consolidated balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

REREREL) UWE&EB
BABNEAEZEERE
RERmaHHRES - K
SR NEFTHIANE
EEFERE REER
8] e 588 I

TEREAEENTKEE
LEHEAEERZANE
HAMBTHBE ST AR
BEIHAR - RAFTHEE
CHEABHARTHEBEER -
MRITEEETKR K12
BEARIENEHRESER
HIEm&#% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

3 UHEREEGE

31 MBEREZE(E)
(c) nEBEZEE(E)

Less than Between Between Over
Tyear 1and2years 2and5years 5 years Total
-ENR -FEMECE WERDEZH RBLE it
R-EZ1E RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2025 ZAZTNA ARETR ARETT AR ARETT ARETTR
Trade and other payables BAENEER
EHENER 57,838 - - - 57,838
Lease liabilfies HEaE 6,955 975 - - 7,930
64,793 975 - - 65,768
Less than Between Between QOver
Tyear  Tand2years  2and5years 5 years Total
—ENR -EEWECE MEERECE BETE it
R-E-MmE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 29 February 2024 “A-thE ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  AREfT  ARETR
Trade and other payables BHEAEAR
A EREE 60,328 - - - 60,328
Lease liabilties HERR 14,164 5,959 1,140 - 21263
74,492 5,959 1,140 - 81,591

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 B0 s 22 B v
3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXERKREREGE)

(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXEREE(E)

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and bank balance.

The gearing ratios as at 28 February 2025 and
29 February 2024 were as follows:

AEEEREERERE LRE
RERREPIFHAE - B
FAHAEERGRE NEBEHL
EHBRTHRROBRESHE
MEMB|ITER BEXRE
PRIR S EITHAR

HENEMARMEE B K
SENEELXIEREEZEER
B EE - EE L RIRFEKRK
NEDZERTE - FEBRE
RER(BERGEEEABRM
RZRBRIIFERBDEF)RRE
FARITHRE BT E -

RZEBE-_RAF_A-+NHEZ
TEo_mME_A=-+AH EEHT
E S

2025 2024
—E_RE —E-UE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT

Total borrowing BB
Less: Cash and bank balance
(Note 22) (K at22)
Net cash FIRE
Total equity AN
Gearing ratio BELX

As at 28 February 2025, the Group maintained
a net cash position of approximately
RMB327,911,000 (2024: RMB364,655,000).

R e RIRTT A ER

(327,911) (364,655)

(327,911) (364,655)

483,407 618,111
N/A N/A
TEA T4 H

RZFE-_RAF_HA=_+N\A8"
FEBREBFEOARYK
327,911,000 (Z T — M F: A
R #364,655,0007T) °
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Aok 1 B 285 A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

This note explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the non-financial assets that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
balance sheet. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining
fair value, the Group has classified its non
financial assets and liabilities into the three
levels as following:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

Details of the fair value estimation for the
investment properties are disclosed in Note 15.
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3.3 AFEEME
AMETHMBTERESREEE
BEXRPUARFEEERME
ENFMBEENRAFEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

4

f 1 O 25 A B
T EESHE R A E

etk HE S ERFETE LRE
BEERLAMAR(RRBAHEER
HELTAEEGEHEEENAR
EMH)MIE

AEEELARERKOMES RS -
BMERE MEEHHARS
BEREERNT BV RFELR
B AT ER RO MG MR
T o

(@) WX HBERRBOAEBF
5
AEEEEBEEEAREYE
WM REOEET A ERER -
AR D RBE AL E M)A
MR BEhREBEBEENE
BRATE B F A E o fie A fE A
FHIRERETFH - AE
2 E A IR AT E X I
WA MEEERER LSRR
BT IFREEMEE E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, is recognised as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in Notes 2.2.3,
2.2.4 and 2.2.8. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use, which are based on the
best information available to reflect the amount
obtainable at each consolidated balance sheet
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable,
willing parties, after deducting the costs to
disposal.

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

(e)

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its
investment properties based on valuations
determined by independent professional
qualified valuers. The fair value of the
Group’s investment properties are based on
the market price of similar properties and
locations. In relying on the valuation reports
of the independent professional valuer, the
management has exercised its judgment and
is satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the market conditions prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Any changes
in the market conditions will affect the fair value
of the investment properties of the Group.

4

foi A B 5 R M

= B g5 R ¥ E (&)

(d FENTERFE

(e)

FENAERFEAATER
B P A 5 ST BB RS AT T X
AR ER - WFMETS
REEAMMRANKEREE
FREMEEMNBELR - &
BEEREAEREHMFEAR
B ff 5T -

BREMERN D FEME

AEBERBBIEXRMGEME
ENHEEMGBERENENR
FE - AEENRENENR
FEERBEBELDE M2
MEERETN - KEBLE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail perspective and
assess the performance of operations on a
geographical basis (Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively). The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information
reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
reportable segment result. This measurement basis
excludes gross rental income from an investment
property, net exchange losses, fair value losses on
an investment property, finance income, net and
unallocated items.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales
are based on the country in which the customer is
located, and total assets and capital expenditure are
based on the country where the assets are located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakaEERGE)

(CONTINUED)

()  The segment information provided to the () MPATESFTREEAHZ_-Z
executive directors for the reportable segments —hHE-A-+NBIEE ZA
for the year ended 28 February 2025 is as EWMAP MO EERDAT:
follows:

Mainland
China Others Total
o B K PE Hitb iz
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Tnt AR®Trt AR¥Tx
Revenue from external HINRBEE 7
customers 294,096 — 294,096
Reportable segment loss a2k » fEE 18 ___(102,418) | (261) (102,679)
Gross rental income from ¥ E&WE B S
an investment property g A 1,886
Net exchange losses ME H 8 - SR EE (347)
Fair value losses on an WEMENFE
investment property B 18 (9,244)
Finance income, net B UL A SFEE 9,612
Unallocated items *HMIBE (15)
Loss before income tax % BT 18 5 B &S 18 (100,787)
Income tax expense RCY (2,505)
Loss for the year FANEE (103,292)
Depreciation e 18,990 - 18,990
Impairment losses on W R ERE
property, plant and BB S 18
equipment 842 — 842
Impairment losses on FRAEEEREBE
right-of-use assets 518 1,014 — 1,014
Additions to non-current ERBEERE
assets (other than CGEIEFRERIB
deferred income tax BEBIN
assets) 7,056 1,740 8,796
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o B B 5 R M

5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(if

The segment information provided to the
executive directors for the reportable segments
for the year ended 29 February 2024 is as

5 WKWaRkIBEEHGE)

(i) MATEFRHEERBEZ_F
“HE—_AZtTARLEFEEZA
EMPBZOBERDT

follows:
Mainland
China Others Total
AR K B H 48 %E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFITT AREBEFT ARETFIT
Revenue from external HGNRBEE 7N
customers 394,164 7,264 401,428
Reportable segment loss A2 5 B E 8 ___ _(e6960 (3,588) (30,548)
Gross rental income from & &WE 2H 4
an investment property a1 A 927
Net exchange losses 3 Eie - H5E (2,486)
Finance income, net A 5 10,666
Unallocated items XHHBLIEB (18)
Loss before income tax [ P8 R R E 1B (21,459)
Income tax expense Frigf X & (2,867)
Loss for the year FANEE (24,326)
Depreciation e 26,441 959 27,400
Impairment losses on W RN RE
property, plant and N REN SRl
equipment 3,010 — 3,010
Impairment losses on FREEERE
right-of-use assets E5 18 2,291 — 2,291
Additions to non-current  FEFEBEERD
assets (other than GEIEFRERIB
deferred income tax BEBIN
assets) 27,761 99 27,860

For the years ended 28 February 2025 and
29 February 2024, revenues from external
customers are mainly derived from the Group’s
own brands, LE SAUNDA, le saunda MEN,
LINEA ROSA and charm & easy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI B R P R
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WREIPEER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities iy RZE-_HAF_A-_+NH =&
as at 28 February 2025 by reportable segment EEIRAERNDBEE D ZEE
is set out below: FradEomnmT:

Mainland
China Others Total
MR B K BE Hth # %8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETnt AR®FTnrt AR¥Tx
Segment assets DEEE _ 292,020 237,974 529,994
Deferred income tax EEFTEHRIBEE
assets 22,407
Unallocated assets ROMEE 21,844
Total assets per REEEBER
consolidated balance VEE®E
sheet __ 574,245
Segment liabilities DEEE 71,417 5,058 76,475
Current income tax EHEHRAaE
liabilities 1,507
Deferred income tax EEFFESHRIEAE
liabilities 12,819
Unallocated liabilities KO AEERE 37
Total liabilities per REEEBER
consolidated balance v BE®EE
sheet ___ 90,838
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Aok 1 B 285 A

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WREIPEER(E)

(CONTINUED)

(iv) An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities vy A-ZE-_WMFE-_A-_+NB" K
as at 29 February 2024 by reportable segment EEIRAERNDBEE D ZEE
is set out below: FradEomnmT:

Mainland
China Others Total
AR K B HAb 4 E

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AREBTIT ARBTET

Segment assets DHEEE 430,232 262,903 693,135
Deferred income tax BEEFMEBMEEE

assets 29,490
Unallocated assets KOREE 21,457
Total assets per REEEBER

consolidated balance CEEBE

sheet 744082
Segment liabilities DEAE 100,893 5,331 106,224
Current income tax EHEHRAaE

liabilities 1,676
Deferred income tax EILFTEHREAG

liabilities 18,016
Unallocated liabilities KO AEERE 55
Total liabilities per REEEBER

consolidated balance ZEBEBRE

sheet __ 125971

208 e saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b B A I

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WakosEERGE)
(CONTINUED)
(v) The analysis of revenue from external customers v) RAHMEBESEEH2KBINA
by geographical segments is as follows: BEWEZOMMT
2025 2024
—E-_RE —ZE-UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue I = AR®BTR AR®TT
Mainland China o B K 294,096 394,164
Hong Kong 7 - 6,870
Macau B - 394
Total Bt 294,096 401,428

(vi)

For the years ended 28 February 2025 and 29
February 2024, there was no transaction with a
single external customer that amounted to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue.

An analysis of the non-current assets (other
than deferred income tax assets) of the Group

BHE_T-AF-_A=ZTN\BEK
—ZE-ME-_A-t+hBIFE
WERE - IIREFPETLE
N EE U F10% A F R
,/% °

(vi) AEBEZAMESEE D2k
RBEEEEMBHREAEER

by geographical segments is as follows:

SNZ TR

2025 2024

—E-FHE —E-UE

RMB’000 RMB’000

Non-current assets ERBEE ARBTRT AR®FTT
Mainland China ey N 173 25,922 41,591
Hong Kong a5 1,428 766
Macau JE P 65,586 73,678
Total @t 92,936 116,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

55 B0 s 22 B v
6 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/ 6 HMWARHEM(ER) WiHE -
GAINS, NET =
2025 2024
—E-HFE —T-_OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT AR®EFIT
Other income Halg A
Government incentives (Note (a)) I T 78 B (47 72 (@) 732 1,358

Gross rental income from an

BREMEZHEHAWA

investment property 1,886 927
2,618 2,285

Other (losses)/gains, net Hh (B8 W% B8
Net exchange losses (Note (b)) ME 5 B8 - FE (M) (347) (2,486)

Gains on early termination of IRAIR T ES YU
leases (Note 17) (Wt at17) 38 7,472

Compensation for early RAKRIEEESOEE
termination of leases - (1,768)

Fair value losses on an EYENTEEE

investment property (Note 15) (K15£15) (9,244) —
(9,553) 3,218

Notes: et -

(@)  Government incentives mainly represent grants received (@ BABBIZEENTEBRFRENH
from the PRC government in subsidising the Group’s general PE AREEAEEN-—R2EMESR
operations and employee salaries. There are no unfulfilled oo ELEMBHSBEMTRMEHIKMN
conditions or other contingencies attaching to these grants. o H fth S SRR o

(b)  Net exchange losses arose from the settlement of transactions (o) REINBHERSGEERBLFREXKBE
denominated in foreign currencies and from the translation at NINEHEZ BB EEREB(BEEE
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities, RABERFEEZENLEE  FH -

including inter-company balances, denominated in foreign

currencies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

EXPENSES BY NATURE 7

Expenses included in cost of sales, impairment
losses/(write-back of impairment) on trade
receivables, net, selling and distribution expenses,

BEESEZHAX

AFAHER A B 5 R U AR R R E B
BORERR) F8 HERDH
XM —REITHAX 2T :

and general and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

2025 2024
—E-RF Z—ZE-_NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR ARBTT
Auditors’ remuneration % B R BN
— Audit services — ZE R 1,433 1,413
— Non-audit services — FEZERTS 35 38
Depreciation of property, plant and M MEBNEREITE
equipment (Note 16) (Htit16) 5,416 7,872
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRESEITE
(Note 17(a)) (K1 i#17(@) 13,574 19,528
Loss on write off/disposal of plant WSy B ELREER
and equipment (Note 23(b)) (K1 £23(b)) 1,142 3,261
Cost of sales 35 & A A 150,888 150,629
Expenses relating to short-term EHCHEER]EHEE
leases and variable lease B (K iE17b)
payments (Note 17(b)) 48,903 71,532
Freight charges EE 3,632 4,963
Postage and express charges IR N R IE B 1,390 1,356
Advertising and promotional EEREERAX
expenses 13,429 16,403
Employee benefit expenses EEENAZ(BEESHE)
(including directors’ (B1:29)
emoluments) (Note 9) 124,662 121,694
Impairment losses on inventories, FEREEIE F3
net 2,293 1,281
Impairment losses/(write-back of B EWEBEBEER
impairment) on trade CRiERMD)  F=x8
receivables, net 266 (385)
Impairment losses on property, plant %)% - # 52 & =5 # i (&
and equipment (Note 16) BB (K it16) 842 3,010
Impairment losses on right-of-use FTREEEREEIRE
assets (Note 17(a)) (Bt it 17(a)) 1,014 2,291
Direct operating expenses arising HMEBESWAZEEDE
from an investment property that FMEYS ZEEREHRY
generated rental income (K13 15(a))
(Note 15(a)) 159 279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

8 FINANCE INCOME, NET

8 HHWA FH

2025 2024

—E-_RHE —ZE-UF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Interest income on bank deposits RITEZRZH B W A 10,444 11,756

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEZMNALH

(Note 17) (Btaz17) (682) (1,090)
Interest expense on short-term bank R EARITEFZ Z2F B H

loan (150) —

9,612 10,666

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BEERAMI(BRERESTHE)

2025 2024

—E-HFE Z—ZE-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREBFTT

Wages and salaries IE&ENMFH® 103,871 96,405

Staff welfare and other benefits B T8 F & HAh =8k, 5,630 6,773
Pension costs — defined BEAREKRAEA — REMHT

contribution plans (Note) =2 (Ff ) 15,161 18,516

124,662 121,694
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)
Note:

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong participate
in a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF Scheme”) which is a
defined contribution scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme are held
separately from those of the Group under independently administered
funds. Contributions to the schemes by the employers and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.

The Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 was enacted in June
2022 which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits of employers’
mandatory contributions under the MPFO to offset severance
payment and long service payment (the “Offsetting Arrangement”).
The abolishment of the Offsetting Arrangement would increase the
state benefits that affect the long service payment payable by the
employer. In accordance with the requirement of HKAS19 Employee
benefits, management has re-measured the provision for long service
payment to reflect the financial impact of the abolishment of the
Offsetting Arrangement. The impact was assessed to be not material
for the year ended 28 February 2025.

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in defined contribution retirement schemes administered
and operated by municipal governments. The Group’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China contribute funds to the retirement schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of the employees which are calculated on
certain percentages of the average employee salaries as agreed by
the municipal governments. Such retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations payable to the retired
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

Retirement benefit scheme costs amounting to RMB15,161,000 (2024:
RMB18,516,000) were paid by the Group during the year. Forfeited
contributions totalling RMB657,683 (2024: Nil) were refunded and
credited in the employee benefit expenses during the year.

9

foi A B 5 R M

BERAFAX(BRESH)(E)

B it -

AEEREENNBRARAMNESEZ2BRRTE ﬁim
st ED%‘@%HIﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬂ(ﬁﬁiiﬁgm

BMefdNEENEARBEABEED ﬁrﬁgﬁﬁ!i
&EE?’%i%ﬁ*i%E’]Rﬁ%ﬁ BEREBER
BIERFT BN - DRIAME RN ELRF SFH

<<_§* ZEEBEGRIRE EDEN GRS R Y(E
EIDALS 1§IJ>>E"7§77¢/\HL15 HRH {68 7 58 1)
!E BB R A 5 ?A?i%i%éﬁ
iﬁia%ﬂlE&Eﬁﬂﬁ&%ﬁﬁ‘]tﬁﬁ(rﬁi*ﬁﬁfj)
5%%?543??#;1%1ﬂﬂ&%;ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ%%

WER - BREEESFEUNEIREERBID
RE EREBECEVNAERARBBE U
RRBOEE A LZHNHBEFE - BE-_FT_AF
“ACHN\HLEFE  ZRERTAGRTEKR-

AEERFPERENHBEAREEEAZ2EAT
BNEBREENRERKERARSFE - A%
B BORBE RO Y 8 & B AR R & 5 8 AR
e ERHERREN  BRMRBRTRET
BEENFHREHSNETEOLFE -ZE
BRAEHEIRENTRAESNZIRIKEEF
AEEBEFRN  BAAEBRINERKRE
FWEMEE -

FR AEBMINHERBEANFAERETAEAR
#15,161,0007T (=T = M 4F : A R #18,516,000
7T) o BAR BRI B R A A A R657,6837T
(ZZEZmF: &) VEFARBERAHAX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments

Pursuant to section 383 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622, the Laws of Hong Kong),
Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefit of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)
and the Listing Rules, the emoluments paid or

10 ESCRFARER
(a) EEREETHRAENE

B R aE BICE B % B 55622
BYFEIBIME(A R EEEF
= & KR BIN(FE622GE) & £

A

BUEENRSTHR

ABRERC ek &Ik B

payable to every director and the chief executive NN
for the year are as follows:
2025
—E-RE
Salaries,  Employer’s
bonus, other contribution
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
e w4
H 2R EXRH#e
we BNA & HE R H)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Name i3 ARBTn AR%Tn AR%Tr AR%Tx
Executive directors UTES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky fREFRL
(resigned with effact from (B=F-WE+H
7 October 2024) +HEFF) - 2,537 11 2,548
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBRE - 166 8 174
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BERRL
(resigned with effect from (BZE-MENH
13 Seotember 2024) 1=HEFF) - 95 5 100
Non-executive director FYTES
Mr. James Ngai fRfEELE 166 - - 166
Independent non-executive BIFYTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon KB & 166 - - 166
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George 2EELE 166 - - 166
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRBEE 166 - - 166
Ms. Chan Kit Yin REHLL 166 - - 166
830 2,798 24 3,652
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR B i B
10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 ES2EANRER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s () ESRESTHRAEMS (E&)
emoluments (Continued)
2024
—ECNE
Salaries, Employer’s

bonus, other contribution
allowances  to retirement
and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
e fea
EfRek  EBEEAE

we BN T EIf R @5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Name #H ARETT  ARETr ARETT AR%T:
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky RENTT - 2,541 17 2,558
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FXBEE - 178 9 187
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BERZT - 383 12 395
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. James Ngai filsLE 164 - - 164
Independent non-executive BUEHTES
directors
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon B LS 164 —~ - 164
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELE 164 - - 164
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan AFRBZE 164 — - 164
Ms. Chan Kit Yin REZHETL
(appointed with effect from (B-E=-=#/17
28 August 2023) T/ AREZF) 82 - - 82
738 3,102 38 3,878
No other emoluments paid or receivable HE-_T-_RAF-_A=-+N\HIE
in respect of director’s other services in FE G TEESHNEEARAD T
connection with the management of the affairs SERNBCEEBEMIBMH A
of the company or its subsidiary undertaking MR EES NS ER S (=
during the year ended 28 February 2025 (2024: T E )
Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B 255 AR B

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2025, no
retirement benefits were paid to or receivable
by the directors in respect of their services as
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking through defined benefit
pension plans (2024: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year ended 28 February 2025, no
payments or benefits in respect of termination of
directors’ services were paid or payable, directly
or indirectly, to the directors (2024: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

During the year ended 28 February 2025, no
consideration was provided to or receivable
by third parties for making available directors’
services (2024: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans
and other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year ended 28 February 2025, there
are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in
favour of the directors, their controlled body
corporates and connected entities (2024: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2024: Nil).
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10 ES2ENRERS A

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

EESRKER
HE-_ZT-_AF_A=-+N\BL
FE UEEFTFRAATRIN
FE - MEBERAAAK
MEBAR 2R  skERAAEA
FEMNBRAREKNETHEE
ZEHMRS B EWRZ
BRBEN(ZZEZHEF &) -

RIEEERBz2HES
HE-_T-_AF_-_A=-1+N\HL
FE TERNEFHEENBE
THERKRILEEERBEZ KA
LHE BEAEENRECE
PO 4E) o

MEEZHREOE=FRHEHN

i i
BHE_ZT-_AF-_A=-+N\HL
FE VERES HERSE
=AhXNEERHRM(ZE =
F|)o

FRNLNESE ZFEEZXE
TERBEBEEAZIZAZE
R EERREMRZZER

HE_Z-_AF_A-+/N\B1t
FE O BMENEE ZZEEE2
XELERBEERBAYEA

ZEF EEFRREMXS(Z
TN ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR A BA B R AR M
11 SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 11 SREBAEHE

Five highest paid individuals hAEBREHAL
The directors’ emoluments presented above include FX 2N EEMELOBREAE
the emoluments of 1 (2024: 1) highest paid individuals —Z(ZE_UF:—RZ)EaHAT
in the Group. The emoluments of the remaining 4 HElS - ENSBTUZ(ZE P04
(2024: 4) highest paid individual during the year MA)EEHFALTREBEE_ZT_AF
ended 28 February 2025 was: ZTHAZTNBIEFEZEMA

2025 2024

—E_RF —E -
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFRT AR®EFIT

Salaries, bonus, other allowances He o TE4 - Ha 2R R
and benefits in kind =) 25 2,895 2 886
Employer’s contributions to EEXEKRESFEIH =%
retirement benefits scheme 90 138
2,985 3,024
Emolument band Number of individuals
e E AE
2025 2024
—E-HE —EZF
RMBS500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R#500,0017T & A & #1,000,0007T 3 3
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A & #1,000,0017C £ A K #1,500,0007C 1 1
None of the directors or the five highest paid FR FESERRZEFALTY
individuals waived or agreed to waive any BENEIREREAAHE (=ZF
emoluments during the year (2024: Nil). ZVF ) o
The senior management’s emoluments fell within the RRERABZHMEELLT

following bands:

Emolument band Number of individuals
¥ EE A¥
2025 2024

—E-_RE —E-JUF

RMBNil-RMB500,000 AREOTLZE ARS500,0007T 1 1
RMB500,001-RMB1,000,000 A R #500,0017t & A & #1,000,0007T 1 3
RMB1,000,001-RMB1,500,000 A E #1,000,0017t & A K& #1,500,0007T 1 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A R i
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:

RieBRaRPHAZAEHEE
=35

2025 2024
—E-RF _—_T_MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AR®T
Current income tax EHMER

— Hong Kong profits tax —HABNEB - -
— Macau complementary tax —BFEEREH - —

— People’s Republic of China (“the —FhEARELME(HRE])
PRC”) corporate income tax EFER 745 576
Deferred income taxation (Note 19) BB BN E19) 1,760 2,291
2,505 2,867

The PRC corporate income tax is provided for on the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC at 25%
(2024 25%).

The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is
16.5% (2024: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not have any
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during each
of the two years ended 28 February 2025 and 29
February 2024.

The applicable rate of Macau complementary
tax is 12% (2024: 12%). No provision for Macau
complementary tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statement as the Group does
not have any assessable profit arising in Macau
during each of the two years ended 28 February
2025 and 29 February 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b B A I

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

12 FiEHRXHE)
AEBBRAEVAER 2R AER
REBAREKAEZERSBEZIER

using the applicable tax rate as follows: m
2025 2024
—E-_RHE —ZE-UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Loss before income tax % B 15 4 B E5 1B (100,787) (21,459)
Tax calculated at domestic tax 1 & E H % 5% M @ Y
rates applicable to profits in the AN R E R IR
respective geographical areas (23,847) (4,067)
Income not subject to tax HERBIA (2,004) (1,930)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 T H
purposes 2,616 1,276
Tax losses for which no deferred RAERRILEFMESMBEEE
income tax asset was recognised 2 IAE B 30,104 8,058
Utilisation of previously unrecognised {8 F 4 B R FER 2 Fi 1B
tax losses 8 (129) —
Withholding tax on distributable M5 K s F 2 B
earnings in the PRC (4,235) (470)
Income tax expense ERCY N 2,505 2,867

BHE-_Z-_hAE_A-+)N\BHILFE -
VEEMEEmB AL Z2HIBS H (=
ToFE) o

There was no tax charge relating to components of
other comprehensive income for the year ended 28
February 2025 (2024: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

13 LOSSES PER SHARE
Basic
Basic losses per share is calculated by dividing the
loss attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

13 BRER
2R
BEREXRNERLIEARAERRTSE
AREERRAFADHTERK
ZINEFHEETE -

2025 2024
—E-_RE —ZE-UF
Loss attributable to owners of the AANTEFIFEAELER
Company (RMB’000) (AR FIT) (100,776) (23,542)
Weighted average number of BB 1T MR 2 N 19 &
ordinary shares in issue ('000) (F=h) 705,895 705,895
Basic losses per share (RMB cents) SREEANEE(ARKSD) (14.28) (3.34)

Diluted

For the years ended 28 February 2025 and 29
February 2024, the diluted losses per share was the
same as basic losses per share as there was no
dilutive potential ordinary share outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B s R B T
14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZT-QNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TE
No interim dividend 4 b HA S 2
(2024: Nil) (—=F— @¢ ) _ _
No interim special dividend 4 oh HE 4 R RS B
(2024 Interim special dividend of (:;ﬁ:mi : ch BR 4 B
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share) H SE=RI LHx5 03l - 31,748
No final dividend, proposed mE R A
(2024: Nil) _7_m¢ 4H) - -
No final special dividend, proposed @ EEHﬁ HRIIR B
(2024 Final special dividend of —ZE-mn ¢ P =]
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share) A% B RS X R 5.098 1) - 32,173
- 63,921

At the Board meeting held on 26 May 2025, the RZEZRAFRAZTNBRITZE

Directors did not propose a payment of final dividend eeRt EETEZREEHSE

for the year ended 28 February 2025. —ECRAF_AANBHLEFEZR
HR S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ok 7 S 5 R A R i
15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 BEWE

2025 2024

—E-HE Z—E-_NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TT

At beginning of year R E 4 76,038 73,200
Fair value losses recognised in the (\,i? EERRBERY

consolidated income statement N 1EE B (A i26)

(Note 6) (9,244) —
Currency translation differences & X =28 1,152 2,838
At end of year R 4R 67,946 76,038
Investment properties are stated at fair value which KEMERATFEINER - 2 FETD

are referenced to the valuations that rely on the open
market value basis at the consolidated balance sheet
dates prepared by an independent professional
valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited. The
fair value changes are included in “other (losses)/

TEEHEHAGS
(5 18),/ 5 %

gains, net” in the consolidated income statement.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(a)

’%%Eij

ﬂ%ﬁi£%1$@%%%£&ﬁﬁ'ﬁ
mABRA TEG,Z*/\,Z*EEMETF
7 m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁﬂjﬂﬂmﬁ

i%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ

REcBEBERBAZRENE

income statement for investment o]
properties
2025 2024
—E-EHF —ET-UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR AREBTT
Rental income (Note 6) HEW AW Z6) 1,886 927
Direct operating expenses arising HERE WA Z K&
from an investment property MERMEECEE
that generated rental income KERZ(HaE7)
(Note 7) (159) (279)
1,727 648

As at 28 February 2025, the Group had no
unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2024: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement for investment
properties (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties are held
within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
through lease and sale. The Group has
measured the deferred income tax relating to
the temporary differences of these investment
properties using the tax rates and the tax bases
that are consistent with the expected manner of
recovery of these investment properties (Note
19).

Valuation basis

The Group obtains independent valuations for
its investment properties at least annually. In
the current year, the valuations are performed
by Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuers. At
the end of each reporting period, the directors
update their assessment of the fair value of each
property, taking into account the most recent
independent valuations. The directors determine
the value of the properties within a range of
reasonable fair value estimates.

At each financial year end the Group:

° Verifies all major inputs to the independent
valuation report;

° Assesses property valuations movements
when compared to the prior year valuation
report; and

° Holds discussions with the independent
valuer.

Aok B 285 S

15 REWFH)

(a)

(b)

REeBRERBAZRENE
= 8 (&)

AEBENREVENFHEEN
EEBBHEHENNEENTTAHE
REEMEPANEBOOEEN
s ARBERARKEYED
BEHME T A — B R R A
HE HEGERENVENER
MEERBBMNELEMESHET
& (fFE19)

fhEE%E

AEEZRIRNEBFREEREY
EZBIUE -RNAFE - B
3 F ¥ 4 (B A i 8 IR BR AT (4 R
AERABETHE RE—
EHREMR EFEEERKA
BYAE EFREBEDED
NFEEFGE - EERAER
FEAERERREMFEE -

REBEMREE ~EE:

e RUEMNBIUMBERSEZM
BEXEMBHAE:

c BUBLEEMEERS
B GRS EERD
R

o HUFVAIMEEIEITHN® ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

The best evidence of fair value is current prices
in an active market for similar investment
properties. Where such information is not
available the directors consider information from
a variety of sources including:

() current prices in an active market for
properties of different nature or recent
prices of similar properties in less
active markets, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(i)  discounted cash flow projections based on
reliable estimates of future cash flows; or

(i) capitalised income projections based upon
a property’s estimated net market income,
and a capitalisation rate derived from an
analysis of market evidence.

Fair value hierarchy

15 REWYEGE)

(b) fH{EE%E (&)
RNPENRKFBRARIREED
LROKREDENHRE - BEE
ERENBHEEHNSEES
BRREE:

(i

(i)

VA

TRMEEYM RN ER™T S
MIRERBIWERBD
HEMHENOE BB E
[RBR I EZ R

RIEA A RRE SR
ZEEFRBLIR X

1895 %) 3% t B % 5
A BAMEEERA AR
fle &0 ) 3 T 42 0 45 38 B9 5
#7 o

BF R

Fair value measurements

at 28 February 2025 using
R-ZE-HF=-A=tN\H
EHATSAFETE
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
HREEz EZHMTER EBEEFTEER
ERTHSRE WAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—8) (5=F8) (E=FE)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Description ik ARBT R ARET R ARBTR
Recurring fair value BEULTEHE
measurements
Investment properties: REME:
The PRC f - - 2,360
Macau & S - - 65,586
- - 67,946
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
foi A B 5 R M

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

15 REWYEGE)
(b) HEEEGE)

RFEZFEKGE)

Fair value measurements

at 29 February 2024 using
RZE-ME-A=TNH

Quoted prices

ERTHATE;E

in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
EREE: EZEMAHE BEIUEER
ERMISRE BWAE BAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(5—E) (F=FE) (E=E)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
Description i ARETF T ARETT ARETL
Recurring fair value BEULTEHE
measurements
Investment properties: RENE
The PRC F — - 2,360
Macau R - - 73,678
- - 76,038

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy
levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and
3 during the years ended 28 February 2025 and
29 February 2024.

RFEFEFEHAEETJEHEK
BAE(E=ZE)

AEBNBRREEHELEER
FESHEHREA LB RK
HOMENR AEREEERE -

HE_Z-_AF_-_A=-+TN\HK
ZEMF_AZTHBEILEFE -
REF—EB F_EBRE=ZEZ
WzEHER -
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Aok 1 B 285 A

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

15 REYWEE)
(b) fhfE 5% ()
AFEHERAEZTTEE

BWAE(E=E)(#E)

The PRC Macau Total
i B @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETT
At 1 March 2023 R-E-=F=f-H 2,360 70,840 73,200
Currency tranglation difference ERER - 2,838 2,838
At 29 February 2024 RZE-_ME-AZTNE 2,360 73,678 76,038
Total change in fair value for the year ~ FABAZELHAKA
included in the consolidated income ~ BHEEXZAEEATE
statement for assets held at theend £ 8%  REAE[E{
of the year, under “other (losses)/ (BR)/ W% 58]
gains, net" - - -
Change in fair value for the year ERRBEEVHARA
included in the consolidated income ~ BEFZAEEATE
statement for assets held at the g
end of the year - - -
At 1 March 2024 WZE-m&E=F-H 2,360 73,678 76,038
Losses from fair value adjustment NIEEE ER - (9,244) (9,244)
Currency translation difference ERES - 1,152 1,152
At 28 February 2025 RZE-RFE-AZTNH 2,360 65,586 67,946
Total change in fair value for the year ~ FABEEETHAKA
included in the consolidated income ~ BRRZAFEATE
statement for assets held attheend 2 &8 REBE[Ef
of the year, under “other (losses)/ (B8)/ W& 38
gains, net” - (9,244) (9,244)
Change in fair value for the year EXRBEEEUNARA
included in the consolidated income ~ BHEEZZAEEATE
statement for assets held at the g
end of the year - (9,244) (9,244)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued)
Valuation techniques

Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3)

Aok B 285 S

15 REYWE(E)

(b) HEEEGE)
18 18 £
N EFEEAERETAER
wWAEE=E)

The valuations were determined by using the
direct comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
property size. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square meter.

BBEE A E LA
o 1E #3445 L X
$rEEERENEANSE
BREEZERERIE ik
EHERABEE2HABEA
KA -

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
28 February 2025 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable
Description (RMB’000) technique inputs input inputs to fair value
R-BZEF
~B=1NH
WAYE BEZTEN BEFIN BEFIMNBAER
ER (AR®Tr) fELE WAE BAENEE RNYENBE
Investment property
— retail shop in 2,360 Direct comparison Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
the PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
RENZE
—fuRREZEE EELBE ALERMENL BTAKARE  ENEERS-
EE&/HE 16,5037 AEERR

Investment property

— retail shop in 65,586  Direct comparison Comparable’s unit
Macau approach selling/asking
price
RENZE
~-NRBRMEEE EREBE A EAM BN

EE/FE

RMB892,570 per  The higher the unit
square meter selling price, the

higher the fair

value
BYHKARE BUEERR:
892,5707C NIERR
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15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Valuation basis (Continued)

Valuation techniques (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

15 REYWE(E)
(b) fh{EE%E(H)

1818 # iy (&)
NFEFEEHAERETAER
wAEE=ZE)(E)

Fair value at Range of Relationship of
29 February 2024 Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable
Description (RMB'000) technique inputs input inputs to fair value
RZZ-MF
ZAZTAR
HATE BRI BEAIH BEAIMBAESR
I (ARETR) REFE GAE GAEMEE NTEMER
Investment property
— retail shop in 2,360 Direct comparison ~ Comparable’s unit ~ RMB16,523 per The higher the unit
the PRC approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
RENZE
—fiRFETEE EEERE ALEENEN BTAKARE  BEUEEAS
EE&/HE 18,5237C ATERR
Investment property
— retail shop in 73,678 Direct comparison  Comparable’s unit ~ RMB1,002,700 per ~ The higher the unit
Macau approach selling/asking square meter selling price, the
price higher the fair
value
REW%
-fURREMZEE EELERE ALERMENL BTARKARE  ENEERS
EE/HE 1,002,7007C AFERR
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Aok B 285 S

16 W% #BERKRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Motor
Buildings  improvements fixtures vehicles Total
RS
Br YEIR  BHRERE hE 3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥TR  AR%Fr  AR%fR  ARETR  AR¥T:n
At 1 March 2023 N-F-=F=R-H
Cost KA 18,593 266,416 21,831 2,857 309,697
Accumulated depreciation 2ENE (14,736) (258,030) 20,125) 2272) (295,163)
Net book amount FEFE 3,857 8,386 1,706 585 14534
Year ended 29 February 2024 BE-EZ-mE-ACTAR
I5R
Opening net book amount ENREAE 3,857 8,386 1,706 585 14,534
Currency translation differences EAEE 152 149 148 4 453
Additions hE - 7,081 2,413 - 9,494
Write off/cisposal (Note 2300) s/ REWH2) - (2,06) (1,225) - (3.261)
Depreciation i (195) (6,941) (589) (147) (7872
Impaiment (Aote (3) HEWZE) - (3010) - - (3010)
Closing net book amount EXBESE 3814 3629 2453 44 10,338
At 29 February 2024 RCZZMEZAZTHA
Cost M 7,564 263,375 22,671 2,880 296,490
Accumulated depreciation ZRfE (3.750) (259,746) 20,218) 2.439) (286,152)
Net book amount REFE 3,814 3,629 2,453 442 10,338
Year ended 28 February 2025 BECZ-RECACTAR
133
Opening net ook amount ENERFE 3814 3,629 2,453 42 10,338
Currency translation differences EXED 64 5 99 - 168
Additions hE - 2,183 2,145 - 4,328
Transfer g% - (328) 328 - -
Write offdisposal (Vots 234 i/ REW230) - (684) (458) - (1,142
Depreciation i (198) (3,181) (2,016) 21) (5,416)
Impairment /Aots (3) WEHEp) - (842) - - (842)
Closing net book amount EXEAFE 3,680 782 2,551 421 7,434
At 28 February 2025 i e o V=
Cost KA 7,695 25,429 12,195 2,802 48,211
Accumulated depreciation 2iENE (4,015) (24,647) (9,644) (2471) (40,777)
Net book amount FHFE 3,680 782 2,551 421 7,434
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

16 % #BERE

Notes:

(@)

Certain retail stores with operation were making losses
during the year. The Group regards each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit and
carried out impairment assessment for the retail stores which
have indicators of impairment. As a result, impairment loss
of approximately RMB842,000 (2024: RMB3,010,000) and
approximately RMB1,014,000 (2024: RMB2,291,000) against
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets, respectively,
were recognised in selling and distribution expenses of the
Group. The estimates of the recoverable amounts were based
on value-in-use calculations using discounted cash flow
projections based on the sales forecast.

The key assumptions made by management applied in
the financial forecast include pre-tax discount rate of 11%
(2024:11%) as well as sales growth rate of -10% (2024: +3%).
If expected pre-tax discount rate for the projection period
had been 1% lower/higher than management’s estimate with
all other variables held constant, the impairment amount
of leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets would
have been approximately RMB5,200 lower and RMB5,000
higher. If the sale growth rate had been 1% lower/higher than
management’s estimate with all other variables held constant,
the impairment amount of leasehold improvements and right-
of-use assets would have been approximately RMB5,000 lower
and RMB5,400 higher.

17 LEASES

The

Group has recognised right-of-use assets for

these leases, except for short term leases, see Note
2.2.8 to the consolidated financial statements further
information.

(a)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

1% ( nlﬁ

B it -

(@) BTKENTEERHEATEELERIE -
AEERBHTEEHAEERSELE
fir » WHBEREDRNTEEHETRE
FE-BAl AEBEHEERDHEAXF
AR ERODERSTIENFEREESE
TR TR E BB A AR842,0007T (=
— P4 AR #3,010,0007T) K £ A R
1,014,0007C (ZZ =14 : A R#2,291,000
o) e Bt Ak E R EREAEER
H HbpERTHSEENFHIBEERESR
EEBE -

by EREEMEEANRRANBERBRREE
WA IR EEI1% (ZZE_MHF : 11%) A K&
HEEBERA 10%(:%:@&43%)0
WEMEBHEMEHERFTE  BRAHMY
%E%ﬁ%mu?ﬁiﬁfttgﬁlﬁm R A
Mm% BIFHAOYMERETEMERESR
ERRESFEBR D HARES2007T M
A4 A R ¥S5,0007T © & BT A H i &
HERFITE  HEBERELEEENM
TR G IN% - RN ¥ S TR
FHEEEMNRESEZSRIOARE
5,0007T A& £ A R¥E5,4007T ©

17 HE

Ilé%h,ﬁﬁfﬁ SN REBECHEREE
MOEBGEREEE -FH@E:N " B
EHGEVBRRNE2.28 ¢

HEBEBBERETTUTE
ATHER S5

2025 2024
—E-HE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TR ARBFT
Right-of-use assets EREEE

Land use rights + b A 12,299 12,751

Retail shop premises, warehouses ZEJEM SRR AE
and offices 4,558 15,927
16,857 28,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

F o A 5 R P
17 LEASES (CONTINUED) 17 #HE &)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (@) REECEEEBRBEIANEE
balance sheet (Continued) (48)
2025 2024
ZB-HE T NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR%TT
Lease liabilities HERME
Current mE 6,780 13,551
Non-current ERE 968 6,908
7,748 20,459
2025
ZEZLE
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
BEEH -
THERE ERRMAE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR AR®T
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Opening balance as at RZEZMF=H—H
1 March 2024 ZENER 12,751 15,927 28,678
Additions NE - 4,468 4,468
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WEBRMH7) (664) (12,910) (18,574)
Early termination of leases RAKIEEESD - (1,913) (1,913)
Impairment (Note 16(a)) RIE(H 2 16(8) - (1,014) (1,014)
Currency translation differences  [& 1, = %8 212 - 212
Closing balance as at R-ZE-REF
28 February 2025 ZRZtNBZ
FRERH 12,299 4,558 16,857
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

17 HE(E)

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) REECEEEBEBRERNESE
balance sheet (Continued) (#g)
2024
“E-NF
Retail shop
premises,
Land use warehouses
rights and offices Total
TEEH
TiEAE  BERRMRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETT
Right-of-use assets CREEE
Opening balance as at RZE-=ZF=f—H
1 March 2023 ZENE R 12,895 21,974 34,869
Additions HNE - 18,366 18,366
Depreciation charge (Note 7) WEERNH7) (655) (18,873) (19,528)
Early termination of leases RRIZIERER K - (4,226) (4,226)
Impairment (Note 16(3)) W8 (H i 16(2) - (2,291) (2,291)
Currency translation differences & i, Z 8 511 977 1,488
Closing balance as at RZTZME
29 February 2024 ZAZThBZ
FRER 12,751 15,927 28,678
2025 2024
—E-HE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMT
Lease liabilities HEAE
Opening balance as at 1 March R=ZA—B2FNEH 20,459 37,299
Additions NE 4,362 18,286
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERRE (15,804) (25,545)
Interest for lease liabilities (Note 8) & & & F| B (47 :78) 682 1,090
Early termination of leases RARIEHESR (1,951) (11,698)
Currency translation differences &N Z%8 - 1,027
Closing balance as at WZ—A=+N\B/
28 February/29 February —“A=Zt+hBZ
FRE R 7,748 20,459
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17 *E.E nﬁ
REEREERBEINESH

17 LEASES (CONTINUED)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b)

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the

FEBRERBRTATNERAE

following amounts relating to leases: EM45E:
2025 2024
—E-RE —ZT_NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTRT ARBTT
Interest expense (included in 2 = H (FEA B 5 B A)
finance cost) (Note 8) (#17#8) 682 1,090
Expense relating to short-term ERARBAERXZGIA
leases (included in selling and SHE & D R XM — &
distribution expenses and RITHFAR)
general and administrative
expenses) 7,093 23,006
Expense relating to variable lease ~ BREKRTAHEGEHA
payments not included in lease FHENRAXZGIA
liabilities (included in selling BHE K& M — &
and distribution expenses and RITHFAR)
general and administrative
expenses) 41,810 48,526
For the year ended 28 February 2025, the BE-_ZT-_RAF_A=-+N\HIL

total cash outflow for leases amounted
to approximately RMB64,707,000 (2024:

RMB97,077,000).

FE-HE

EE S /}IL uuj Z@ %E Z’] A
R #64,707,00070 (ZZ — /N 4 :

A R #97,077,0007T) °
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how
these are accounted for

The Group’s right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities as a lessee mainly arise from lease of
various retail shop premises, warehouses and
offices with terms of 1 to 10 years but may have
extension options as described in (e) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment
terms that are linked to sales generated from
a store. For individual stores, up to 65% of
lease payments are on the basis of variable
payment terms with percentages ranging from
6% to 29.5% of sales. Variable payment terms
are used for a variety of reasons, including
minimising the fixed costs base for newly
established stores. Variable lease payments that
depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss
in the year in which the condition that triggers
those payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the
Group with such variable lease contracts would
increase total lease payments by approximately
RMB4,181,000 (2024: RMB4,853,000).

234 ¢ saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

17 HE(E)

(c)

(d)

AEENEEEBRAEARS
=

ERAMA AEB &A%
BELMERGE ETBRATE
EH - EEMRAEZTRAME
EaM MEBEAHZF MR
E10%F - WAlge B = T X(e)frat
B RE R A -

HETLEBERNER e &2
=5 A F AR R AR AT o BR
HEAFSENEHEEEDHE

R4 25 5N - L 15 38 3 4 45
AR -
TRAEFR

AoWEHERSHEHESE
Y5 B RE B A A9 AT B S BUEK ©
EREHMS @ % IE65%H
HENRESBHERTENLK
B BOoEN THEEN®
££29.5% o { A& G KA
RRABE%ZE BREEHHEILE
HHEEKRANEE &N
EEMASHEENREUARNE
BERATSHENROBKHERE
EFEEEFPER -

WASBAFENEHESGL
B P78 JE 4 B 85 & ZRIE hN10% -
HENRLBEBENMOARE
4181,000(ZE M F: AR
#4,853,0007T) °
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(e) Extension and termination options

Aok B 285 S

17 HE(E)

(e)

Extension and termination options are included
in a number of property leases across the
Group. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority
of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the

respective lessor.

18 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of
the Group at 28 February 2025 which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or form
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group:

MR R BERE
AEENFZMELBERELTH
RRIEEZE -ZFEEER
ERABBAEEEBAAZ
BEZEREERMN - RO A
FRERMKRIEEZERETHAN
SETE MABLEATA
1TfE -

18 Mi B A &)

BEERAR-E-_RF-_A=+N\AH
HASEEEXEEFEATERBBRA
EEFEEMNTERZ>NTENS
NS (N

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2025 and 2024
Name of entity kind of legal entity ~ debt securities place of operation Interest held
“E-HER
Mt E R BRTRAR TEER/ ZEIQRE
MEAAER EAER E%ES EXtH igs §o
Blooming on Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
REBRRA FE BREELR RERAENET RENE/WE
LRk
Brightly Investment Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
BRRERRAA R BREADLA 2REREEIETR BENE /B
LBR
Le Saunda (B.V.I.) Limited British Virgin Islands, 31,500 ordinary shares of  Investment holding/ 100%
(Note (a)) limited liability US$1 each Hong Kong
(W) company
RERUES 31500REREEIZT REBRR/EHE
EREERAT LTER
Le Saunda Calcado, Limitada Macau, limited MOP200,000 Property holding/ 100%
liability company Macau
EF - BREALRA  200,000£M 7T BENE /AP
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

18 B L7 (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2025 and 2024
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
“EZRER
a0 AL B R BRTRAR TEER/ i el |2
MEARER EAER E%ES EXH fris R
Le Saunda China Investment Limited  Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
KBGATEREERAT A BREALA 100REREETET REBRR /B
LBk
Le Saunda Licensing Limited Bahamas, limited 5,000 ordinary shares of ~ Holding and licensing 100%
liability company US$1 each of trade-marks and
names/
Hong Kong
NEEBRARAR" BREHES 5000 ERARIXT  RARRHLEFHEEER
BREERA LER SR YE
Le Saunda Management Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Provision of management 100%
liability company HK$1 each services/
Hong Kong
KBENERERRA FE BREELR 2RERAEIET REERRY /BB
LER
Le Saunda Real Estate Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
KEHMERRRA A BREADLR 2REREEETR REBR /B
LER
L.S. Retailing Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Retailing of shoes/ 100%
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liability company

BE BREELH

HK$1,000 each plus
20,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each

Hong Kong

REREEIETLER RETE/FF

J& M20,0008% B R E E
10008 TER ZEE
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place of

18 B L7 (&)

Particular of issued

incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2025 and 2024
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
ZBIRER
a0 AL B R BRTRAR TEER/ i el |2
MEARER EAER E%ES EXH fris R
Maior Limited Hong Kong, limited 1,000 ordinary shares of  Trading, provision of 100%
liability company HK$2,000 each management services
and investment
holding/
Hong Kong
ZEEHERARAT B BREERR  1000REREE2000ET 85 REEBRERR
LTER Bk /B
Master Benefit Limited Hong Kong, limited 3,000,000 ordinary shares  Investment holding/ 100%
liability company of HK$1 each Hong Kong
EERRAR 5 BEREMAQET  3000000REREEIET REERK/EE
LTaER
Super Billion Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited 100 ordinary shares of Property holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each the PRC
HEEEERATA 5 BREMLRA  100REREBIAT RENE/WE
LER
Trend Door Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
YR YN A BREADLR 2REREEETR REBR /B
LER
Trend Light Trading Company Limited Hong Kong, limited 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding/ 100%
liability company HK$1 each Hong Kong
REESRRAT & BREADLR 2REREEET REERR /R
Lak
MEES(RE)ERAR The PRC, limited US$100,000 Wholesales and trading of 100%
liability company shoes/
the PRC
hE - AREMAE  100000ET REHERES/ HH
MEERERE)ERAR The PRC, limited HK$53,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
RE - AREMAF 53,000,000 RETE/PH

annual report 2025 ik 2025 237



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o B B 5 R M

18 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18 MIB A= (&)

Place of Particular of issued
incorporation and  share capital and Principal activities/ 2025 and 2024
Name of entity kind of legal entity  debt securities place of operation Interest held
“E-RER
MBI HR BRITREAR TEER/ i ol |:3
MEARERE EAER BRES EEnY fisER
MEEZS(RINERAR The PRC, limited HK$10,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
WEAREMAE 10,000,008 7T ETE /M
ErEE(LBERAA The PRC, limited US$6,500,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
PE EREMAE  6,500000% T HTE/HH
BEERE(ERERARA The PRC, limited US$2,200,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
ECAREMLRE  2,200000%T $TE /M
MRESH(R2)ERAA The PRC, limited US$800,000 Retailing of shoes/ 100%
liability company the PRC
WE - AREMAE 8000005 ZE/

EHREEMMER, The PRC, limited RMB18,000,000 Retailing of shoes/ 2025: 100%
(Note (b)) liability company the PRC 2024: 66.67%
(W)

mE-BREMAR  AR¥18,000,0007 HTE/HE
BLUTEEERZEEERAE  The PRC, limited US$1,050,000 Inactive/ 100%
liability company the PRC
mECAREMLRE  1,050000% T REEEES,/ T H

FELTEERERFHERE The PRC, limited US$200,000 Inactive/ 100%

BRAR liability company the PRC
PE BREMAR  200000% T REEEEY,/HE
Notes. k=3

(@) Le Saunda (B.V.l.) Limited is held directly by the Company. All
other subsidiaries are held indirectly.

(b) On 8 January 2025, the Group acquired an additional

33.33% of the issued shares of {Z % & 2 (71

consideration of RMB2,500,000.
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Le Saunda (B.V.l) Limited AN A 7 & £ #
B MABEMHMBARSAMERS -
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION 19

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the tax assets against the tax liabilities and when
the deferred income taxes relate to the same tax
authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated
balance sheet:

IE T Fr 5 %18

EHREERNAISRERS
MIBRERE - MiE
AR - RIA]

B BIE IEFT 1R

FEFT1S B8 Ko [/ —

HIEE

7% 4 E FT 15 TRIEQFEEE\TJFHTR%

™SI T AR
HMEFFAEEMIEE:

BEEREBERAIENE

2025 2024
“E-RFE —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREBFTT
Deferred income tax assets BREFTSHIBEE 22,407 29,490
Deferred income tax liabilities BEEFEMIEARR (12,819) (18,016)
9,588 11,474
Deferred income taxation is calculated in full on EIEFRSHRBEBHXEABEERE ST
temporary differences under the liability method EREEHCE TSI ABETEDN ?R
using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted RtHE o

by the balance sheet date.

2025 2024

—E-EHF —EMEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT AR®T

At beginning of year N 11,474 14,078
Charged to the consolidated FFAGREERR(MF12)

income statement (Note 12) (1,760) (2,291)

Exchange realignment [ = 3 & (126) (313)

At end of year R R 9,588 11,474
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED) 19 BEZEFREHIE(E)
The movement on deferred income tax assets and EEMEHESELRBENE S
liabilities are as follows: N
Withholding tax
Unrealised profits on Revaluation of on dividend for
inventories investment properties  undistributed profits Others Total
REREREA RENEEH APMENHRERNH it @it
otg) (Hit)
2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 204
“E-RE -TCNE -ECRE -E-ME CE-RE -ZoWME CBCRfE -CE-ME ZECRE O CEoME
RMB'000  RMBOO0O RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARRTR ARETT

ARBTR ARETR

ARMTR ARMTT ARMTR ARETT ARBTR ARETL

At beginning of year RER 22,286 23,341 (8,138) (7,829) (9,877) (10,486) 7,208 9,048 11,474 14,078
(Charged)/credited to GRERERT

consolidated income (;fA)/ Nk

statement (4,727) (1,059) 1,087 - 4,235 609 (2,355) (1,845) (1,760) (2,291)
Exchange realignment EZRZ - - (126) 319 - - - - (126) (313
At end of year HER 17559 20 (T 6138 (64 087 488 T3 958 11474
Note: Bt -

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends remitted by the companies established in the PRC to their
foreign investors starting from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between China and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. All dividends coming from the
profits generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 shall
be subject to this withholding income tax. The Group did not accrue
withholding income tax for a portion of the earnings of approximately
RMB73,100,000 (2024: RMB114,014,000) of its PRC subsidiaries
because the Group does not have a plan to distribute these earnings
from its PRC subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 28 February 2025, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately RMB310,508,000 (2024:
RMB237,190,000) to be carried forward against future taxable income.
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

20

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 5 R A B

19 EEFTBHIE(E)

AERTEBEZIHANT

2025 2024
“E-RFE —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Tax losses without expiry date EmIHBA 2 BIEEE 188,027 202,121
Tax losses expiring in 5 years AFRNERZHIBEE 122,481 35,069
310,508 237,190
INVENTORIES 20 78
2025 2024
—E_RF Z—T-WOF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTR ARBTT
Finished goods A M 117,837 203,922
Less: Provision for impairment of B FERERE
inventories (41,704) (39,411)
76,133 164,511

Impairment losses for inventories write-down to
net realizable value amounted to RMB2,293,000
during the year ended 28 February 2025
These were recognised as

(2024:RMB1,281,000).

an expense and included in “cost of sales”

consolidated income statement.

A R #1,281,0007T) °
in the

ERAR] e
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21

AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

BEZREWERIE HMBEREREAR
BEREMNRE

2025 2024
—E-HFE —T-_OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFRT AR®EFIT

Trade receivables B 5 EIWERE
Less: loss allowance B R E
Other receivables H b e W BR 18
Deposits ®e

Prepayments SEENE @

Value added tax receivables JrE U 18 1B 7 R 18
Presented as non-current assets EVRIERBEE
Presented as current assets 2V AEREBEE

The Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible within 30
to 60 days. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values. There is
no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers.

242 ¢ saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

20,883 31,026
(946) (1,057)
19,937 29,969
3,411 6,306
23,348 36,275
5,929 7,961
2,322 3,217
23,958 22,919
55,557 70,372
699 981
54,858 69,391
55,557 70,372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES, 21 B ZFEWERE HMtEWEEREK
AND DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ReRBESREGE)
(CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at WMEH KR BERZZESEWER
the end of the reporting period, and net of provision, ZHRRZBEZAHINTOT
based on invoice date is as follows:
2025 2024
—B-RE T NAF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Current to 30 days BIHR =30k 18,442 28,655
31 to 60 days 31K EB0K 820 617
61 to 90 days 61K 290K 309 154
Over 90 days #BiBO0K 366 543
19,937 29,969

Trade receivables are denominated in the following
currencies:

EZRWRIEAT I E %7 8k

2025 2024

—E-HE —ZT_NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥BTRT AREFTIT

RMB AR 19,937 29,969

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade
receivables. The loss allowance recognised as
at 28 February 2025 amounted to approximately
RMB946,000 (2024: RMB1,057,000). Information
about the impairment of trade receivables and
group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in Note
3.1(b).

AEERBEBMBREEDFIR
2Bl A EBHEEBRE A
HABE S EWEKRENEETEH
ERHEBEERE R_T_R1F=
AZ+N\B BRATEBEEEOA
R#946,000t(ZE_MF: AR
1,057,0007C) ° Eﬂﬁé%ﬂ%&“u&ﬁ%lﬁz
BEEALMAEEBZEERR  #
BRI FES3A(D) ©
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22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

22 BHERBITEER

2025 2024

—E-_FHFE Z—ZE_WF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Cash at bank and on hand RITHESRFHES 115,137 113,222

Bank deposits with initial term no HR AR = AMRT

more than three months (Note (a)) TR (K iE (@) 183,324 222,433
Bank deposits with initial term over — HiFR #E =& A AR 1T E X

three months (Note (b)) (%1 3% (b)) 29,450 29,000

Cash and bank balances Re RIRITER 327,911 364,655
Less: Term deposits with initial term  Jg& : B9FR 1 = 1& A &9 & &8

over three months (Note (b)) T3 (K77 () (29,450) (29,000)

Cash and cash equivalents RehERIRLER 298,461 335,655

The cash and bank balances are denominated in the

following currencies:

Be RRITERATINEE IR

2025 2024

—E-RE T -OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTFRT AREFIT

RMB AR 157,673 178,164
Us$ ETT 152,596 123,472
HK$ BT 16,877 61,176
Other currencies Hfh 5 ¥ 765 1,843
327,911 364,655
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Notes:

(@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

H AND BANK BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits and
term deposits was 4.02% (2024: 5.04%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 to 91 days (2024: 7 to
91 days).

The effective interest rate on bank deposits with initial term
over three months was 1.40% (2024: 1.96%) per annum; these
deposits have a maturity ranging from 181 to 182 days (2024:
182 to 183 days).

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB
are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
RMB denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

22

foi A B 5 R M

BERRITHESRE

S

(@

RHBRTERALEHERNERI XA
FBHE402% (ZF-HF :5.04%) 1 ZE 17
RE AN F7E21H (T ZMF : 75291
H) -

HRO-"EANTHFRANERNXAS
F1.40% (ZZTZHF 1.96%) ' 2 FF A
B H BN F181E182B (- T — VI 4 : 182
Z£183H) °

AEBUAARBREMNBR S RIRTHER
DEFRPENRT - RBZFEUAARE
REBANBEFTRIMNERESLPBRIRINEGA
7 R B BT AR AR EOSNE B R A R AR

RekR{THESzREEEEQAFERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR B R
23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 HKEBEERERME
STATEMENTS
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net @ BIEHRAIBERASEERE
cash generated from operations: E RS FREE:
2025 2024
—E-_RHE —ZE-UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARET
Cash flow from operating REEKTH 2
activities BERE
Loss before income tax BRETE B AE R (100,787) (21,459)
Adjustments for: T
Exchange difference (Note 6) & 5 =% (fit6) 347 2,486
Depreciation of property, plant VI MERBHEITE
and equipment (Note 16) (K1t 16) 5,416 7,872
Depreciation of right-of-use FTRAREEENE
assets (Note 17) (B7&E17) 13,574 19,528
Fair value losses on an REYEANFEBE
investment property (Note 15) (Hf it 15) 9,244 —
Loss on write off/disposal of sy, B e KRR
plant and equipment (Note (b)) HBEE (W b)) 1,142 3,261
Gain on early termination of RAKIEHESH NS
leases (Note 17) (Hfat17) (38) (7,472)
Impairment losses/(write-back g5 W ERIE R E
of impairment) on trade BB, CRERD) -
receivables, net (Note 3.1(b)) FRE(H a£3.1(b)) 266 (385)
Impairment losses on FEREEE  F58
inventories, net 2,293 1,281
Impairment losses on property, M B REE
plant and equipment BB EE (K iF16)
(Note 16) 842 3,010
Impairment losses on FREEERERBE
right-of-use assets (Note 17) (Kfat17) 1,014 2,291
Finance income, net (Note 8) WA FRE
(B z28) (9,612) (10,666)
(76,299) (253)
Changes in working capital: HEEREE:
— Inventories -FE 86,086 26,714
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 RIWEKRE R
H{h & U BR 18 12,671 6,462
— Deposits and prepayments —&e RBERNHIA 1,913 7,255
— Trade payables and other —ESRENERER
payables H fth & 15 BR IR (19,682) 3,591
Net cash generated from REXBEEZ
operations RE FE 4,689 43,769
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23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 ZERETRERNME (A
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Reconciliation of write off/disposal of plant and (b) W IEEHENREER:
equipment:
2025 2024
—E-EHF —E-UF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Proceeds from write off/disposal W R E R E - —
Net book amount BREFE (1,142) (3,261)
Loss on write off/disposal of plant i $4 & & # 82 &
and equipment ®imEE (1,142) (3,261)
() Analysis of changes in financing activities during ) FRRMEGEEE DN :
the year:
Short-term Lease Dividend
bank loan liabilities payables Total
BEBT
¥ HEER ERRE o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Tn AR®Tn AR%Tn AR%Tx
At 1 March 2024 W-Z-MEZA-B —  (04%) (4719 (20939)
Cash movements: Reg
— Proceeds from short-term bank ~ — f& /\h%ﬁfﬁﬁ 7
loan (9,244) - - (9,244)
— Repayment for shortterm bank ~ — BHIRTERER
loan 9,244 - - 9,244
— Repayment for principal element — HEAEEH 2
of lease liabilities e #Hih - 15,122 - 15,122
— Dividend paid ENRE - - 32,163 32,163
______ - _15_,1_22_ L _32_,1_63_ L _41,2_85_
Non-cash movements: 3Ffﬁ/\ Lk
— 2024 final special dividend “TNFER
declared REBRRIRE - - (32,173) (32,173)
— Additions to lease liabilities - HERERE - (4,362) - (4,362)
— Early termination of leases - RABLEERD - 1,951 - 1,951
— Foreign exchange adjustments ~ — E X £ % - - (9) (9)
______ —_o A (82182 (34,593
At 28 February 2025 RZT_1F
-A-+/\A - (7,748) (498) (8,246)
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23 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 23 HEHRERERMIT(E)
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
() Analysis of changes in financing activities during ) FARMEEBEEF DN : (&)
the year: (Continued)
Short-term Lease Dividend
bank loan liabilities payables Total
RHHRT
B HERE RS st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETRT ARETRE ARBTR
At 1 March 2023 RZFZ=F=A-B - - _[Br2e9  (e08  (37,807)
Cash movements: Re#d:
— Repayment for principal -HEBBERY
element of lease liabilities A - 24,455 - 24,455
— Dividend paid - BRAKRE - - 31,796 31,796
______ 24 31796 _ 56261
Non-cash movements: FReEH:
— 2023 interim special - “Z-=F5k
dividend declared REERIRE - - (31,748) (31,748)
— Additions to lease liabilities — HEBERE - (18,286) - (18,286)
— Early termination of leases ~ — RAKLIEHESH - 11,698 - 11,698
— Foreign exchange -EHEE
adjustments - (1,027) (19 (1,046)
______ —___ 615 _B1767)  _ _ [(39.389)
At 29 February 2024 RZE-_M%F
—“A=t+nH - (20,459) (479 (20,938)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BEZEMNEKRE HUENSERER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHRAaE
2025 2024
“E-RFE —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STR AR%Tx
Trade payables B S REMNRIE 9,148 18,628
Other payables H Ath FE T BR IR 49,992 42,684
Value added tax payables JE 1~ 35 18 51 A% 18 7,923 8,603
Contract liabilities (Note) aRBEWNZ) 1,701 15,905
68,764 85,820
The credit periods granted by suppliers are generally HEFmER ZEER -—RR7TECOK °
ranged from 7 to 60 days. The ageing analysis of the WMERAR BHENEB ZERERIZ
trade payables at the end of the reporting period, BERHSTOT:
based on invoice date is as follows:
2025 2024

—E_RE —E-UFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT AR®EFTT

Current to 30 days Bl HR Z=30K 9,073 18,539
31 to 60 days 31RE60K — 14
61 to 90 days 61K 290K - —
91 to 120 days 91K 2120k - —
Over 120 days B @120k 75 75
9,148 18,628
Note: B i# -
The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in TREMTEAREHBEIANKEEFIEL
the current reporting period relates to contract liabilities balance at BESKEEBESE -

the beginning of the year.

2025 2024
—E-RE —ZT-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Revenue recognised that was included in the WRILAAZETEH
contract liabilities balance at the beginning BEMRE K=
of the year 1,249 1,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI B R P RE
24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 BESEMNERE HMAENSEKRER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) EHNEEUE)
The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate ZoENERERMEEANFEERE
their fair values and are denominated in the following A7 LA TN %) & ¥ 51 B -
currencies:
2025 2024
—E-RF T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR AREBFTT
RMB AR 9,148 18,614
EURO (e — 14
9,148 18,628
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 BRI
2025 2024
ZEZhEF —ETNF
Share Share
Number of capital Number of capital
ordinary R A ordinary B

shares  HK$’000
ZEREB FTERT

shares HK$'000
SRR e 4= FHET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 & i %0.10/%8 7T

Authorised: Z N
At the beginning of year FORFER
and at the end of year 1,000,000,000 100,000 1,000,000,000 100,000
2025 2024
—E-RE —E-NF
Share Share
Number of capital Number of capital
ordinary B ordinary B
shares RMB’000 shares ~ RMB’000
EBRRYE AR%®TrR LTBREE ARBT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
PR
At the beginning of year FMRER
and at the end of year 705,895,060 59,979 705,895,060 59,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan
in Hong Kong based on employee pensionable
remuneration and length of service.

The amounts, included in trade and other payables
(Note 24), recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet are determined as follows:

Aok B 285 S

26 ERBREE
AEERERERBRAKGT I EREE
HREBHTATEANEKRETE -

EERINGEEEERER TAHE
2 A AR 1A Ko EL At B A B TR (FfY 5£24)
ME BT

2025 2024
“E-RFE —T-MF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBFTT
Present value of defined benefit RERBMEBEERE
obligations 201 275
Liability in the consolidated RigeEEBBERNEBE
balance sheet 201 275
The movement in the present value of defined benefit EFXNRARTEMNETRAENEHN
obligations over the year is as follows: T
2025 2024
—E-RFE T AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREBFT
At beginning of year F 9] 275 16
Interest cost F B2 6 9
Current service cost IR AR 75 A AR 11 20
Payment <1t (32) —
Actuarial (gains)/losses BECEF), B8 (63) 207
Exchange realignment E T EEkS 4 3
At end of year F IR 201 275
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26 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
(CONTINUED)

27

26 EiKEFNEEGE)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income R EERRERNSRELT
statement are as follows:
2025 2024
—_E_RF —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTR ARBFTT
Interest cost included in staff costs 5t A B LKA 2 5| 8 6 9
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as FTENRBERREALOT :
follows:
2025 2024
—E-HE —ZE-WmF
Discount rate P38 & 3.48% 3.48%
Future salary increase rate AR 2K %7 B 48 hn b 2= 0.50% 3.48%
RESERVES 27 1
Capital ~ Exchange
Share  redemption translation  Statutory  Contributed Retained Capital Other
premium reserve reserve reserves surplus eamings reserve reserve Total
Rtk E5RERE NERERE TERE EIN:E RERd EXfE EhEE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®Tn  ARMTr  ARBTR  AR®Fn  ARMTr  ARETR  ARMFn  AREfR  ARETR
Motg (H2)
At 1 March 2004 HoRomEZE-B 8,982 WM A TV 4812 o) s
Comprefiensiv loss 2EEE
Loss for the year FnEE - - - - - (100,776} - - (100,776)
Other compreensielncome~~~ Ef2ANA
Curency trngation differences  EF£E - - 3,108 - - - - - 3,198
Refirement benefl obligafon A EFIE - - - - - - - 6 63
Transaction wih owners HERRENLLS
Diderd Re - - - - - mm - - @
Trangfe £ - - - (19,889) - 19,883 - - -
Tensactonvitinon-contoling £ AREE 245
inerest - - - - - - (689) - (689)
At 28 February 2025 RZECRFZA-TNA 88,982 145 (31,374 21,262 3076 331,363 418 (149) 43428

Representing:
(thers
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foi A B 5 R M

Statutory reserves represent enterprise expansion and general reserve
funds set up by subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC. As
stipulated by regulation in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to statutory reserves an amount of not less than 5% or
10% of the amount of profit after income tax of respective the PRC
subsidiaries, calculated based on the PRC accounting standards.
Should the accumulated total of the statutory reserves reach 50% of
the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. Pursuant to relevant
the PRC regulations, the general reserve fund may be used to make
up losses or to increase the capital of the corresponding subsidiaries
whilst the enterprise expansion fund may be used to expand the
corresponding subsidiaries’ business operations or to increase the
capital of the corresponding subsidiaries.

27 RESERVES (CONTINUED) 27 {#1&E (&)
Captal Exchange
Share Tedemption franslation Statutory ~ Contrbuted Retained Captal Other
premium TESEIVe Teserve 18S8IVeS surplus eamings Teserve T8S6rve Total
fhEE ATEEEE NEAZEE EERE aA28 REEH EnGh EpER o5
RUBY000 RMB1000 RMBO000 RVB'000 RUBY000 RMB000 RMBO000 RVB'000 RIB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETx ARETn ARETm ARETR AREfR ARET:
Mot (H2)
At 1 March 2023 e g 86,982 145 (48.348) 47,145 3076 199719 4812 15 505,546
Comprehensie loss 2EER
Loss forthe year Engg - - - - - 28542 - - (2354
Other comprehensiv income/{osg) 2h2aEkL/(E8)
Curency ranslation diferences EfzE - - 13,776 - - - - - 13,776
Retement benefit olgaton RIENER - - - - - - - 21 1)
Transaction with owners HERHEAZRR
Dividend R - - - - - 3174 - - (31,749
At 29 February 2024 N5 RE-A-NA 86,982 145 (34572 7145 3076 40 4812 (21 553805
Representing ft%:
2024 proposed dividend CEIREESRE 01
Others ity 521632
563606
Note: B it

EERBERPEKRIREENNEB QB ME
TEAIMEETRE-RFERBES - RPEAM
RE MBARNAREIERBHR 28D
REFEESFENFESTEKNE QR BB
BRI ST H5%510% © = ERFBRELRE
= P BB A R EE T AR AR 8950% - I B A RS A
ABHELHER - REFHAPERE —REFB
R BEEHERREMERNEARNER -
MEXMRESAATBERESHEATNE
BERBIIEMBBAMNEARNER -
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28 COMMITMENTS 28 &IE
Capital commitments B R EIE
2025 2024
—E-HFE —T_-OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREBFTT
Contracted but not provided for, EETHEIL M REE
in respect of — purchase of — EHEBEDME
property, plant and equipment 2= N AR 127 1,572
29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 29 BT EDHE
2025 2024
—E-_RHFE —ZET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AREBFTT
Financial assets at amortised cost: £ H & E T A5 B
Trade and other receivables B RIERIE &
H b & I BR 18 23,348 36,275
Deposits e 5,929 7,961
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEH 327,911 364,655
357,188 408,891
2025 2024
—E-_RFE —ZET_mWmEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & &t B 18 & # 1% 7 7K 51/ Bk -
Trade and other payables 5 EMNERER
H b & 1 BR 1B 57,838 60,328
Lease liabilities MEAE 7,748 20,459
65,586 80,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI B R P R
30 BANKING FACILITIES AND GUARANTEES 30 RITRERIER
The banking facilities made available to subsidiaries AIEAEBRNB AR HAWEITRE
of the Group are as follows: BREEWNT:
2025 2024
—E_REF —ENF

Available Facilities Available Facilities

facilities utilised facilities utilised

=320 2 & A

AHEE BE ATAREE HE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTIT ARBTT

Banking facilities granted [\ 4N 52 [ [} /&8

to subsidiaries of the NCIESdunk:y
Group RITRERE 78,926 - 78,604 68
As at 28 February 2025, no credit amount was RZE_RAF_AZ+NH " EAEX®
utilised (2024: RMB68,000). AEARRETSSEE(—E— N
F: AR¥68,0007T) °
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EBEEALTHXRS
(a) Related party (a) EEAEAL
As at 28 February 2025, Stable Gain Holdings RZE-_FAF-_A=+N\H-
Limited held 31.94% (2024: 31.94%) equity Stable Gain Holdings Limited#F
interest in the Company as the single largest BARRNFZ1.94% (ZF — O F :
shareholder. 31.94%) K IR A= - BE — &

AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B R R E
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 EREALIHNRZ (&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Transaction with a related party (b) BE—fUBAEALTZRE
Significant transaction with a related party, H-—EEBATETZEFER
which was carried out in the normal course of ST AEEBR B EREPET
the Group’s business, is summarised as follows: IBE N T

2025 2024
—E-RE T -OF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AREBTT
Rental expenses charged by a mM—fIBEBEEALIZR
related party (Note) e (#iz) - 802
Note: H1at -

(c)

For the year ended 29 February 2024, the Group rented a shop
located in Macau from Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, as a retail outlet in Macau.

Key management compensation

The directors are considered key management

of the Group.

(c) T EEEEMS

BHE_Z_WMFE_A-_t+hhALFEE" &
EERAARRIZEEREFT TWAEMB
—MERI RIS S ERRPIN T EFI™M -

EERASEMI EBERE -

2025 2024
—E_REF —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®FTT
Salaries and other short-term e & H A 52 HA

employee benefits BB H 3,628 3,840

Employer’s contributions to EEXRAKRSFEIHK
retirement scheme 24 38
3,652 3,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 7 S 5 R A B

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE 32 RKPFEEEBERNESE
COMPANY
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (a) A2REEEER
As at As at
28 February 29 February
2025 2024
R=-Z-HF RIT-NF
ZB=tA\B Z—A=-t+nNH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
g 5% AREFTR AREFTT
Assets BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI $ 422154 552,655
Current assets MEBEE
Other receivables H b fE W BR 1B 248 242
Cash and bank balances Be MiB1THEH 1,121 1,495
______ 1,969 ____ 1,787
Total assets BEE 423,523 554,392
Equity &
Capital and reserves attributable ~ AA R R FEA
to the owners of the Company FEME IR AR 1
Share capital B 25 59,979 59,979
Reserves R 32(b) 362,311 493,258
Total equity B 422290 553,237
Liabilities =L
Current liabilities mEaRE
Accruals [EETE A 1,233 1,155
Total liabilities mat 1,283 1,155
Total equity and liabilities EERAEAE 423,523 554,392

ARARICEEBBREN S
—THFRA-tTABEESEH
B WHRTINALTRERESE -

The balance sheet of the Company was
approved by the Board of Director on 26 May
2025 and was signed on its behalf.

James Ngai

Li Wing Yeung, Peter

i & =8
Chairman Director
TE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Aok 1 B 285 A

32 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

32 ARFEERERKREE(E)

(b) AT REED

Capital  Exchange
Share  redemption translation ~ Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
RtEE EXRERE HELERE  HABR  REEA it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR AR¥TR ARBTr ARETR  ARMT:
At 1 March 2024 W-E-ME=A-H 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 422,751 493,258
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (98,774) (98,774)
Transaction with owners BERREALRS
Dividend ke = - - - (32,173) (32,173)
At 28 February 2025 i 88,962 145 (30,475) 11,849 291,810 362,311
Representing; f&:
Others it 362,311
Capital Exchange
Share redemption franslation Contributed Retained
premium feServe feServe surplus ganings Total
RHEE EXEEEE EAZRE BAES RERH i
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 1 March 2023 R-B-z£=f-8 8982 145 30475) 11,849 142,114 212,615
Comprehensive income REHA
Proft for the year ERiA - - - - 312,301 312,301
Transaction vith owners HEREEALLS
Dividend RE - - - - (31,748) (31,748)
At 29 February 2024 RZFZMEZAZTNA 88,982 145 (30,475) 11,849 400,757 493258
Representing; R&:
2024 proposed dividend “EIMERERE 32,173
Others Eff 461,085

258 e saunda holdings Itd. Z&E & fHZERE B R A &

493,258



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

)
T4 5 R
RESULTS OF THE GROUP
rEBZ¥E
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
“E-Rnf —TomE T ZT--F —T--F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AREFTr ARB®TT ARETT ARETR
Revenue e 25 294,096 401428 413227 569,034 594217
Operating (loss)/profit BE(BR)/ER (110,399)  (32,125)  (60,222) 17,351 163,106
Finance income, net MEBA - F58 9,612 10,666 7,085 6,197 4,967
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETERA(BB),/
4 A (100,787)  (21,459)  (53,157) 23,548 168,073
Income tax (expense)/credit BRI,/
nk (2,505) (2,867) 1,890 (20,907)  (61,922)
(Loss)/profit for the years FR(ER),/ &7 (103,292)  (24,326)  (51,267) 2,641 106,151
(Loss)/profit attributable to: e (BB),/ & F
— owners of the Company Y YNCIL 3
BEA (100,776)  (23,542) (50,271) 2,980 106,154
— non-controlling interest — FERER (2,516) (784) (996) (339) (3)
(103,292)  (24,326)  (51,267) 2,641 106,151
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP
rEEzEERAE
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
—E"_HE —E-pNE —E-=F —T-_-—F —T-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT ARETH ARETT AR®TR
Investment properties and property, REMERME
plant and equipment BEREE 75,380 86,376 87,734 85,507 83,780
Right-of-use assets FRESE 16,857 28,678 34,869 52,761 34,439
Long-term deposits and ke Rk
prepayments B FR 699 981 3,118 2,624 1,485
Deferred income tax assets EEmEREEE 22,407 29,490 32,390 32,150 29,619
Net current assets RBEETE 381,851 497,510 538,401 586,024 893,544
497,194 643,035 696,512 759,066 1,042,867
Total equity s 483,407 618,111 663,636 705339 1,007,947
Deferred income tax liabilities EEMEHEBEAGE 12,819 18,016 18,312 28,800 24,197
Lease liabilities MEBE 968 6,908 14,564 24,927 10,723
497,194 643,035 696,512 759,066 1,042,867
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
B

Location Type Tenure

it Bk ] HRAME

(@ Shop Nos. 5 & 6, Shop Medium lease
215 & 217 Qi Sha Road,
Block 1, Hao Jing Hua Yuan,
West District, Zhongshan,
Guangdong Province,
People’s Republic of China
RE AR AAE BEE RHERAE 49
BREAH LT
78 @ I 7 B 215 %2 217 5%
= = A6 B — B85 K% 65K #

(b) Res-Do-Chao B, Vai Son Kok, Shop Privately owned
No.26 Rua De. S. Domingos,
Macau
B P9 EE NN 2]
AT =2 7265

2k JIE B 3 T B B
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